Simplifying Geography.

Amplifying Growth.

Allcargo is about making things simpler. Simplicity that lends itself to the

way we conduct business. Nothing is too big, too complex ortoo remote

for us. A simple philosophy that has continually led to growth and has

made us India’s leading logistics service provider.

With 139 offices in 59 countries and presence across Multimodal
Transport Operations, Container Freight Stations, Equipment Leasing,
Warehousing and Project Logistics, we work closely with our customers
to solve their complex logistics issues and bring a direct positive impact to
their business. With a new range of services being added to our already

exhaustive portfolio, we hope to make things even simpler.
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Across the Globe

The world is a small place with Allcargo.
With a network of 139 offices in 59
countries, there is no place too far away.
Alicargo delivers to more than 5000
destinations around the world.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure as Chairman of Allcargo Global Logistics to present the Annual Report of our

activities for 2008.

Exactly a year ago, we made a commitment to our shareholders that we would continuously
strive to be among the top three in every segment of logistics we operate in. It makes me

immensely proud to inform you that we have kept our commitment. Today, our LCL (Less-Than

Container Load) Consolidation business is the second largest in the world. Our Project Logistics

argest in India. e among the top two p - rs in Container

Freight Station Logistics as well as Equipment | g inthe country.

At Allcargo the underlying philosoph ;s bee eep stretching ourselves to our limits
andto keep pushing those limits further. In line with that we have now set ourselves the

target of “becoming the top player in each of our business segments”.

Seen in the context of the long-term growth strategy we've been uting, the last year was

ecially monumental for us in the sense that while faced with one of the worst economic
downturns in history, we were able to exceed the performance expectations that our
shareholders and we ourselves had set. This has furthered our confidence in the robustness of
our business model and our approach of cautious aggression. In 2008, our consolidated top-line

and bottom-line growth was 439 and 48% respectively.

However, we dlearly understand the risks arising from this severe downturn and have taken it as
an opportunity to prudently reduce costs wherever possible and to become leaner and more
efficient ac our verticals. At the same time, this has been complemented with multiple

strategic initiatives . quality improvements and sustainable business growth.

Alliances

‘We are a strong believer in the power of mutually beneficial partnerships. Allcargo has entered
into a long-term strategic alliance agreement with Samsara Group for setting up and running
Container Freight Stations (CFS) and Internal Container Depots (ICD) at Indore - where
Allcargo's first ICD recently commenced operations - along with Hyderabad, Nagpur and
Bangalore, We also entered a Joint Venture with CONCOR to set up a CFS at Dadri.

Strategic Initiatives

tarted the process for the deployment of an Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) System in another step towards improving productivity and enhancing
management information. We have also adopted Total Quality Management (TQM) to

continuously improve in all services and processes leading to increased customer satisfaction.

MR. SHASHI KIRAN SHETTY,

Chairman & Managing Director




People

Without doubt, our people are the strongest pillars of our success. Consequently, we spend a
considerable amount of time and effort towards their development. Our learning programs
adopted a new approach this year with many of our senior management supplementing industry
experts in conducting training sessions. While on one hand, it has been cost-effective, it has also
provided employees with insights based on hands-on experience and at the same time given them

achance to know and be inspired by our leaders,

New Businesses

2008 also saw us expanding the horizon of services by setting up our Warehousing arm which has
helped us get closer to becoming a total logistics service provider for our clients. This business is a

key part of our strategy to increase focus on the Domestic Logistics Sector.

Noteworthy Accomplishments

Allcargo was awarded the “Logistics Company of The Year" in 2008 by Maritime Gateway. Such
recognition of our efforts and achievements as a company makes all of us extremely proud and
provides us the relentless drive towards striving for further excellence. It also validates the decision

that our customers, investors and partners make when they choose Allcargo.

In another landmark accomplishment, Our Project Logistics division created a record for the
longest distance; a rail coach has been transported by road. This was as a part of one of the largest
Metro Rail Logistics Projects for providing Turnkey Services including transportation for 424 Delhi
Metro Coaches. We are looking forward to break that record again very soon,

Community

Allcargo has become what it is today because of the support of the community we serve, and we

strongly believe in sharing the benefits of our success with that community as an essential
component of inclusive growth. Through our Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives, we
support a wide range of socio-economic, educational and health initiatives, The reason behind the
success of these projects and programs is that they are driven by active participation from our

employees.

As | mentioned, our current business focus lies on sustainable growth by growing within our
existing customers with additional services, as well as gaining new customers in our core traditional
markets. In the following pages, you'll read more about why we are confident that we can

effectively capitalize on these opportunities.

I'm very optimistic about our future because |'ve been on Allcargo's front lines, working closely with
excellent people across all levels of our organization, I've experienced, firsthand, how much our

customers value the Allcargo difference.

It is with this note of optimism that | wish to thank all of you - our shareholders, customers,
employees and vendors - and look forward to your continuing support as we deliver strong results

inthe years ahead.

With Warm Regards
Shashi Kiran Shetty

Chairman & Managing Director

»

You Dream it, We will carry it.




From Cotton Sacks to Mega Containers. You Dream it, We will carry it.

Our Business

Container Freight Stations & Inland Container Depots (ICDs/CFS)

Envisaging the need for more port related infrastructure, Allcargo has invested in its own
CF5/ICDs with world-class facilities. We are one of the largest operators in the country with three

CFSs operational in Mumbai, Chennai & Mundra and one ICD facility in Indore.

We aim to provide comprehensive multimodal transport solutions, under a single 'Allcargo’
umbrella, CFS/ICD operations are an integral part of our logistics services. The high LCL volumes
handled by Allcargo along with our Multi-City Consolidation services necessitate custom-bonded

CFS/ICD facilities for smooth flow of cargo.

Qur CFS/ICDs have been rated as premium infrastructure facilities by our customers for their

service deliverables and safety / security norms

High safety and security standards. We assure you of high service deliverables and
performance standards

Equipment Hiring and Transportation Division

Constantly endeavoring to scale newer heights and milestones in our product and service
delivery model with Safety First! Always as our ultimate goal, Allcargo Equipment division is one of

the top two leading equipment and transport rental companies in the country.

Ajourney of a thousand miles has to start with a single step. 1982 was the year we commenced
our operations with just one forklift. Times have changed from then. Today we proudly announce
afleet of more than 500 specialized vehicles and equipment ranging from Telescopic Cranes,

Truck Lattice Boom Cranes, Crawlers, Trailers, Reach stackers to Forklifts. We have a Pan-India

-
-

-
[}
)

presence catering to various Multinational and Indian companies across industries like oil
exploration, energy, power, construction and infrastructure.

Beyond expectations. We assure State-of-the-Art Engineering and Research &
Development Centre (24 x 7):

Warehousing

Quality and performance. The two benchmarks that are reflected through our state-of-the-art
design, top-in-class equipment and trained professionals across all levels. PEB structures with
scientific racking system, our warehouses offer value-added services such as packaging, labeling,

segregation etc, as per every customer s requirements

At Allcargo, we keep our customers needs at the centre and our services orbit around this
nucleus. Our gamut of specialized logistics services includes transportation, project cargo
movement, cargo consolidation, sea freight forwarding and air freight.

Committed. We assure dedicated warehouses as well as multi-user facilities.




LCL Consolidation Service

Getting ahead. s abouttirne. Our LCL Consalidation services have made us the fore runners in

the Iogistics arena with the prom ofthe best.

ith shipping lines, port agents, local carmers and others for movement o

s of safe and tin

fintegrated global MVOCC serices is what we have on offer: This would indude

, Air and Land Logstics, LCL dation, FCL forwarding, Multi City daticn,
Multirradal Transpart Operations, Container Freight Logistics. All these services are backed with
a host ol other support se ran tr tirg sailing

scheduls and

Time-tested processes, Global network. We assure you of hassle-free shipments.

Project Logistics

Allcarga is o carve off a lar of this burgeoning market and pay a leading role in the
development of India's infrastructure what with the market for infrastructure development gaining
at a more that steady pace. With one eye on the global economy, demand for project cargo

5 is estimated to scale new heights aggregatinga g o the coming years

ce 2004, we offer services that include transportation of high value specialized equipment ke
cifield eguipment, power plants, compressor stations & other over-dimensional cargo that
cannot be containenzed on a turmkey basiz, Industries we caterto include st

energy, aluminum. oil and gas, cement infrastructure, enginesnng, etc

Allcarga's project carpo business has the S5ArY (trucks, special trailers etc) and
manpower to successfully exeoute proj : have successfully delivered several challenging

projects comprising overseas consignments ta India and vice versa,

Qut-of-the-box' thinking, We ensure cost-effective and safe solutions

From Matchboxes ...

¢,

Allcargo is India’s No.l Project Logistics Company

——y




Senior Management Team

Mr. Umesh Shetty
Chief Executive Officer - Equipment Hiring

Mr. Ashit Desai
Director - Corporate Affairs

Mr. P. P. Shetty
HR Advisor

Mr. S. Suryanarayanan
Group Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Jatin Chokshi
Group Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Hrushikesh Joshi
Group Chief Information Officer

Mrs. Shantha Martin D'Souza
Chief Executive Officer - NVOCC

Mr. Pramod Kokate
Vice President - CFS

Mr. T. G. Ramalingam
Vice President - All India Projects
(Marketing & Operations)

Sridhar K.
Vice President - ICD & Warehousing

Mr. Ravi Jakhar
Vice President - Corporate Strategy

Mrs. Darshana Mandewal
Vice President - HR

Company Secretary
Mr. Shailesh Dholakia

Bankers

Axis Bank Ltd
HDFC Bank Limited
Yes Bank Ltd

Statutory Auditors

M/s Appan & Lokhandwala Associates
Chartered Accountants

4032, Shiv-Ahish, Plot No. 10,

|9th Road, Chembur,

Mumbai - 400 071.

Internal Auditors

M/s Pipalia Singhal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

601 Janki Centre, 29,

Shah Industrial Estate,

Off Veeera Desai Road,

Andheri (West),

Mumbai - 400 053.

M/s C C Dangi & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Mahendra Chambers, 2nd Floor,
Above Mc Donanlds,

134/136, D. N. Road, Fort,
Mumbai - 400 001.

Solicitors

M/s Maneksha & Sethna
Solicitors, Advocates & Notary
8, Ambalal Doshi Marg,
Hamam Street, Fort,

Mumbai - 400 023.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-13 Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (W).
Mumbai - 400 078.

Registered Office

Diamond Square, 5th Floor,
CST Road, Kalina,
Santacruz (East),

Mumbai - 400 098

Tel.: 022 - 6679 8100

Fax: 022 - 6679 8195
www.allcargoglobal.com
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Our Performance

Standalone Financial Highlights (Rs. in Million)

Tosal Incoens Earmngs Aufore Degrecaton. inberest, Exepooral e and Tax (EBTHTAL Tatal Income 5,305.52 3,645.32 2.293.40
Rx. Milon R Milian
4000 1000 Prafit Before Interest, Depreciation and Taxes 1,407 46 825.20 512.03
o s S e Interest (124.47) 120,95) =YY
Depreciation {254.69) (142,02 (22.31)
= 1000
o — ke Profit Before Exceptional Items and Taation 1,028.30 662.23 471.20
139140 512.03
2000 - Il Liih (s Provision For Tax (164.25) (105.22) (83.11)
o Exceptional tems 62.68 40.82 4274
g 006 anar 008 006 a7 008
S Year Profit After Tax & Exceptional ltems 926.73 597.83 430.83
Prafit Brought Forward From Previous Year 94237 34544 26444
Prior Penod Adjustments For Taxes and Expenses (0.07) {0.02) (0.20)
Mm:ﬂ BATI e Prafit Avallable For Approprations |,869.03 [,143.25 69437
o - 80 - S Appropriations:-
L Imterim Dividend Paid 40.51 21.15
A |45
oy e s Tax on Interim Dhvidend 689 12,78
5371 ST s == Proposed Final Dividend 55.91 67.09 -
500 430,83 10 Wl
[""“_' Tax on Final Dividend 9.50 I1.40 -
in-
" | E— . - Transfer To General Reserve 95.00 75.00 45.00
yed e i d i 2007 2008 B |
ik i alance Carmed To Balance Sheet |, 708.62 4137 545.44
Consolidated Financials
P Py Bartmgs st Dpracation. Incarsir: Bucrcionl B nd Tas (ERDNTA) Consolidated Financial Highlights (Rs. in Million)
Ra Plle Ra. Mhken
e e 2008 2007 2006
15.000 11347 1% L334 43 {12 months) {12 months) (9 months)
10,000 1,0
e fE U H jaT100 Total Income 23247.19 16,186.12 9,003.93
Q0 izl 1000~ _B4B.13 Prafit Before Interest, Depreciation and Taxes 2304.43 |.473.00 848,13
) I Interest (248.54) (123.47) (52.55)
ta 2006 2007 1008 £ 2004 ' w007 ' 1008 o
o - Depreciation (447.22) (252.28) (78.78)
Prafit Before Exceptional Iterms and Taxation 1608.67 [097.25 71680
Exceptional ltems (31.40) 5.34 910
L i . e i Provision For Tax (357.32) (238.66) (174.97)
i 47.38 Profit After Tax 1219.95 863.93 620.93
. " i 21 Proft Brought Forward From Previous Year 1283.42 719.21 264.63
520,93 i T
e : 0 Price Period Adjustrments For Taxes and Expenses (4.20) 0.09 (16,50
l * Minarity Interest (138.72) (98.42) (0.91)
B4 — o
2006 e v s Profit Available For Apprapriations 2360.44 | 484.8 868,15
Yasr
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Directors’ Report

To,
The Members of
Allcargn Global Logistics Limited

“four Directors take pleasure in presenting the Swteenth Annual Report of the Company together with
Audred Staterment of Accounts for the year ended Drecember 3 |, 2008,

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Your Company's performance during the year under review is surnmarized below

(Rs. in Million)

For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended Ended

31.12.2008 30122007
Sales & Other Income | 5.305.52 I 364531 .
Profit Before Interest, Depreciation and Taxes 1,407 46 B25.20
Interest 124.47 20,95
Depreciation 254.69 42,02
Profit Before Excepticnal lterms and Taxabon 1,028.30 662.13
Exceptional ltems (62.69) (52.16)
Prowision Far Tax 164.25 | 16,56
Profit After Tax 926.74 597.E3
Prior period adjustments for tax and expenses 0.07 0.02
Profit brought forward from previous vear 94237 5,44
Amount available for Approprations |.869.03 I, 143,25
Appropriations:
Interim Dividend - 40.51
Proposed Dividend £5.91 67.09
Tax on Dividend 9.50 |8.29
Transfer to General Reserve 95.00 75,00
Profit carried to Balance Sheet 1,708.62 Q42,36
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The year under review was challenging and opportunistic for your
Caompany. In spite of global economic turmail and slower industrial
grawth, your Company witnessed an improved performance on
all parameters. This was possible because of focused management
approach, effident project execution, reduction in cost and
prudent financial and human resources managernent.

Stand-alone Performance:

Your Company has achieved a turmowver of Rs, 5,167.9 | milon and
eamed a net profit of Rs. 926,74 milion as compared to turnover
of Rs, 3,600.48 milion and net profit of Rs, 59784 million n
preceding financial vear, representing 43.53% growth in revenue
and 55.01% grawth in net profit. Earnings before interest, tax and
depreciation (EBITDA) is Rs. | 40746 milion as compared to
Rs, B25.20 million in preceding financial year, representing 70.56%
growth,

Consolidated Performance:

Your Company has acheeved a tumaver of Rs, 23, 140,82 million
and earmed a net profit of Rs, 1077.02 million as compared to
turnover of Rs, 16,134.63 million and net prafit of Rs. 765.59
million in preceding finandial year, representing 43 42% growth in
revenue and 40.68% growth in net profit, on consolidated basis,
Earming before interest, tax and depreciabon (EBITDA) is
Rs, 2,304.43 million a compared to Rs. | 473.00 milion n
preceding financial year, represerting 56.44% growth, on
consolidated bass,

Crwverall, the company is on a strong growth path and fts efforts to
improve  efficiency, productivity and  profitability will improve
overall returns,

Segment wise Operational Performance:
MTO Operations:

The Company has eamed revenue of Rs, 3,373, 19 million from
MTO operation as compared to Rs. 2,590.90 million during
preceding financial year, an increase of 39.1 1%, The operating
profit from MTO division was Rs. 347,09 million as compared to
Rs, 228.58 million during preceding financial year, an increase of
51.84%. MTO operation has contributed around 65% to the total
revenue of the Company.

CF5/1CD Operations:

The Campany has eamed revence of Rs. | 482,01 milion fram
CFSACD operations as compared to Rs. 947.54 million during
preceding financial year, an increase of 56.41%. The operating
profit from CFS / ICD operations was Rs. 831.23 milion as
compared to Rs, 444, 12 million dunng preceding financal vear, an
increase of 87, 1 3%, CF5 /1CD operations has contnbuted around
28% tothe total revenue of the Company.

Equipment Hiring Operation:

The Company has eamed revenue of Rs. 494.91 million from
Equiprnent Hiring operation as compared to Rs. 261,60 million
during preceding financial year, an increase of B9.19%. The
operating prafit fram Equiprent Hirng operation was Rs, 184.37
million as compared to Rs. 10522 milion during preceding
financial year, an increase of 75.22%. Equipment Hiring operation
has contributed around | 0% to the tatal revenue of the Company,

SIGNIFICANT INITIATIVES

Joint Venture with Infrastructure Leasing and Financial Services
Ltd for Ship Yard Project

With a view to explore the opportunity in the Ship Building and
Repair fard business, your Company has entered into joint venture
arrangerment with Infrastructure Leasing and Fnancial Services Lid
for setting up a ship building and repair yard project in and around
Mana Laga / Mota Laija, Taluka Mandhi, The said project will be
carried out through a special purpose vehicle / Joint Venture
Company (VC) viz, Gujarat Integrated Martime Complex Put.
Ltd.

Joint Venture with Hind Terminals Pvt. Ltd. for setting up of ICD
| CFSat Indore, Bangalore, Nagpur and Hyderabad locations

Another significant inibatve taken by your company was for
expansion of its Container Freight Station / Inland Container Depot
business by entening into long-term strategic alliance agresment
with Hind Terminats Pvt. Ltd. Your Company in aliance with Hind
Terminals will set up Container Freight Station / Inland Container
Depot at Indore, Bangalore, Hyderabad and Magpur and at such
ather locations on mutually agreed terms. The proposed alliance
will help your Company to cater to the needs of India's external and
ntermal trade with cost-effective and efficient logistics salutions.

Joint Venture with Container Corporation of India Limited
{COMNCOR)

As reported in last year's annual report, the progect for setting up
of Container Freight Station [ Inland Container Diepot at Dadri,
Greater Mowda for catening to the comtainer traffic of Morth India, 5
under implementation,

Warehouse Infrastructure

A reported in last year's annual report, your Company's plan to
set Up its own warehouse infrastructure at Goa. Indore, Haosur
and Hyderabad are at developmental stage, Your Company has
recently commenced warehousing operabons at Bhiwand) and
also commenced construction for setting up  warehousing
facilities at Goa.

APPROPRIATIONS

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend @ 25%
(Rs, 2.50 per equity share of Rs. 10/~ each) to the members of the
Cornpary. The Dwidend, if approved by the members at the
ensuing Annuzl General Meeting, will absort a sum of Bs, 65.41
million incleding dividend distribution tax,

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

During the year under review, four companies were formed as
subsidiaries viz. AGL Ports Pvt. Ltd., AGL Projects Pvt. Lid., AGL
Terrninals Pvt. Ltd, and AGL Warehousing Pvt. Ltd. for undertzking
projects relating to port developrment, terminal  handling,
warehousing and infrastructure development. The Company has
dlso formed a subsidiary viz. Allcargo Logistic Park Pyt Ltd, for
undertaking ICD / CF5 project at Dadn in a joint venture with
Caortainer Corporaton of India Limited.

our Company acquired 5 1% equity stake of Ecu Line Switzerland
Ltd, through its wholly owned subsidiary, Ecu Hold MY “our
Caornpany also acquired |00% equity stake of Ecu MNordic OY-
Fintand, Ecu Line Mordic-Morway and Ecu Mordic AB-Sweden,
thraugh its wholly owned subsidiary, Ecu Hold MW

The stand-alone audited financial staterments of all subsidiaries
operating in India and Cwverseas are not attached to this repert in
view of exemption received u/fs 212(8) of the Companies Act,
1956 fram the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India.
The statement pursuant to Section 2132 of the Companies Act,
| 956 relating to the subsidiary companies alongwith a staterment of
firancial highlights of subsicharies operations providing relevant
details are attached and form part of this Annwal Repart,

As per the Listing Agreement with the Stodk Exchanges,
consolidated financial staterments prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standard AS-21, are attached with the financial
staternents of the Company and form part of this Annual Report.

The Company will make available the Annual Accounts of the
subsidiary companies and related information to any member of
the Company who may be interested in obfaining the same,
The annual accounts of the subsidiary compames will also be kept
open for inspection by any investor at the registered office of the
Carmpany,

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN 2006

As reported In last year's Annual Report, your Company had
implermented ‘Allcarge Employee Stock Option Plan 2008' for the
beneft of employees of the Company and its subsidianes. In
accordance with the provisons of the sad ESOF Scheme, the
options granted to employess of the Company were partly vested
on January |2, 2008, During the year under review, the Company
has issued and allotted 3,686 equity shares of Rs, |0 each against
options exercised by the emplovees of the Company.

Disclosures pursuant to Clause |2 of the SEBI {Employes Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)
Guidelines, 1999, relating ta the Carmpany's ESOP Scherme as on
Decernber 31, 2008 are attached and form part of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND LISTING OF SHARES

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed and traded in
compulsarily demateralized form at the Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited and the Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited, Your
Company has paid the Annual Listing fees and Annual Custody fees
to the Stock Exchanges and Depositories up-to-date,

Pursuant to ssue of further equity shares under the ESOF Scheme,
the total paid-up capital of the Company has increased to
Rs, 223,636, 10 divided into 22,363,681 | equity shares of Rs, 10/
each fully paid.

DIRECTORS

In accardance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and
that of Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs, Arathi Shetty
and Mr. Kaiwan Kalyaniwalla, Directors of the Company, retire by
rofation at this Anmual General Meeting. Being eligible, they offered
themsehves for re-appointmert, The Board recommends their re-
appointment.

In accordance with the provisons of the Scherme of Arrangement
entered with Transindia Freight Services Pvt. Ltd. for de-merger of
the Project & Equipment Division in favour of the Company,
Mr. Urnesh Shetty was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company w.e.f January 22, 2008 and Whole-time Director w.e.f,
February [, 2008.

Leoolsng at the entrepreneurial skill and experience of Mr. Umesh
Shetty in managing the logistic business, vour Board has nominated
Mr. Urnesh Shetty as non-executive director on the Board of Ecu
Hald MM, the wholly owned subsidiary of the Company engaged
m the business of logistc service prowvider across the globe,
Pursuant to such development, Mr. Umesh Shetty has resigned as
Director of the Company w.ed December 31, 2008, Your Board
places on record its deep appreciation for the valuable services and
gudance given during s tenure as Directar.

Brief resumé of Mrs. Arathi Shetty and Mrs, Kaiwan Kalyaniwalla as
required in terms of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the
Stack Exchanges, is included m the Corporate Governance Report
attached and form part of this Annual Repart,

AUDITORS

M5, Appan & Lokhandwala Assooates, Chartered Accountants,
Mumbai, the Statutory Auditors of the Company, retire at the
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting and are eligible far re-
appointment. The Beoard recommends re-appointment of
M. Appan & Lokhandwala Assocates as Smtutory Auditors of
the Company for the current financial year and to fix their
remuneration.
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company has not accepted
any depaosits within the meaning of Section 584 of the Campanies
Act, 1956 and rules made thereunder.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to ection 2| 7284} of the Companies Act, 1936, the
Directors confirm that:

(a} in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable
accounting standards had been followed along with proper
explanabon refating to matenal departures;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting palices and
applied them consistently ard made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at December
31, 2008 and of the profit ofthe Company for the year ended
on that date;

(c) the Directors had taken proper and suffident care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
withthe prowvisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Caornpany and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularties; and

(d) the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a gaing
concern basis,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

our Campany is committed to adhere to and maintain the highest
standards of Corporate Govermance as prescribed by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India from time to time, Report
on Corporate Governance as shpulated under Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges attached and form
part of this Annual Report,

The declaration regarding compliance with the Code of Conduct
prescribed by the Company for Directors and Management
Personnel farms part of report on Corporate Governance.

The requisite certiicate from Mf& Mehta & Mehta, Practising
Campany Secretaries, canfirming compliances with the provisions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49 is annexed to
the Report on Corporate Governance,

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

“four Company is focused on education, health & sooal well being
of the sogety, This year your Company has contributed towards
construction of a Primary School Building at Village Koproli jointly
with Gramn Shikshan Sarniti, Raigad Zilla Parishad. This building has
been sanctioned by the Government under 'Sarva Shiksha Abhiyan'
Scheme. The Schood Building comprises of seven dass rooms and

ane cultural hall having RCC structure with all relevant amenities,
electrical installation, plumbing work & sanitary armangement.

Your Campany has cantinued ts sponscrship to Akanksha Centre
as mentioned inthe ast year's report.

Apart from these initsatives, your Company also participates in and
contnbutes to the vanous Charttable Trusts with prime focus on
furthering education, health and other noble causes for under
privileged class ofthe Sodety,

PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORFTION AND
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Information as required under Section 2171 ¥ &) of the Companies
Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Disclosure of particutars in the
report of Board of Directors) Rules, 1 988, are set out in Annexure §
attached tothis report.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

In terms of the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956, read with the Compames (Particulars of Employees)
Fules, 1975 as amended, the narmes and other particutars of the
employees are reguired to be set out in the Directors’ Report.
However, as per the provisions of Section 219(1) (B)(v) of the
Companies Act, 1956, the Annual Repart excluding the sforesaid
information s being sent to all the members of the Company and
athers entitled thereto. A member, who is interested in obtalning
such parbculars, may wnte 1o the Company Secretary at the
registered office ofthe Company.
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gratitude for the valuable support and co-cperation extended
during the year by the Government of India, Governments of
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Vendors and Service Providers,

“four Board alsowishes to place on record their appreciation for the
dedicaton and comrmitrnent shown by the employees at all levels
wiha have contnbuted ta the success of your Company,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

SHASHI KIRAM SHETTY
Cheirmnan & Managing Director
Place: Murmbai
Diate : April 30, 2009

Annexure |

Conservation of Energy:

Even though operations of the Company are not energy intensive,
vour Company has abways strived to optimize energy
consurmption.

Power and fuel consumption

i For tha Year I_:c:r 151& ‘T&ar
Particulars Ended Ended
301022008 300122007

Electricity
Through Purchases

Purchased Linits 2,203,802 1,315,278
Total Amourt (Rs.) 15,827,817 7,654,557
Rate / Unit (Rs.) 7.18 5.82
Through Diesel Generator

Units Generated 322498 15,989
Tetal Ameunt (Rs.) 3816838 224,629
Cost / Unit (Rs.) |1.84 [ .24
Technology Absorption:

Tour Company believes in total customer satisfacbon through
process enhancerments and constant innovation in its senvices, Your
Cormpany's [T system provides support to the business at all stages
viz., sales. planning, operations and documentation, accounts and
custormer service, |t helps to enforce procedures, maintain an
error-free workflow process and offer online tracking of shipments.
The systern provides custormers access to detalled Tracking and
Tracing of shipments through our website and also through our
Interactive Vioice Response System (IVRS),

Your company has an internal 1T division that caters to all
technology and process related requirements of each business
vertical, IT is seen as a business enabler and your company has
made investments to develop customized solubons that mest
unigue business requirements for each business vertical,

MTO

A custornized application has been deployed at all branches of the
Cornpany. This application has an in-built CRM capabiliies and is
used to send email updates such as loading confirmation, stuffing
confirmation, cargo status updates, carpo amval notices to
cur external customers, Additionally, a sell servce portal

(ALLOMLIMEY has been launched in Mumbai to provide
customers access to key information at their finger tips. This portal
can be accessed via the company's carparate website, Customers
can access export details ke shipment tracking, export challan
copies, draft bill of lading, outstanding staternent, brokerage
cheque alerts etc. On the import front, HBL and cargo arrival

natice can be accessed by our customers,

CFS/ICD

A tailor-made product handles all the aperational activities at our
CFS operations at |MPT, Chennai and Mundra, All Import & Export
operation entries are captured in this system including customs
documentation and related formaliies. A genenc track and trace
facility is also provided on your company's website to track
container status, Additionally, an “Extranet” faclity has been setup
as avalue added service to allow select customers to access various
reports in a secured manner, The CF5 system is also capable of
generating LIMN-EDIFACT messages (like CODECO) which can be
sent to shipping ines,

Equipment Hiring

The Equipmert Hiring division uses a custamized system for flest
management and maintenance activities. The Operations module
i used to manage fleet operations nght from creating quotations,
contract till tracking entire cycle of equipment Hire Out / LR, job.
The Garage module takes care of engineenng centre achvibies,
spare part procurement and lnventory. Your company has also
mstalled GPFRS enabled tracking for all the trailers to provide real

tirne visibility.

Project Cargo

The PCMS system designed for Project Cargo is used to handle
vendor management and custormer managernent activities for each
project that i undertaken, The application alss has a web interface
to provide status visibility to our clients.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

{Rs. in Million)
Farthe Year  Far the Year

Particulars Ended Ended
31.12.2008 31122007
Total Foreign Exchange Cutgo 505.54 235.67
Tatal Foreign Exchange Eamed 34775 248.29

Fy.
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Annexure ||

Disclosures pursuant to Clause 12 of the SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase

Scheme) Guidelines, 1999

Pursuant to the applicable requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Schame) Guidelines, | 999 (“the SEBI Guidelines™), your Carmpany has framed and instituted Allcargs Employves Steck Option Plan 2006
to attract, retain, motvate and reward its emplovess and to enable them to partiopate in the growth, development and success of the Company.
Your Company granted stock options to be adjusted for the subsequent bonus issue prior to its Intial Public Offering of equity shares, to its
permanert ermployees, The Campany also granted stock options to few of the permanent employees of its foreign subsidiaries post Initial Public

CHffering atvarying numbers depending upon therr grades.

The fodlowang tabde sets forth the particulars of stock options granted under Allcargo Employee Stock Option Plan 2006 as on December 3 |, 2008

Particulars

Gross options granted

Pricing formula

Ciptions vested
Options exercsed

The total number of equity shares arising as a result of

exerose of options

Options lapsed/expired

Waration of terms of options

Money realized by exercise of optians
Total number of options in force

Employee-wise detals of options granted to;
(i} Senior Managerial Personnel

(i) Any ather emploves recening a grant m any
one year of option amounting to 5% or more
of the options granted during the year.

(i} Mentified emplayees who were granted option,
during any one year, equal to or exceeding | %
of the issped capital (excluding outstanding
warrants and conversions) of the Company at
the time of grant.

Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to ssue of
shares on exerdse of option calculated in accordance
with Accounting Standard (AS 20 ‘Earning Per Share')

Difference, if any, between the employee compensation
cost calculated wsing the intrinsic value of stock options
and the ermploves compensation cast recognized i the
fair value of the options had been used and the iImpact
of this diffierence on profits and EPS of the Company,

Series |(Pre-Listing)
38.300

The stock aptions granted were priced
at Rs. [0/~ per option being
the face vakse of equity share.

7721

2977

2.977
18,477
il
23770

|6,B46

As per staternent attached

il

il

Fs.40.18

The Company has charged a surm of
Rs, 1,555,577/ being the fair value
of aptions granted under ESOP 2006
{5eres 1) for the year ended
Decernber 31, 2008,

Series |I{Post Listing)

13,000

The stock options granted were priced
at Rs. 10/~ per option being
the face value of equity share,

3.675

il

il
2,500
il
il

10,500

As per statement attached

il

[Nl

Rs. 40.16

The Company has charged a sum of
Rs. 1,642,634 being the fair value
of options granted under ESOP 2006
{%enes I} for the year ended
December 3|, 2008,

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008

Particulars aeries |{Pre-Listing) series ||{Post Listing)

Weighted-average exercise prices and weighted-average

fair values of options shall be diclosed separately for Mot Apphicable Mot Applicable

options whose exercise price either equals or excesds

or 1 less than the market price of the stock:

Drescription of the method and significant assumpticns

used during the year to estimate fair values of options,

including the following wekghted average information:

(i Risk-free interest rate 7,205 7.00%

{i)  Expected life 4 years 4 vears

{iiiy Expected volatility Nil 50%

{iv] Expected dividend yield |.5% |.5%

{+¥) Price of the underlying share in market at the time Rs. 685.88 Rs. 786.95
of option grant.

Person-wise detalls of options granted to senior managenal persons of the Comparyy:

Mame of Senior Managerial Personnel Mumber of options granted | Mumber of equity s issuable upan
Mr. Ashit Desas 500 500

Mr. Jatin Chokshi 500 500

[r. Marayan Shankar® 500 500

Mr. Pramaod Fokate 500 500

Mrs. Shantha Martin D'scuza 500 500

* Resigned during the year

Person-wise details of options granted to senior managenal persons of foreign subsidiaries of your Company,

Mame of Senior Managerial Personnel Mumber of options granted Mumber of equity shares Issuable upon
f options

Mr. Raymond Yan Achteren® 2,500 2,500

M. Mark Stoflelen 2,500 4,500

Mr. Kris De"Witte 2,500 1,500

Mr. Semon Bajada 2,500 2,500

Mr. Franky Van Doren 000 | 000

[Ir. Raymond Yap {000 | 000

Mr. Hendrik Smuts 1,000 1,000

* Resigned during the year

Pursuant to the SEBI guidelines, the excess of the rmarket price of the undertying equity shares as of the date of grant over the exercise
price of the option, including upfront payments, if any, is to be recognized and amortized on a straight line basis over the vesting pericd,
Accordingly, the Company has debited a sum of Rs.3, 198,209 to the profit and loss account for the year ended December 31, 2008, as
empoyes compensation cost,

The equity shares ssued and allotted under the Allcargo Employee Stock Option Plan 2006 of the Company are pari-passu in all respacts
including dividerd with the existing equity shares ofthe Company.

\ ALLCARGO GLOBAL LOGISTICS LIMITED



Management Discussion

And Analysis

Economic Overview

Diespite the first sipns of econormic tumarcund, it may be some time yet before we notice any real
effect. The conditions that normally foretell an end to recession, low interest rates and falling
inflation are now present across the globe, and most of the major economies have unveiled plans
to provide additional economic stimulus via increased government spending and tax cuts, Stock
markets, oo, have ralied from the recent lows, adding to the scent of sprng in the air. et,
although there are a number of indicators implying recovery is at hand, most of the hard data of
late has been dismal, notably in terms of global manufacturing, There is hope for an improvement
in the economy, but the uncertaintes are still pervasive enough to warrant caution on that fromt,
This ghobal downturn has cerfainly been severe in terms of its impact and unusually long; the
Linted States (L.5.) tends to lead the cycle.

The global economy is expected to contract by 1.3% in 2009 {Source! IMF) in the deepest post-
World War || recession by far. Growth is setto re-emerge to around .99 in 2010 {Source: IMF),
a pace more sluggish than average recoveries because of ingering straing in the financial sector,
The tumaround depends on efforts by governments to nurse the global finanaal sector back to
health by cleaning up banks' balance sheets, and on additional fiscal and monetary poficies in
advanced econamies. The LLS, remains at the epicenter of the crisis and it is critical that the LS.
authorties address mounting towic debt and uncertainty about banks solvency. The LLS.
Econamy is forecasted to contract by 2.8% in 2009, with no growth predicted in 2010 (Source:
IMF); as the ravages of a credit squeeze, falling house and equity prces and high levels of
uncertainty play out, Meanwhile, the Euro zone economy will shrink by 4.2% in 2009 and fall 3
further 0.4% in 2010 (Source: IMF). In Asia, harder hit by a drop in global trade than by the
financial crisis, [apan's recession would be far deeper than previously thought, while China's
econcmy will grow ata much siower pace,

There is no disagreement on the fact that the orisis is deep and that even if a recavery of sorts cn
be staged, itwill take trme and global businesses need to make paradigm shifts in what they do and
theway they do it to adapt to this new economy. Also, this preparedness needs to be approached
keeping in mind that things are likely to get much worse before getting better.

Though, on the ground, it may not look. India s one of the few bright spotsin a global ecanamy,
W are forecasted to grow at 5% 6% this year (Source: RBI), which is more than we averaged in
the 1990s, Yes, the effecs of recession are being felt; the stocks are down, unemployment is
spiking, the real-estate market s down. But, India boasts an unlikely growth driver all its own: a

wvast majority of the population whose Incomes have rsen enough in recent years to oreate

powerful dermands for basic goods and serwoes. But what's surprising is the resilience of this
cohort, and the extent to which it has counterbalanced the global credit orsis and the slurmp in the
global export econormy of which India is a key player. But it is abways easier to grow from a poor
base, sothe fact that India 1s not yet a major economy is an advantage in a downturn. Such a large
population subsisting at so low an economic base is a powerful econamic drver i it can be
mobilized and for India this group s preving reslient to the prevailing headwinds n the global
economy, It's kind of a self-sustaining process, There's a huge under penetration of maost

commodities and services, and we have enough people at the battorm expenencing enough of an
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increase in income to sustain growth. 50 even as middle-class
consumption wanes in India, demand for basic poods and services
rernains strong thanks to aspinng consurmers, rmany still tied to the
farms, who spend their rupees an essentials like soap, medicine
and the shaes and clathing that they wear ta work. Ifwe go back to
the economic textbooks, they will tell you that the poorer you are,
the stronger your propensity to consume, The contrast with China,
Asi's other econormic gant, s stark. Domestic demand makes up
three guarters of the Indian ecanarmy, compared with less than half
far China, which i why, relative to East Asian economies, India i
somewhat insulated from the global trade slowdown, Ching has
been highly focused an the export market, while Inds=n businesses
have been highly focused on the domestic market, and their
exparts have been incidental. That makes India, mare than others,
a rmaster af s cwn destiny.

A major uncertainty in India in 2009 may not be the global
econamy but domestic poliics. Given India's election regulations
which curtail the government's ability to enact significant policies
during this interim period, it could lead to some mmediately
required steps not being undertaken when speedy, creatve action
is the order of the day. A change in govemment would likely result
in some further slowing of certain projects that are already running
behind schedule. And elections in India can be tricky,

Industry Overview

Logstics is a LS 4,000 billion industry today worldwide, and India
contributes only LIS £ 50 bilkon to this. The Indian logistics business
is one of the fastest growing sectors today and is estirnated to grow
by 60% by 2012 (Source: ClI). This indicates that the logistics
industry will witness substantial growth in the nest two vears.
Sectors like manufacturing and retail, which are currently feeling the
effects of the slowdown, are expected to return to normal seon
and further boost the logistics industry. The sbowdown has an
indirect effect on all the players, While capital expenditure  facing
curbs, the solution hes in commg out with iInnovative products.

Precisely, Innovative business models have propelled a paradigm
shift in the Indian logistics industry. A recent survey placed |ndia
second to China in terms of the growth potential of the logistics
sector, Indi's high rank can be attributed to the fact that Indian firms
are implementing pioneering business madels, which are driving an
Increase i the wolume and trade, However, the pace of
implementation has been relathely slow,

Mevertheless, the industry has worked to overcome the challenges
and keep pace with the growing industrial and consumer sectors
over the past 7 to 8 years. A key drver of the grawth has been the
preference given to organized, consolidated service providers
rather than constituent suppliers, This growth and development

has been further fuslled by significant investments by private equity
players, resulting in the scaling up of the core businesses, Changing
government polices on taxation and regulaton have alsc played an
Impartant role in this process,

The maturing of the logstics iIndustry m any courtry s reflected
the increasing walue that higher degrees of specialization and
service differentiation generate. An interesting nowel form of
integration is emerging in the Indian logestics sector. A few logistics
players focused an one segment of business are now venturing into
other areas of logistics' as well trucking, warehousing: with an aim
to take the combined bouquet of these services to their clients and
derive higher retums out of synergies.

As the Indian logstics sector becomes more integrated and
competitive globally, multinational companies would explors the
opportunity to cutsource their entire logistics services to India, with
an airn to limit administrative burden. However, given the diverse
nature of logistics services and hence the capabilities required to
deliver an integrated propostion, only a handful of players can
reasonably target this market individually. As only few ofthe logistics
companies in India now offer a complete range of services; they are
bound 1o benefit, This will surely bring in more business
oppartunities, Most other players will have to leverage packets of
expertise of best-in-class players in each indiwidual segment to pull
together an integrated proposition,

The currert slowdawn is an weal tme to rework our practices,
implement newer cost-effective models and introduce new
standards. Exorbitant bogstic cost in India s primarily responsible
for making goods uncompetitive and further ercdes
competitivenass, Grawth in muli-modal transpart is ane of the
criscial aspects for reducng the logistics cost of Indian trade, As
trade in manufactured cargo increases, there would be rising
dermand for multi-rmodal  services, Investment in gquality
infrastriscture will reduce overall costs and increase the system's
efficiency,

Locking at the details, Volume growth has been affected and freight
rates have dedlined steadily in India, over the lastfew months. India
has registered de-growth in the contaner trade volume, With
reduced trade, container markets have corroded considerably.
The short-term corrections in the container volumes were mainly
driven from the fact that industries/companies were re-aligning
their inventory levels, But with sustained consumer demand and
reduced inventory liquidation, the container trade is set to regain its
mamentum, [n India. the Whalesale Price Index (W B L) has seena
gradual drop, whereas the Consumer Price Index {C. B 1) has
remained stable during this pericd. This basically supports that the
dormestic consurmption is still dnving the Indian economy, creating a
wide span of opportunities in distribution, The Indian logstics
industry is, therefore, poised for a significant leap forward in the

coming years. With the recent dips in diesel as well as Ayiation
Turhine Fuel prices, things look a bit mare stable from the logistics
poirt of view, Also, as India contnuous to grow at a good GOP
rate, this is bownd to at least remain constant,

But recession has also provided an opportunity on other fronts as
well. As manufactuning levels reduced. the volume for less than
container load has increased, as companies now find it difficulty to
directly ship full cortainer loads. This has definitely benefited the
Less than Cortainer Lead (L. € L) players who are inlo
consolidation services, Recession has also severely impacted the
freight rates, which are at an all-time kow now, This decrease will
again give a boost to containerization trade in India. In totality, for
the Indian bogistics industry, recession seems to be just what the
doctor ordered for,

Logisties and infrastructure development are going to play a wital
role in the economic development of India in future. India being a
developing nation, thers s a tremendous opportunity for
Infrastructure projects, Typically, India's infrastructure presents an
overwhelming challenge to the rapid expansion of industries, with
the country's weak nfrastructure resulting m significant cost
escalations, There is a greater need to foster the economic growth
by augmenting investments, particularty in infrastructure, This
irmvestment woauld create a demand for specialized equipments and
will result in the movement of heavy cargo, The Government onits
part has contributed significartty by making available cheap finances
for the infrastructure progects.

Sorme of the major Infrastructure developrment projects that wll
significantly benefit the lopistics industry in India include:

*  Dedicated rail freight cornidor connecting Delhi to Murmbal
and Delhito Kelkata (total kength: 2, 700kms),

*  The Morth-5outh East-WWest corridor road project will
connect the Meorth and South, and East and West through an
expressway (total length: & 700 kms).

*  Port Expansion: The |2 major port capacity will be inoreased
to 100, B tones and the | B7 minor ports will be increased
to 573.5mtones by 2012,

Alsa, with the reduced prces of raw matenals; namely steel,
infrastructure projects have now become even cheaper and viable,
as the set-up costs have been reduced. There is urgency in the air
ter expand physical infrastructure in power, Ol & gas explorations,
refireries, ports; with huge imvestments being made and planned to
enhance these fadlities.

Ireclia i & power starved nation, which makes setting up power
plants a good opportunity. Also, with an overall global emphasis of
renevwable sources of energy, many rew wind farms are being set-
up in India. With the signing of the n-deal, many nuclear power
plants are expected to be set up across India, Refinery sectar is sull

grawing, with newer qil blocks being offered by the Government
for exploration. As both power and refinery sectors, clubbed
topether forrm a substantial part for deployment of equipments as
well as movement of Owver Dimensional Cargo, specialized
eouipment renting companies, with expertise in project logistics,
woidld benefit directly.

The logistics industry in India is evoling rapidly and itis the interplay
of infrastructure and new types of services, which will define
whether the industry is able to help its custormers provide effective
services and reduce their logistics costs,

Business Overview

The year 2008 was alandmark year in the progress of Allcargo, On
one hand, we witnessed a substantal growth in our revenues and
bottarm line: on the ather hand, we also had to brace ourselves
against the global recession, Our foresight in predicting the
approaching slowdown, made us better prepared to forfify
ourselves against this downtum, thereby minimizing the impact
and contineing our growth jourmey

Multimedal Transport Operations (M.T.0.)

ear 2008 saw significant swings in the container and cargo
volumes in India. The year opened with a momentous upturm in
the volumes and continued its upward jourmney for the first three
quarters of 2008, But with the impact of recession being felt in the
last quarter, the year dosed at volumes rmore or less egual to the
opening levels,

Freight rates during this period fell to their lowest level ever. This
provided us with a significant opportunity and negotiating power,
considering our geographical reach and presence, to leverage our
volurmes and relations with shipping fines to get better freight rates,
The recessionary scenanio also gave us a chance to optimize our
giobal reach and benefits that can be derived frorm within our
netwark,

In 2008, we increased cur presence in India by expanding via our
franchisees. On the global front. ECU Line went a step ahead, by
not only consclidating its presence in an indivadual country by
opening new offices, but also by sefting up operations in new
countries where we did not have a presence. The trade lanes being
operated by us also registered an significant increase.

Project Logtstics
Qur Project Logistics business, fram having just started off a few
years back, grew exponentially. making us the market leaders,
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which further makes us believe that we are well equipped to take
on the challenge of competition, During this penod, we alsa
acquired spedalized equipments for the division, so as to facilitate
this groweth, \We have a healthy order book that is executable over
the pericd of next |2-18 months, In 2008, the ambits of this
division widened to include all types of logistic solutions, via multiple
mades of transportation. Some of the noteworthy projects
completed by us include the mavernent of a Generator Stator and
its accessories from Hakdia Port, Kolkata to Patna, Bihar, using an
optimal mix of vanous multimedal transpartation solutions, which
also incuded moverment via waterways along with road
transportation, Moreover, the Project logistics division created a
record forthe kongest distance, a rail coach has been transported by
road. This was as a part of one of the largest Metro Rail Logistics
Projects for providing Turnkey Services induding transportation for
424 Delhi Metro Coaches, via air as well as surface transportation,

O a year-an-year basis, Indian Revenues for the MTO segment
reported 2 growth of 40% whereas our profit before tax & interest
increased by 51 %. Today, our LCL Consclidation business is the
second largest in the world, whereas our Project Logistics business
Is the largest in India,

CF5/ICD/Warehousing Operations

Cortaner volumes in India remained sluggish in 2008. The impact
of & showwdonan weas esadent from the fact that India registered a de-
growth in its container volurnes on a in Ha liza basis. Mone the less,
the valurmes have now stabilized, with inftial reports suggesting an
increase inthe March 2009 valumes.

The last quarter of 2008 also saw the dwell times at all the
Contaner Freght Stations (CFS.'s) reaching their highest levels, as
clients considered it benefical to store the cargo in the CF5s rather
than clearing them, thereby differing the payment of custom duties
and optimizing their warehousing cost. This resulted in our CFSs
being fully utilized, thereby positively impacting our revenues. Now
with the dwell imes at their previous levels, availatility of storage
area has increased, thus providing us with an opportunity to now
cater to a wider range of dients, whom we earlier could not, due to
uravailability of capacity.

Cwr facilities at Chennai and Mundra completed one year
of successful operations in 2008, Considering the
substantial capacity utilization at Chennal CFS. we also
completed the phase || expansion of the facility, so as to
meet the increased space requirements. We also enhance
our capacity at JMPT CF5 to accommaodate the increased
volumes from our valued chients. Cur prime location and
easy connectivity to the jetty contributed strongly to the
optimum capacity utilizations at both the above locations,

Cur Inland Contamer Depot (.C.0) at Indore also commenced
operations in March 2009, hghlighting our foray in the 1CD
segrment of business.

As mentioned before, Allcargo has also entered into a long term
strategic alliance agreement with Samsara Group for setting up and
running Container Freight Statons and Internal Container Depaots
at [ndore, Hyderabad, Magpur and Bangalore. This along with cur
|aint Venture with COMNCOR to set up a CF5 at Dadn; makes us
ane of the prominent players in the Indian CFSACD market, with &
Fan-India presence.

On a year-on-year basis, Revenues far this segment reported a
growth of 60% whereas our profit before fax & interest
increased by 87%. Currently, we are among the top two private
players in Comainer Freight Station Logistics sectarin India.

Last year also saw us expanding the horizon of services by setting
up our Warehousing amm which has helped us get closer to
becoming a total logstics service provider for our dients, This
business is a key part of our strategy to increase foos on the
Dormestic Logistics Sector,

Equipment Hiring Division

The equipment division grew rapidly in 2008, primanly
because of two major reasons: our constant focus on service
quality and customer satisfaction; and the fact that by virtue of
aperating across businesses in the logistics space we are able to
provide customers with Total Logistics Sclutions for their

requirements apart from pure equipment leasing,

Last year forms the rmost important year in the growth of the
equipment division, Mot only did we expand rapidly during this
penad by significantly increasing our fleet strength, but also by
achieving cent percent utilization for all the equipments,

Infrastructure sectorn as such is being banked upon by all to help
overcome this recession, This makes this segrment recession prood,
thereby opening a pandora of opportunities for spedalized

equipment rertal cormpanies.

With an investrment of over RBs. | bn, we acouired rnew cranes,
masty in the higher tonnage range. We are currently one of the
anly few players in Indea who owe cranes in capaaties greater than
500 tons. All these stratepic investrnents have helped us
consofidate our position in the specalized equipment rental
business in India,

In 2008, we zlso expanded our presence geographically, by setting
up a base in Middle East to cater to the increasing demand of cranes
there, mainly driven by the boom inthe infrastructure progects,

As for the other equipments, namely trailers. forklifts and reach
stackers, we strengthen our posiions in the respective segrments,

mainly by providing value-added services and entering inta long
terrn contracts, thereby enabling us to secure our future revenues.

With a huge fleet of equiprments, an option is to also look at trading
opportunities that are available, If profiable opportunites are
available, it would be beneficial to explore this avenue,

On a year-on-year basis, Revenues for this segment reported a
growth of 104% whereas our profit before tax & interest increased
by 75%. We are among the top two private plavers in Specialized
Equipment keasing in the country.

In the first fesw maonths of 2009, where we have been responding
tex the impacts of the global turmoil. we have simultanecusly beer
continuing to make significant strides in our businesses,

To condude, the meltdown has affected our customers across
geographies and industries, Most of them now want cost takeouts,
capital corversation and our support in optimizing their busmess
processes. We hope this would lead to their inocreased
engagermerts with usin thelr transfarmation pourmey,

Outlook [ Opportunity

The global economy is expectad to battom out in 2009 and revive
in 2010, with India expected to register 6.5% growthin 2010, The
decline in grawth in manufacturing is a cause for concern that we
have been flagging for some tme now due to its multplier effects
on the growth of services sector. Given that we are aware of the
way things are changing around us, and the cpportunities available
in the Indian Logistics sectar. we need to adapt quickly while
planning cur respanse, Also, while there s no doubt that this will be
a tough time, it gves us an opportunity to focus further on aspects
of our business which might have not gotten our full attention in
tirnes af Growth. The management is taking the necessary action
te re-align the prorities and foous.

In crisis like the current situation, comes along with oppertunities to
refuel and revitalize the econarmy. As part of our strategy 1o sustain
growth and consalidate our globsl operations, the company will
foray into new verticals or enter into strategic joint ventures/te-ups
that are mutually benefical to both the parties.

Alongside, the company will continue to re-engineer its internally
process, to beat the down trend. The roll out of a Pan-
arganization ERP salution is the first step in this regards, Focus an
impraving customer services is an impartant aspect, with an aim
to retain the clients. The ongoing Total Quality Management
(T} programs would go a long way in assisting this, Besides,
we have invested in our front end to maintain customer
satisfaction. Building our Client base and leveraging synergy is
also another area that is further under focus. Client referrals and

testimonials would go a long way in increasing the customer
base, Mot to forget, rationalizing and streamlining costs would
significantly impact the profitability of the crganizaton. Cver the
past few manths, collective effarts have been put into this activity,
ta analyze the scope and areas where rationalization i possible
and implementing the same. Initial results of this have been very
favorable, but the real extent of the said task will be visible only n
the second guarter of 2009, But the most important tool to
outturm the recession is to 'Innovate Daily', and this trait has now
been imbibed in all the employees of the organization, This
inturn will have direct impact on the productivity, efficences and
effectiveness of the organization.

The good side of this recession is that it opens up various avenues
ta grow increganically,. Currently, companies are available at fair
prices, which provide us, because of our strong balance sheet, to
scout for such value propositions which are synergistic to our
enrsting business and strategy.

Itis imperative totake nall bad news with a positive frame of mind.
We need to stay energized and hungry to be able to weather thess
times and emerge stronger than before. To sum up, there s an
interesting quote which comes tomind,

“Life &5 like a gnndstone--whether it grinds you down or polishes
wou up depends on what you're made of"

Risks and Concerns

The Company is operating in an environment that is becoming
mare and more cormpetitive. As it gets into the expansion mode, it
is poised to exploit several new opportunities. The Company
ensures that the risks it undertakes are commensurate with better
METUIrms.,

Economic Risk

Our business is substantially affected by the prevailing global
economic conditions.

Factors that may adversely affect the global economy and m tum
our business include slowdown in the rate of infrastructure
development, inflation, changes in tax, trade, fiscal and monetary
polices, scarcity of credit etc. However, given the estimate of at
least 5% growth in the Indian economy til 2010, planned
investment in the infrastructure sector in the Bleventh Five Year
Plan (2007-201 2) ta the tune of approxdmately Rs. 2 millian crore,
rising per capita disposable lncome, burgeoning consumer
spending, growth i EXIM traffic and increasng cutsourcing of the
logistics functicn by companies, we do not expect to be significantly
affected by this risk,
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Competition Risk

This risk arises from more players wanting a share in the same fie.
Like in most other industries, opportunity brings with itself
competiion. We face different levels of competition in each
segmert, from domestic as well as multinational companies.
However, Allcargo has established strong brand gaodwill in the
rmarket and a strong foothold in the entive logistics value spectrum.
We are the second largest LCL Consolidator in the world, with
around |39 own offices across 59 countries and 198 agents and
franchisees in | 30 countries, Our wide geographical presence and
retwork across the globe helps us generate higher volumes. We
are warking on a blueprint to consolidate our position as the
market leader and enter newer segrments and offer our custarmers
"a ane-stop-shap” in the logistics arena, We have built a strong
relationship with most of the leading camersfiners and as a result
are able to obtain favorable cormmercial terms and operational
advantages, We also counter this risk with the gquality of our
infrastructure, service levels and relationships with cur custormers.
Thus, we do not expect 1o be significantly affected by this risk.

Trade Risk

QOur business con be affected by the rise and fall in the levels of
imports and exports in the country.

Given the projected growth in the Indian econarmy, rsing spending
in the infrastructure and manufacturing space and increasing per
capita and disposable income, it s estimated that imports waill
continue to rise steadily. The Company is also ageressively
expanding its CFSACD business, a high margin segment which s
essentially dependent an imports, With its foray into niche areas
like equipment hinng, crane rental, project cargo etc., the
Caornpany is further reducing its dependence on exports. Thus, we
believe we have adequate mitigation in place for trade risk,

Regulatory Rislk

If we are unable to obtain required approvals and licenses in o
timely manner, our business and operations may be adversely
affected.

We require certain approvals, licenses, registrations and
permissions for operating cur MTO and CFSACD business, We
may encourter delays in obtaining these requisite approvals, or
sy not be able to obtain such approvals at all, which may have an
adverse effect on our revenues. However, the Government has
come up with a number of initiatnees to boost the logistics sector
and has planned massive investrments in the infrastructure sector;, As
all industry predictions suggest that this will be the trend in the
future as well and given our own experience in cbitaining such
permissions, we do not expect thes risk to affect us matenally in the
COMING Years,

Liability Risk

This risk refers to our liability arising from any damage to cargo,
equipment, fife and third parties which may adversely affect our
business.

The Company attermpts to mitigate this risk through contractual
obfigations and insurance policies. We are covered under the
MTO & Freight Forwarder's Insurance Policy, However, given that
the limits of indemnity are restricted to a particular amount for each
clairn, this risk cannot be entirely mitigated.

Execution Risk

The Company has been developing a number of projects In the last
year and several more are in the pipeline. Project execution is
largely dependent upon lond purchase, project management skills
and timely delivery by equipment suppliers. Any delay in project
implementation can impact revenue and profit for that period,

Cur implermentation schedules are in line with the plans,
Emergency and contingency plans are in place to prevent or
minimize business interruptions, Therefore, we do not expect this
risk to affect us maternally in the future. Concemns like soaring land
prices, a complex fax structure, infrastrecture bottle-necks,
retaining falernt and unprecedented natural and  man-made
disasters and politicalsocial turmoil which may affect our business,
remain. However, these are threats faced by the entire industry,
With superior methodologies and improved processes and
systemns, the Company i well positioned to lead a high growth
path,

Internal control systems and adequacy

The Company's well defined orgamzational structure,
docurnented policy guidelines, defined authority matrix and
internal controls ensure efiicency of operations, compliance
with interal policies and applicable laws and regulations as well
as protection of resources. Moreover, the Company
continuously upgrades these systems in line with the best
available practices. The internal control system 15 supplemented
by extensive internal audits, regular reviews by management and
standard palices and guidelines to ensure reliability of financial
and all other records to prepare finandal statements and other
data. Use of [T and validaton of security m this regard is given
proper attention by the management, The Company also has an
ERP systern in place which provides support at all stages of the

business,




Report on

Corporate Governance

I. PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company strongly believes in establishing, adopting and following best corparate governance
practices and thereby facilitating effective management and carmying out its business by setting up
prinaples, benchrmarks and systems to be followed by the Board of Directars, Management and all
Ernployees intheir dealings with customers, stakeholders and society at large,

Your Company's corporate governance philosophy entails not only abiding by regulatory and legal
requirements but also to follew and adopt valuntanty, good business ethics and standards of behaviorn, The
princples such as integrity. accountability, transparency, faimess, timely disdosures, credibility etc, serve as
effective means for protection of shareholders and enhancing value to them,

The Objective of your Company is not only to achieve excellence in Corporate Governance by
conforming to prevalent mandatory guidelines on Corporate Governance but also to improve on these
aspects on an ongoing basis. Your Company is in compliance with the requirements of the corporate
povernance guidelines stpulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges.

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of Board:

The Compaosition of the Board of Directors of the Company i govermed by the Companies Act, 1956
and is in conformity with the stipulation laid down in the code of Corporate Governance recommended

by the Securtties and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) through Clawse 4% of the Listing Agreement of the
Stock Exchanges.

Your Company recognizes the need and importance of having a strong and broad based Board and hence
has maintained an optimum combination of Executive and MNon-Executive Directors with mare than fifty
percent of Board of Directors being Mon- Executive Directors, The Company is managed and guided by a
professional Board comprising of elght Directors, aut of which five are Mon  Executive. Four outof the five
Mo Executive Directors are Independent, The Independent Directors of the Company meet all the
criteria mandated by dause 49 of the Listing Agreement. The Board believes that its current composiion
is appropriate to maintain the independence of the Board and to separate the Board functions of
Governance and Management,

The Board consists of eminent persans with considerable professional expertise and experience in
finance, legal, commercial, business administration and other related fields, whao, not only bring a wide
range of experience and expertise, but also impart the desired level of independence to the Board, The
Boards role, functions, responsibilities and accourtability are clearty defined.  The day-to-day
management of the Company is entrusted with the senior management personnel of the Company and s
headed by the Managing Director wha functions under the overall supervision, direction and control of
the Board of Directors. The Board reviews and approves the strategy and oversees the actions and results
of management to ensure that the long term objectives of enhancing stakeholders value are achieved,

Caonsequent to appointrment of Director by Blackstone Group, the Private Equity Irvestor in terms of the
Agreement, the Board was reconstituted in compliance with the prescribed corporate governance code
by nominating Mr. Umesh Kumar Shetty, Executive Director of the Company, an the Board of Ecu Hold
MW the wholly cwned subsidiary company engaged in the business of logistic service prosader across the
globe, as non-executive director, LWpon such nomination on the Board of wholly owned subsidiary, Mr,
LImesh Shetty ceased to be the Director of the Company.
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&ll the Directors have certified to the Company that they are not members of more than 10 (Ten) committees and do not act as Chairmen of more
than 5 {Fve) committess across all the companies inwhich they are Directars,

The agenda of the meetings along with the explanatory notes and relevant papers are sent in advance to the Directors to enable them to take
informed decisions, Chiel Executive Officer and Heads of Departments of Rnance and Stratesc Planning are normally invited 1o the Board
*  All Directors other than, Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty, Mrs. Arathi Shetty and Mr. Adarsh Hegde are Non-Executive Directors on the Board. rreeetings to provide necessary insights into the warking of the Company and for discussing corporate strategies, Inforrmation as prescribed under

Annexure [Ato Clause 49 s being made available to the Board fromtirme to time.
= The Company has not entered inte ary materialty significant transactions during the vear, which could have a potential conflict of interest

between the Company and its Promoters, Directors, Management and/or their relatives etc. other than the transactions entered in the
normal course of business and entered in the Regrster of Contracts mamtained under Section 30 | of the Companies Act, | 956,

The Managing Director is responsible for corporate strategy, planning, extermal contracts and Board matters, The senior management personnel
heading respective divisions are responsible lor day-to-day operabions,

*  The Senior Management Personnel have made disclosures to the Board confirming that there are no material, financial and/or commerdial Diuring the year ended December 3 |, 2008 the Board met 9 times or January 22, 2008, January 3|, 2008, February |9, 2008, March 19, 2008

transactions between them and the Company which could have potential confict of interest with the Compary at large,

The composition of the Board of Directors during the year was as follows:

March 27, 2008, Apnl 24, 2008, June 26, 2008, July 24, 2008 and October 25, 2008

Attendance of the Board Members at these Board Meetings and last Annual General Meeting are detailed as under

Mame of the Director Mo. of Board Meetings Attended Attendance at the last Annual General Meeting
Mame of the Director MNature of Directorship Mo. of Directorship in MNo. of Committee held on August 12, 2008
other public companies positions held in other Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty B Yos
public companies
T Mrs. Arathi Shetty 5 Mo
Chairman Member
Mr. Adarsh Hegde Fi es
Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty Promater, Executive Director |
Mr. Umesh Shetty 3 Yes
Mrs, Arathi Shetty Pramater, Executive Director | = 3
Mr. Karwan Kakyaniwalla 9 ez
Mr. Adarsh Hegde Promaoter, Executive Director - - -
Mr. Keks Elavia g s
Mr. Umesh Shatty* Promaoter, Executive Director - - -
M. Satish Gupta 5 Yes
Mr. Kaiwan Kalyaniwalla | Mon Executive Independent Director I - -
Mr. Rajne Sabiney 4 Ma
Mr. Keki Blavia Mon Executive Independent Director B 3 i
Mr. Akhilesh Gupta 4 (el
Mr. Satish Gupta Mon Exeautive Independent Director - - -
Mr. Rajiv Sahney Mon Executive Independent Director | B -
Profile of Directors seeking appointment /[ re- Besides being a Director of the Company, Mrs, Arathi Shetty is also
Mr. ﬂ'.H'Ii'ESh GUPT-E MNon EIECU“‘UE D'rrﬁlﬂﬂlr 4 - w“tm director of the fﬂ"ﬂ\"ﬂl’lg companies:
nominated by Blackstone

* Ceased to be Dhirector wee f, December 31, 2008

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, | 956 and
that of Artickes of Assocation of the Company, Mrs. Arathi Shetty

5r.Mo. Mame of the Companies

and Mr. Kaiwan Kalvaniwalia are retiring by rofation and being I Transindia Freight Services Pyt Ltd
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. Their brief profile is 2 Transindia Freight Pvt Ltd
Motes: asunder;
3. Allcarga Movers (Bombay) Pvt Lid
I, The Directorships hebd by Directors as mentioned above, do not indude Directorships of Foreign Companies, Section 25 Companies and
: ; : #. Alltrans Port Management Put Ltd
Private Limnited C ;
rivate Limited Carmpanies Mrs. Arathi Shetty
2. LDr:I}f Audit Committees and the Shareholders’ Gnevance Committees are considered for the purpose of committee posiions as per the P Aty S A e i B T e 5. Sealand Cranes Pyt Ltd
g Agresment, q ;
. i and s associated with the group since |988, She has a vast & Acargs Shipping SefvicesvtLin
3. Mo Directors other than Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty, Mrs. Arathi Shetty, Mr. Limesh Shetty and Mr. Adrash Hegde are related to each other. experience of over twenty years m the business and has an 7. Allret Infotech Put Ltd
understanding of the intricacies of logistic business. Mrs. Aarthi Shetty )
handles customer relations and related issues which are of g hpteriachinesytiad
Board Meetings and Attendance: paramount importance in the serice industry, She actively 9 M. R Holdings Pvt Ltd
articipates and contributes licy deci at Board
The Board of Directors meets at least once in a2 quarter and the maximurm time gap between two meetings is not maore than four months, Dates P ||:.|pa oy o T VR ol Voo 10. Awadh Marketing Pyt Ltd
i ; : L : Meetings ofthe Company and other forums.
for the Board meetings are decided well in advance and communicated to the Directors, In case of exigencies or urgency of matters, resalutions
I, Contech Transport Services Pt Ltd

are passed by circulation. Additonal meetings of the Board are held as and when deemed necessary by the Board. Board meetings are generalty
held at the Registered Office of the Company,

Mrs, Arathi Shetty holds 751,944 equity shares constituting 3.36%
ofthe total paid up capital of the Company.

A Prominent Estate Holdings Pyt Ltd
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Lad
-

S5r. No. Name of the Companies

13, Cortech Estate Pvt Ltd

14. SKS Metgate Pt Ltd

I5. Awash Builders Pyt Ltd

16. Energy Health Spas Pyt Ltd

7. ECU International Asia Pyt Ltd

1 8. Hinudstan Cargo Ltd

19. SKS Realty Pvt Ltd

20, AGL Ports Put Lid

21, AGL Projects Pyt Ltd

22, AGL Termunals Pyt Ltd

2. AGLWarehousing Pvt Ltd

24, Awash Builders And infrastructure Pyt Ltd
3. India Tourist And Hertage Village Pvt Lid
26, Sealand Terminals Pyt Ltd

27, SkSVentures Pyt Ltd

2B. Talentes {India) Pt Ltd

29, Talentos Ertertainment Pyt Lid

30. ECLU Line {India) Pwt Ltd

Mr. Kaiwan Kalyaniwalla

Mr. Kaiwan Kahanmwalla, aged 44 years, is a Soligtor and Advocate
of the Bombay High Court and a Partner of the law fim
M/s Maneksha & Sethna in Mumbai. He has been in practice for
over 20 years. Mr. Kalyvaniwalla 5 enrolled as a Saliator of the
Supreme Court of England and Wales, He is on the board of
various Indian and foreign companies and advises private sector
corporates, muttinational banks, transport and logistics companies
and some of India's largest property development companies and
business houses. His practice s predominantly in the field of
corporate [aws, property laws, tax laws and general commercial
lawws, Mr, Kabyaniwalla has been an active member of the Managing
Committee of the Bombay Incorporated Law Socety.

Mr. Kabyanivwalla holds 10,035 equity shares constituting 0.04% of
the total paid up capital of the Company.

Besides being a Director of the Company, M. Kalyanmwalla is also
director of the following companies:

Sr. Mo, Mame of the Companies
[ Synchro Irvestrnents Py, Ltd,

2 Bombay Metals & Alloy Manufacturing Co. Pyt Lid,
3 Iron and Metal Traders Pt Lid,

4. MHTC Logistics Put. Lid,

5. Ecuhold NV

é. Ecu Imternational MY

Fi Sealand Warehousing Pvt Ltd

B. Sealand Ports Pyt Ltd

9. Awash Logistic Park Pvt Ltd

10, Gujarat [ntegrated Maritime Complex Pyt Ltd

[l Hindustan Cargo Ltd

3. COMMITTEES OF BOARD

The Board has constituted committees comprsing of executive,
non-executive and independent directors to foous on critical
functions of the Company and also for smooth and efficent
business operations. The Board s respansible for constituting,
assigning, co-opting and fing the terms of reference of these
committees in line with the laws of the land, The drafl minutes of
the proceedings of each committes meeting are droulated to the
members of that Committee for their comments and thereafter,
corfirmed in its next meeting. The Board ako takes note of the
minutes of the meetings of the committees duly approved by their
respective Chairman and the matenal recommendations |/
decisions of the Committees are placed before the Board for
approval finformation,

Currantly, the Board has five cammittes, viz.,

| Audit Committes

2. Compensation / Remuneration Committee

3. Share Transfer [ Investors’ Grievance Committes
4, Executive Committes

5. Share Allotment Committes

AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee comprises of non-executive and
independent directors who are well versed with finance, accounts,
corparate laws and peneral business practices, Mr, Keki Elavia,
Chairman of the Committee, s an independent director and s a
Chartered Accountant and has related financal managerment
expertise. The compaosition, procedures, role, power and the
terms of reference of the Audit Committes are in accordance with
Section 2924 of the Cormpanies Act, 1956 and Clause 49 of the
Listing Agreernsnt with the Stock Exchanges.

Terms of Reference:
a) Owerseeing the Company's financial reporting process and ensuning correct, adeduate and credible disclosure of financial information;
b} PRecommending appointrment and removal of statutory awditors and fixng of their fees:

£} Reviewing with managernent the annual financial staternents before subrmission to the Board with specal ermphasis an accaunting palicies and
practices, compliance with accounting standards and other legal requerements concerning financal statements;

d)  Reviewing the adequacy of the Intermal Audit indluding their policies, procedures, techniques and other regulatory requirernents;
e} Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financal statements before submission to the board for approval;

I Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditars into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal cantral systerns of a material nature and reporting the matter to the board;

gl Anyotherterms of reference as may be included from time to time n Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

Meetings of the Committee:

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 5 times on January 3|, 2008, April 24, 2008, June 26, 2008, |uly 24, 2008 and October
25,2008.

Compuosition of the Committee & attendance of each member at the meetings ofthe Committee held duning the year:

Mame of the Member Category Mo. of Meetings
Held - Attended
Mr. Keki Elava - Chairman Man-Executve Independent Director ] 3
Mr. Kaiwan Kalyaniwalla Mon-Executive Independent Directar 5 5
Mr. Satish Gupia Mon-Executive Independent Directar 5 3
Mr. Akhilesh Gupta® Man-Executive Directar 4 4

*Mr. Akhilesh Gupta, Mon Executive Directorwas inducted as a member of the Committee with effect from April 24, 2008

Chief Financial Officer and representatives of the statutory and intermal auditors are generally imvited to attend the meetings of the Audit
Committes, The Company Secretary acts as secretary ta the Committee. The Chalrman of the Audit Committes remained present at the last
Annual General Mesting,

COMPENSATION / REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
Terms of Reference:

The CompensationRemuneration Committes compnsas of non-executive independent directors, The Committee determines, reviews and
recomimends remuneration payable to whale-time directors in addition to reviewing overall compensation structure and policies of the Company
with a view to attract, retain and motivate employees, consder granting of stock options to employees and directors, reviewing compensation
levels of the Company’s employees vis-a-vis other companies and industry in general. The Committee is also entrusted with the responsibility of
administering and monitoring EYOP 5chemes of the Company. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Committee,

Remuneration Policy:
The Managing Director and other whaole time directors are paid remuneration by way of salary, cormmission, perquisites and allowances within the

range approved by the shareholders of the Company from time to time, The remuneration palicy of the Company is directed towards rewarding
performance, based on review of achevements ona penodic basis. The remuneration policy is in conscnance with the existing Industry practice.
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Mon-Executive Directors are paid rernuneration by way of sitting fees @ Rs. 20,000 for attending meeting of the Board of Directors and Rs. 5,000
for attending meeting of the Audit Committee, Compensation / Remuneration Committee and Share Transfer / Investors’ Grievance Committee,
Mon-Executive Dhrectors are also paid rermuneration by way of commission out of profits of the Company in terms of the shareholders approval
granted u/s 309 4)(b) ofthe Companies Act, [956, atthe | 3th Annual General Mesting held on Septermber 29, 2006,

Details of remuneration paid to directors during the year under review are as under:

{Amaunt in Rs.)
Mame of the Director Category Salary, Allowances Sitting Fees | Commission
and Perquisites

Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty Promaoter, Executive Director 8,204,843 il 20,000,000
[r=. Arathi Shetty Promoter, Executive Director 2016000 il | 0,000,000
Mr. Adarsh Hegde Promater, Executive Director 5,220,395 il 20,000,000
[r. Limesh Shetty Promoter, Executive Director 4,647,980 il 20,000,000
Mr. Kabwan Kalyaniwalla Mon Executive Independent Directar il 280,000 2,000,000
Mr. Kela Elavia Mon Executive Independent Director il 255,000 |.000,000
Mr. Satish Gupta Mon Executive Independent Directar Ml 150,000 il

Mr. Rajrv Sahney Mon Executive independent Director il 80,000 il

Mr. Akhilesh Gupta Mon Executive Director il 100,000 il

Meetings of the Committee:

Durng the year under review, the Committee met & times on [anuary | &, 2008, March 19, 2008, May 20, 2008, June 26, 2008, July 24, 2008 &
Oictober 25, 2008.

Composition of the Committee & attendance of each member at the meetings ofthe Committee held during the year:

Mame of the Member Category

Mo. of Meetings

Attended

Mr. Karwan Kalvaniwalla, Chairman Mon-Executive Independent Director 6 &
Mr. Keki Elavia Mon-Executive Independent Director 6 &
Mr. Satish Gupta Mon-Executive Independent Director & 3

SHARE TRANSFER/INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE:

Terms of Reference:

The Share Transferinvestors' Grievance Committee comprises of non-executive independent directors and executive director. The main
objectve of the Committee is to strengthen Irvestor Relations, The Committee speafically loaks imta the redressal of shareholders and investors
complairits like transfer /transrmission of shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, declared dividends etc, The Committes, inter alia, approves issue of
share certificates and oversees and reviews all matters connected with transfer of securities of the Company. The Committee aversees

performance of the Registrars and Transfer Agents of the Company and leaks into matters which can facilitate better imvestor services and relations.
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Meetings of the Committee:

During the year under review, the Committee met 4 times on January 31, 2008, April 24, 2008, August 25, 2008 & Ocober 25, 20048,
Caormpaosition of the Committee & attendance of each member at the meeting of the Committee held dunng the year:

MName of the Member Category Mo, of Meetings
Attended

Mr. Kaiwan Kalyaniwalla, Chairman Mon-Exeadtive Independent Director 4 4

Mr. Satish Gupta Mon-Executive Independent Director 4 2

Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty Executive Director 4 4

Compliance Officer:

The Board has appointed Mr, Shailesh Dholakia, Company Secretary, as the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirernents under SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiations, | 992 and under the Listing Agreement with Stock Exchanges. The Company Secretary also ads as a
secretary to the Committee,

During the year under review, the Comparny had received 3 complairits from shareholders and the same have been redressed to their satisfaction.
Mo request for transfer and for dernatenalisation were pending for approval as on December 31, 2008

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE:
Terms of Reference:

With the abjective to expedite vanous administrative and operational decsions of reutine nature and to faclitate day-to-day business operations of
the Company, which need immediate intervention and approval to ensure smooth functioning of the Company, the Board had constituted an
Executive Cammittee comprising of executive directars of the Company. The Executive Committes meets at least once every month to decide
various ssues of routine nature like opening [/ dosing of Bank Accounts, change i Banlang authorization, authorization for legal, statutory

compliances matters, acquiring premises for Company purpose et

Meetings of the Committee:

Composition of the Committee & attendance of each member at the meetings ofthe Committee held during the year:

Mame of the Member Category Mo. of Meetings
Attended

M. Shashs Kiran Shetty, Chairman Executve Director |2 |2

Mrs, Arathi Shetty Exmeutive Director |2 |2

Mr. Adarsh Hegde Executive Director |2 [

SHARE ALLOTMENT COMMITTEE:
Terms of Reference:

The Share Allotment Committee was constituted as an ad-hoc committee, comprising of non-executive independent directors of the Company,
The terms of reference of Share Allotment Committee are to issue and allot equity shares under the |nitial Public Offer of shares {IPO) of the
Company and under ESOP Schemes of the Company, either in dematenalized form or physical form, under the common seal of the Company
and to seek fisting of the equity shares on the Bambay Stock Exchange Limited and The Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited.
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Meetings of the Committee: Special Resolutions Passed

Meeting | Date and Time Yenue

During the year under review, the Committes met 4 times on March 27, 2008, May 20, 2008, |uly 24, 2008 & Odober 25, 2008,

I3th AGM | September 279, Walchand Hirzchand Hall, |.  Appointrent of Mr. Adarsh Hegde to a place

Composition of the Committee & attendance of each mernber at the meetings ofthe Committee held durnng the year:

2006
at 3:00 pm.

Indizn Merchants' Chamber, IMC Building,
M Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020

of profit u/s 31 4 of the Companies Act, | 956,
2. Confirmation and ratfication to Allcargo

Mame of the Member

Mo, of Meetings

Held Attended

Employee Stock Option Plan 2006
cansequent upon listing of Carmpany’s equity
shares on Stock Exchanges, post PO,

3. Estension of benefits of Allcarpo Employee

Mr. Keki Elavia, Chairman Mon-Executive Independent Director 4 4 Stock Option Plan 2006' 1o the employees /
Mr. Kaiwan Kalyanmwalla Man-Exeoutive Independent Director 4 4 directors of subsidianes of the Company.

g . : 4. To retain sitting fees and other similar benefits
Mr. Satish Gupta Mon-Executive Independent Director 4 Fi

4. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Meeting Date and Time

I5th AGM | August 12, 2008 Exchange Plaza,

at | 1.00 am Mational Stock Exchange Auditoriurm,
Ground Floar, Bandra Kuda Comples,
Bardra (East), Murmbai - 400 051,

Special Resolutions Passed

I.  Change in nominal value of FCCD from Rs. |0
per FCCD to Rs.934 per FCCD issued to
Blackstone Group Entities and consequential
amendments in the Articles of Assaciation of
the Carmpany.,

recened by the Chairman and Managing
Director and Independent Director of the
Cornpany, from Ecu Hold B, whally owned
subsidiary of the cormpany, u's 314 of the
Compares Act, 1956,

5. Payrnent of commission out of profits to MNon-
executive Directors of the Company ufs 309
43 () of the Companies Act, 1956,

I4th AGM | |une 29, 2007 Wyalchand Hirachand Hall,
at 1 1.30am Indian Merchants” Chamber, IMC Building,
IMC Marg, Churchgate, Mumbai - 400 020.

|. - Alteration of Articles of Association conseguent
upon increase in Authonsed Capital of the
Company.

2. To recewe siting fees, commission and other
benefits by Managing Director / Whole-time
Directors from subsidiary companies ufs 314
aof the Companies Act, 956,

1. Mandatory disclosures under SEBI {ESOS and
ESPS) Guidelines, 1999, which were
inadvertently omitted while confirming the
Alleargo Emplayee Stock Option Plan 2006’
at the | 3th AGM,

4. Mandatory disclosures under SEBI (EX0S and
E5PS) Guidelines, 1999, which were
inadvertently omitted white approving
extension of benefits of Allcargo Employee
Stock Oiption Plan 2006" to the employees /
directors of the subsidiary companies,
atthe | 3th AGM,

Mo resolution was passed through postal ballot duning last three Annual General Meetings and the year under review and no resclution is
proposed to be passed through postal ballat,

EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING:

*  Meetings of the Equity Shareholders, Secured and Unsecured Creditors of the Cornpany were convened and held at the directions of the
Hon'ble Bombay High Court on January 22, 2008 for seeking their approval to the Scherme of Arrangement u/s 3% 1 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956, comprising of de-merger of the Project and Equipment Division by M/s Transindia Freight Services Pyt Ltd, in favour of the
Cormpany,

* A Edra-Ordinary General Mesting of the members of the Cormpany was beld on March 19, 2008, for obtaining the members appraval for;

11 Issue of Equity Shares, Fully and Compulsonly Convertible Debentures and Warrants ufs 8 1{ | &) of the Caompanies Act, 1956 read with
SEBI{Disdosure and Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000 to Blackstone Group Ertities an Preferential basis;

2] Appointment of Mr. Limesh Shetty as Whole Time Director u/s |98, 269 and 309 read with Schedule X1l of the Companies Act, 1956,
and

3)  Increase in remuneration payable to Mr Adarsh Hegde, Whole Time Director w/s |98, 309 and 3 | 0 read with Schedule X1 of the
CompaniesAct, [956.

5. DISCLOSURES:

(a) Disclosures onmaterially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large;

During the year under review, there were no transactions of material nature with the Promaters, Directors or the management or their
subsidiaries or relaties that had potential conflict with the interest of the Compary. Detaills of related party transactions are disdosed in the
notes to the accounts as per Accounting Standard |8
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(B) Details of non-compliance, if any, with regard to Capital Market 8. CODEOFCONDUCT
Equity shares of the Company are listed and traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited The Comparyy has laxd down and adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors and Senior Management Personnel, which is also available on the
weed, June 23, 2006, The Company has complied with all the prowsions of the Listing Agreement as well as the Regulations and Guidelines Company's website: wyww.allcargoglobal.com. The Company has received confirmation from all Directors as well as Senior Management
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India from time to time. The Company has paid listing fees to Stock Exchanges and Annual Personnel regarding compliance of Code of Conduct during the year under review, A declaration signed by the Managing Director o this effect s
Custodial Fees to the Depositones up to date. attached at the end of this report.

There were no penalties imposed nor strictures passed on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEB or any other statutory authority on any

rmatter related to capstal markets, during lastthree years.
9. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND AMNALYSIS
{c) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report is attached and form part of this Annual Report.
There is no deviation in following the treatment prescribed in any Accounting Standard in preparation of financial staternents for the year ended

on December3 |, 2008,

{d) Board Disclosures Risk Management 10. GENERAL SHARHOLDER INFORMATION

The Board members of the Company have been apprised about the risk assessment and minimization procedures intended to be adapted, (a) Annual General Meeting

The Audit Committee of the Board 15 also miormed abaut the business risks and the steps taken to mitigate the same, The implementation of Day, Date & Time Friday, June |2, 2009

the risk assessment and minimization procedures is under progress and the Board members are periodecally informed of the status,

e G Venue Registered office at Diamond Square, 5th Floor, C5T Road,
®) HIRLIEE PR Kalina, Santacruiz (E), Mumbai — 400 098

During the year under review, the Company had raised Rs. |.304.28 million by issue and allotment of Equity Shares, Fully and Compulsarily

G.:r.n'm-hhie Debenturtesau:l"u'.fanamsto Blzckstone Group Enfities on Pr?ferentla} bf'ms. The proceeds from thTE preferennal issLIE were partly (b) Tntative Fnandal Calendss for 2009

utilized towards meeting requiremeants for the Campany's on-gomng capital expenditure as well as for expansion projects, partly for normal

capital expenditure and to augment working capital needs and to reduce the debt of the Comparry. Financial ‘fear January |, 2009 to December 31, 2005
() Certification from CEQand CFO Board Meetings for approval of quartery results

The requisite certificate from the Managing Director (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer required to be given under Clause 49(v) has been |5t Chaarter ending on March 31, 2009 Apnil 30, 2009

placed before the Board of Directors ofthe Cormpany, on quarterly and annual basis, Ind Quarter ending on june 30, 2009 July 30, 2009
{g) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. 4hd Eluarer wriding an Sépismber 30 2009 Octobar 29, 7009

The Cornpany has complied with all the mandatory requirements as prescribed under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement. A certificate from 4th Quarter erding onDecamber 31, 2009 January 28, 2010

M. Mehta & Mehta, Practising Company Secretaries to this effect has been included in this report. Besides mandatory requirements, the

Cornpany has constituted a remuneration committee to consider and recommend the remuneration of the directors and for administration Audited Results for the financial year ending Within 120 days of the closure of the financial year

and menitonng of Employee Stock Opbon Plan. on December 3|, 2009

() Boaok Closure Period Jure 8, 2009 to June |2, 2009 (Both days inclusive)
6. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION
(d) Dividend payment date Within 15 days from the declaration at AGM
The Company has promptly reported all matenal information induding declaration of quarterly financal results, press releases etc, to all Stock
Exchanpes where the shares of the Cormpany are listed. Such information are also simultanecusly displayed on the Company's website (e) Listing on Stock Exchanges The equity shares of the Company are kisted and traded on the
www.alicargoglobal com. The financial results, guarterty and annual results and other statutory information were communicated to the Borribay Stock Exchange Ltd, and The National Stock Exchange
sharehodders by way of advertsernent in english daily Business Standard and in a vernacular language newspaper ‘Sakal’ as per the requirerments of of India Ltcl.
the Stock Exchanges.
Offical news releases and presentation made to nsttutional investors or 1o the analysts are displayed on Company's webste (f Stock Code BSE - 5332749
www.alicargoplobal com NSE - ALLCARGO
ISI - INE4 1 BHOIO] |

7. CODEFORPREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING (g) MarketPrice Data

The Compary has adopted a share dealing code for the prevention of insider trading in the shares of the Cormpany. The share dealing code, inter alia,

Details of high and low prce and number of shares traded during each month in the last finandial year on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited
prohibits purchase /sale of shares of the Company by employeeswhile in possession of unpublished price sensitve nformaton in relation to the Company.

and the MNational Stock Exchange of India Limited are as under:
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Maonth
NIFTY V5 AGL
Volume ow Volume
900
January, 08 974,00 60980 413,208 974.00 592.00 247714
February, 08 B44.00 640.00 1,356,949 848.00 632.00 531,90 #00
March, 08 B69.70 730.20 307,283 870.00 670.05 203,587 700
April, 08 B39.95 770.00 117923 829.00 750.00 110,149 & 600
)
May, 08 B20.00 64 1.00 66,965 850.00 645.80 83,268 % 500 =
A
June, 08 B45.00 620.00 276210 841.00 6320.00 194,363 8 %
: 400
Juily, OB B49.95 0500 376,533 849,60 F22.00 255,849 E E
=
August, 08 678,00 794.65 298,510 856.00 800.10 283610 00
September, 08 F50.00 755.05 468,522 950.00 750.00 425,609 200
October, 08 B22.315 27185 440,208 829.90 280.30 325,565 100
Mevermber, 08 584,90 285.00 65,259 584.00 295.00 369395 i
December, 08 B66,. 00 388.25 482,133 &71.15 390,00 351,155 JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC
Source: www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com MOMNTH 2008
(h) Performance of share price of the Company in comparison to the BSE Sensex & NSE Nifty: —4— NIFTY —&—AGL
SENSEX VS AGL 0 St Transler Systan
The Company's equity shares which are in compulsorily dematenalized (demat) form are transferable throwgh the depositary systern, Equity
20,900 A0 Shares in physical form are processed by the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, Link Intime India Private Limited (Formerly known as
18.000 200 Intime Spectrum Registry Limited) and approved by the Share Transfer/investors’ Grievance Committes of the Board of the Compary. The
share transfers are normally processed wathin |5 days from the date of receipt of the documents, if they are complete i all respects.
16,000
700
14,000 {j} Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity
g 600
= 12.000 g Equity shares of the Company are compulsonty traded in dematerialized form and are available for trading under Matonal Securities
§ ; 500 = Drepositary Limited (NSOL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (COSL) from June 23, 2006 onwards, The International Security
U 10,000 8 [dentification Mumber {I5IN) alotted to the Company under Depository System is INE4IBHOI01 1, A5 on December 31, 2008,
ﬁ — 400 G 21,580,848 equity shares of Rs. | D each, representing 96.50% of the Company's total pard up capital, have been held in dematenalized form,
= ' =
i
Y 6.000 300 (k) Investor Help Desk & Registrar and Transfer Agent
4,000 200 For lodgment of transfer deeds and any other dacuments or for any grievances/complaints. shareholders! investors may contact at the
following address:
2,000 100
Link Irtime India Private Limited
0 : : r : 0 (Formerly knawn as Intime Spectrum Registry Limited)
JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC Regrstrars and Transfer Agents
Urt: Allcargs Global Logistics Lirmited
MONTH C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills Compound, LBS Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai - 400 078.
¢ SENSEX AGL Tel: 022 2596 3838, Fax: 022 2594 6965, Email: isrl@linkintime.co.in
Contact Person:
Mr. Rajesh Mishra




For all investor related issues, the following persan can be contacted at the registered office of the Company:

Mr. Shailesh Dholakia

Caornpany Secretary & Comphance Officer
Allcargo Global Logistics Limited

Diamaond Square, 5th Floon

5T Road, Kalina, Santacruz (East),

Murnbai - 400 098,

Tel: 022 - 6679 8100, Fax : 022 - 2667 5834,
Ernail: investor. relations@allcargoglobal com

(T} Distribution of Sharehelding

Distribution of Shareholding as on December 31, 2008:

ALLCARGO GLOBAL LOGISTICS LIMITED
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Shareholding Mo. of Shareholders % to total no. of Mo. of shares %6 to total
izt e e Shareholders no. of shares
(Froem - To)
| - 500 3915 9591 176,724 0.79
501 - 1000 63 |.54 51,785 0.3
1001 - 2000 18 0.93 57,951 0.26
2001 - 3000 I 0.27 25,85| Q.12
3001 - 4000 K Q.17 25,009 0.1
4001 - 5000 3 .07 [3.200 0.06
5001 - 10000 14 0.34 105,547 0.47
10001 armvards 30 076 21,907 544 97.%
TOTAL 4.081 100.00 22363611 100.00

Foreign Company
3.81%

Shareholding Pattern as on December 31, 2008;

Shareholding Pattern as on December 31, 2008:

Bodies Corporate
2.72%

Individual
[ 2.19%

Others
0.76%

Promoter and Promoter
81.50%

Category Mo. of Shares held % holding

Indian Promoters I8.226.805 81.50
Private Corporate Bodies 608,752 272
Flls / Foreign Companies / MRIs 2,876,904 r |2.86
Irelian Public 4588, 684 219
Directors and their Relatives 19,082 .03
Trust T4 052 0.33
Clearing Members 69,272 031

Total 22,363,611 100.00

Outstanding ADRs/GDRs:

The Company has not issued any ADRs / GDRs, However, as mentioned in this report, the Company had, during the year under review, issued

and allemted corvertible instruments on preferential basis to Blackstone Group Entites in accordance with the pravisians of Section 81( 1A} of the

Caornpanies Act, |956 read with SEBI {Disclosure and Investor Protection) Guidelines, 2000 on preferential ssue of securities, as detailed

heraunder;

. On March 27, 2008, issued and allotted 6% 1,081,081 Fully and Compulsenly Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) of Rs. 934 each
apgregating Rs, 1,009.73 million, These FCCDs shall be compulsanty canverted into equal number of equity shares of Rs. 10 each at a

premium of Bs. 924 per equity share on completion of |8 manths from the date of their aflotment; and

2. On March 27, 2008, issued and allotted |,513.514 Warrants of Rs. |0 each, These Warrants shall be converted into equal nurnber of

equity shares at the option of the Warrant holders at any time before completion of period of | 8 maornths from the date of their allotment

at a price ranging frarm Rs. 934 per Equity Share /Warrant 1o Rs. 1,284 per Equity Share /Warrant. The Comparty has received Rs: 293.62

million @ Rs. |94 per Warrant upfront from the Warrant holders.
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{m) Office Locations
Branches at:

Wakefield House, |5t Floaor,
Sprett Road. Ballard Estate,
Murmba) - 400 038,
Maharashtra, India.

51/15A, Muniasamypurarm,
2nd Street, Kamarg) Salai,
Tuticonin - 628 003,

Tamil Madu, India.

Kukreja Centre,
A'Wing, Office. 206, 2nd Floar,

Piot no: 13, Sector-| 1, CBD Belapur,

Pavi Mumbai - 400 614,

City Centre, 2nd Floor,
Office Mo, 212, 570, M, G, Road,
Indore - (M Py - 452 001

402, 3rd Floor,
Crford Chambers,
Rustarm Baugh,

Main Road. Kodihalli,
Bangalore - 560 017,
Karnataka, India,

Leelavathi Building,

2nd Floor, 6%, Armenian
Street, Parrys,

Chennai - 600 001,
Tamil Madu, India.

G-113, Mear Gate Mo, |
Alshay Complex,
Tadiwala Read,

Pune - 411 001,
Maharashtra, India.

200 Middbesex Turnpike,
lselin, Mew |ersey 08830,
UsA

Container Freight Stations at:

Coprali Village,

Taluka - Uran, Nr. NPT area
Dist - Raigad - 410212,
Maharashta, India.

704, Sakar - B/h Matraj
Cinema, Off Ashram Road,
Ahmedabad - 380 009,
Guijarat, India.

Krishna Tower, 4th floor,
Boom no. 407, 1543,

Chil line, Kanpur - 208 001,
Uttar Pradesh, India.

Off Mo, 247, 2nd Fir,
Ganpati Plaza, M. |, Road,
laipur - 302 001,
Rajasthan, India,

Lokmat Bhavan, B wing,
207, 2nd Floor, Wardha Road,
Magpur - 4400 2.

2nid Floor, 217, Parasnath Plaza

|, Plot Mo, 2, Neelgir,
Commerical Certre,

Mansarover Scheme,

Delhi Road, Moradabad - 244 001,
Uttar Pradesh, India.

| st Floor, Rani Meyyammai,
Building, K P K Menan Road,
Willington |sland,

Cochin - 682 003,

Kerala, India.

516, Siddhartha Complex,
Mear Express Hotel,

R. . Dutt Foad, Alkapuri,
Baroda - 390005,
Gijarat, India.

913 Thiruvottiyur High Road,
M Wimeo Magar Rly. Stn,
Emavur, Chennal - £00 057,
Tamil Madu, India.

Gujarat, India.

54 & 5B, 5th Floor, Circudar
Marsion, 222 A..C. Bose Road,
Kolkata - 70O O17,

West Bengal, India.

Surekha Chambers, 3rd Floor,
Flat # 302, Ameerpet,
Hyderabad - 500014,
Andhra Pradesh, India.

56-57, Bindra Complex,

C- 145 A, Phase \, Focal Point,
Ludhiana - 141 010,

Punjaby, India.

| 526, Madan Bhandari Path,
[% Mew Baneshwar,
Kathmandu, Mepal,

Dronagin Raibway Terminal,
(DRT) [CWC),

Crpp. Punab Conware, Sector |,
DCronagin MNode, Shed MNo. 4,
Paghote Village, Wran - 400 705,
Maharashtra, India.

Local Shopping Complex,
Pliot Mo B, Vardhaman Plaza,
Site Mo 37 - 38, Kaliaji,
Mew Delhi - 110085,

India.

512, Aakashdeep Plaza,
5th Floor, Golmon—,
[Dist. Singhbhum East,
|amshedpur - 831 003,
Jarkhand, India.

Bharat CF5 Zone |,
Mundra Port, & SEZ Ltd.
Mavinal lsland, Mundra,
Dristrict Kutch - 370 421,

DECLARATION

To,
The Members of
Alicargo Global Logistics Limited

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008

I, Shastu Kiran Shetty, Chairman & Managing Director of Allcarpo Global Logistics Limited (“the Company ™), hereby declare that all the Board
Members and Senior Management of the Company have affirmed cormpliance with the Code of Conduct, laid down and adopted by the

Campany, during the year ended Decermber 3|, 2008,

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,
The Members af
Alicargo Global Logistics Limited

For Allcarge Global Logistics Limited

Shashi Kiran Shetty

Chetrrmnan & Managing Directar

W have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by Allcarge Global Logistics Limited, for the year ended December
31, 2008, as stipulated in Clause 49 ofthe Listing Agreement of the said Company with the Stodk Exchanges (' Prescribed Code'),

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management, Cur esamination was limited to procedures and
irmplernentation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensunng the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is nefther an audit

ner an expression of opinion on the financal staterments of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Gavernance as stipulated in the abovementioned Listing Agreement except that the compesition of Board of Directors
during the penad commendang from March 27, 2008 to Decernber 3 1. 2008 deviated from the prescribed code due to the appointment of a Mon
Executive Dhrector nominated by the Private Equity Investors pursuant to the Investment Agresment, However, this deviation was rectified to

comply with the prescrbed code as on Decernber 31, 2008.

W further state that such compliance is neither an assurance to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which

the ranagerment has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Mumbai
Date 1 April 30, 2009

For Mehta & Mehta
Company Secretanes

Dipti Mehta
Partrier
Mernbership Mo, 3667

L
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STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPAMIES ACT, 1956, RELATING TO COMPANY'S INTEREST IM SUBSIDIARY

COMPANIES AS ON AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2008

Wo. | Nama of the Subsidairy Company

| Hindustan Cargo Ltd

' Contech Transpart Services Pet Lid.

I
)

3| Ecu Line (India) Private Limited
4 | AGL Ports Pt Lid.

5| AGL Projects Pye Lid.

6 | AGL Terminals Pit. Led.

7 | AGL Warehousing Pyt Lid.
8 | Micargo Logistic Park Pvt.Lid.
9| Ecu Insermational (Asia) P, Ltd
10 | Ecu Line Abu Dhabi LLC

Il | Eoo Line Myerie

1 . Ecu Logrstics SA

13 | Eeu Mustralia Pry. Led.

M| Ecu Hold NY

15 | Mlcarga Belgium N

16 | Ecubre M.V

17| Etu Intermational BV

I8 | EcuTech BVEA

19 | Ecu-Line NV,

20 | Eeu-Logistics N,

1 | EcuTrams HY.

1 | D &E Transport KV

2 | RNKNY

24 | Ecu Kir KV

15 | IPTS N

16 | Exu Logistics do Brasil Luda
11 | Flamings Line do Brazil Ltda
28 | Ecu Line Bulgaria 00D

29 | Ecu-Line Canada Inc

30 | Ecu Line Chile 5.0,

31| Cargo Freight Station SA

31 | Flamings Line Chile 5A

1 ! Ecu Line Guangzhon Lid,

3 | Ecu Line De Colombia 5.A.
35 | Conedi International S.A.

36 | Ecu Line Middieeast LLC

31 | Euro Centre - Dubai

38 | Asia Lines Lud.

39| Eeu Heawy Lift, WLL

40 | Ecu Line Del Ecuador S.A.
41 | Flamings Line Exuador

42 | Exu Line Egypt Led

43 | Flamingo Line El Sabvador 3A de OV

44 | Ecu-Line (Germany) GbH
45 | ELWA (GH) Lt

3-Dec-08
31-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
31-Dec-08
H-Dec-08
31-Dec-08
H-Dec-08
31-Har-09
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
H-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
31-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
11-Dec-08
-Dec-08
31-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
-Dec-08
-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
1-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
31-Dec-08
H-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
H-Dec-08
1-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3I-Dec-0%
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08
3-Dec-08

ARcargo Ghobal Legistics Lid
Alearge Glabal Logistics Led
Aicarge Ghobal Logistics Lud
Aleargo Global Logistics Led
Allcargo Ghobal Logistics Led
Alicargo Global Logistics Ltd
Allcarge Global Logistics Led
Afcarge Ghobal Logistics Ltd

Ecu Hald NV

Ecu Hald NY

Eca Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Micargo Belgiom NV & RHK KV

Ahleargs Ghabal Logistics Ltd

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hold NV

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hold NV

Ecu Line Y

Mlcarge Belgum NY
Ecu Hald NV
Ecn Hald NY
Ecu Hald NY & Ecu International NY

Eou Logistics do Brasil Lida

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NV

Ecu Hold NY

Ecu Line Heng Kong Ltd

Ecu Hald NV

Ecu Hald NV

Ecu Hold NY

Ecu Hold NY
Abicarge Ghobal Logistics Led

Asia Lines Ltd

Eca Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

Ecu Hald NY

100.00
100.00
10000
9
99.99
9909
99.99
5100
1000
5100
10000
100.00
#0.00
10000
100.00
100.00
100,00
10000
100.00
100.00
10000
100.00
10000
100.00
fon.00
100.00
100.00
100,00
50.00
100.00
50.00
10000
100.00
10000
100,00
6.0
860
10000
49.0
lan.0g
100.00
100.00
6,67
100.00
10000

R 10
R 10
Ra. 10
Re. 10
R 10
Re. 10
R 10
Rs. 10
R 10
AED 1500
DI0 1000
ARS 1
AUD 1
EURD 19.55
EURD (000
EURD T43.81
EURD 24.80
EURO 24.79
EURD 127835
EURD 2479
EURD 14.50
ELIRD 100
EURD 1646.12
EURD 10
EURD 24.83
BRL |
BRL |
BGN 50
CAD 1
(1P 00000
CLP 1000
CLP 10000
HAD |
COP 1000
CRC 200
AED 1000
AED 100000
EURD 100

uin4
Uins
EGP 500
Uin 1143
ELIRD 510.19
GHOITIT

| Kumbser
| 6l ghares
|

held by
| the
: 10lding
| company

| ang/or ity

| subsidiariey | D

150,000
10,000
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Auditors’ Report

To The Members of Alicargo Global Logistics Limited

5.

W have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Allcargo Global Logistics Limited as at December 31,
2008 and alsothe Profit and Lass Account and the Cash Flow Statemernit of the Company for the year epded
on that date, both annexed thereto, These finandal statements are the responsibility of the Cormpany’s
rnanagement. Cur responsibility is to express an opinion onthese finandial staternents based on ouraudit,

W have conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in India, Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial staterments are free of material misstaternents. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amaounts and dsclosures in the fnancial statements, An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as
avaluation of the overall financial staterment presentation. Ve believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies {Auditors' Report) Order 2003, {heresn after referred to as the “Crrder”)
issued by the Central Government in terms of section 227(44) of the Companies Act, | 956, we gvein
the Annexure, astaterment on the matters specfied in paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order,

Further to aur comments in the annexure referred to in paragraph 3 above, we report that:

i. e have obtained all the informaton and explanations, which to the best of cur knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of the audit;
In cur opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Compariy so far
as appears from our examination of those books;

iii. The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow Staternent dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of accounts,

I cur opinion the Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement, dealt with by this
report, comply with the Accounting Standards referred to in the Companies {Accounting Standard)
Rufies, 2006, ssued by Central Government, read together with sub-section (3C) of Section 21 | of
the Companies Act, |956;

In our opinion and to the best of our iInformation and according to the explanations given to us,
the said financial staternents together with  the nates thereon and attached thereto, gve in the
prescribed rmanner, the information required by the Companies Act, 1956 and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accaunting principles generally accepted in India:

{a) inthe case of balarce sheet, of the state of affairs of the Cormpany as at Decernber 31, 2008;

(b) mthe case ofthe profitand loss acoount, ofthe profit for the year ended on that date; and
() inthe case of the cash flow staterment, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

O thee basss of written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board af
Directors, we report that none of the Directors s disqualified as on Decernber 31, 2008 from being
appomnted as adirector interms of dause (g) of sub section{ | ) of Sechon 274 of the Companies Act, |956.

For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates
Chartered Accountants

5P Palaniappan

Place: Mumbai Partner
Datad: April 30, 2009 Membership Mo, 38378
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT
il a  TheCompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed assels.

b.  Allthe assets have not been physically verified by the managerment duning the year but there s a regular programme of verification, which
in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Mo material discrepancies were
naticed on such verification,

¢, Fixed Assets deposed off during the year were not substantial and therefore do notaffect the going concem assurnption.
i) & Inventory has been physically verified by the management dunng the year. Inour opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable,

b, The procedures of physical verfication of mventory followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of
the Company and the nature of its business,

€. The Company is maintaining proper records of inventones and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verfication.

i) a The Company had granted an unsecured loan to a company listed in the register maintained under section 30| of the Cormpanies Act,
1956, The maamurm amount during the year was Rs, 37.52 | thousand, At the year-end, the cutstanding balance of the loan granted was
Rs. 37,122 thousand.

b, In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions of the loan were not prima facie prejudicial to the interest of the
Company,

¢. The Company has not taken any loans, secured or unsecured, from campanies, firms or other parties lsted in the register maintained
under Section 30| ofthe Companies Act, 1956,

iv]  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations grven to us there are adeguate mternal control procedures commensurate
with the size of the Company and the nature of its business with regard to purchase of fised assets and with regard to sale of goods and supply
of services, During the course ofthe audit, we have not observed any continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal controls.

vl  a  According to the information and explanabons given to us, we are of the opinion that the transactions that need to be entered into the
register maintained under section 30| ofthe Companies Act, | 956 have been so entered,

b, In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions made in pursuance of contracts or
arrangements entered in the register maintained under section 301 of the Companies Act, | 956 and exceeding the value of rupees five
lakhs in respect of any party during the year have been made at prices which are reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices at
the relevant tirme.

vil  Asthe Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. paragraph 4 (vi) of the Order is not applicable,
vil)  Inour opinian, the Company has an internal audit systern commensurate with the size and nature of its business

will)  Tothe best of aur knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under dause {d) of
sub-section (1) of section 209 ofthe Companies Act, | 956 forthe products ofthe Company.

ix] & According to the records exarmined by us, the Compary is generally regular in depasiting undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Emploves's State Insurance, Incorne-tax, Wealth tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Custams
Durty, Excise Duty, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities other than those stated hereunder
which are cutstanding for more than s manths.

ar. Mo Mame of the Statute Period to which the amount relates Amount in thousands
[ Service Tax March 2008 312
2 Service Tax May 2008 287
3 Service Tax August 2008 a1
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b, According to the information and explanation given to us, and the records examined by us, there are no dues of Income tax, Sales tax,
Custams duty, Wealth tax, Excise duty, Service tax or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, other than those

stated hereunder:
Sr. No | Mame of the Statute | Period to which the amount relates A.rm.:runt DIE_FI.II‘EE' Amount E_}:“d :
| Rs. in thousands Rs. in thousands
I Incorme Tax Act 2002-2003 &7 il
2 Income Tax Act 2003-2004 563 il

x)  The Company does not have accumnulated |osses as at the end of the year and the Company has not incurred cash losses during the current
and the immediately preceding financsal year,

«i]  In our opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defauited in repayment of dues to a
finanaal institution, bank or debenture holders.

xil}  Asthe Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of securty by way of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities,
paragraph 4 (i) of the Orderis not applicabe.

i) As the Company i not a chit fund/nidhi/mutual benefit fund/Society to which the provisions of spedal statute relating to chit fund are
applicable, paragraph 4(=i) of the Orderis not applicable.

i) In our opinian, the Comparry has mairtained proper records of the transactions and contracts in respect of investments purchased and sold
during the vear and timely entries have been made therein, The investments made by the Company are held in its own name except
imvestrments of Fs. 4, 500 thousand continued to be held in the name of demerged entity.

wv]  In owr opinian, the terms and conditions on which the Campany has given guarantees for loans taken by others from banks or financial
institutions are not prejudidal to the interest of the Company.

¥vi}  Inouropinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

will) According to the information and explanations given tous and an an averall exarmination of the balance sheet and cash flows af the Company,
we report that funds raised on short-term basis have not been used for long-term investrment. Mo long-term funds have been used tofinance
short-term assets except permmanent working capital.

wviil) The Company has not made preferential allatrment of shares to parties coverad in the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956,

i) The Company has jssued unsecured, unlisted and unrated 6% (MNet of tax) | Q8| 08| Fully and Compulsorily Comvertible Debentures
(FCCDs) of Rs, 934 each aggregating Rs, 1,009,730 thousand, These FCCDs shall be compulsonly converted into equal number of equity
shares of Rs. | Deachata premiurm of Rs. 924 per equity share on completion of | 8 ronths from the date of their allctment.

xx)  The Company has not rased any money through a public issue during the year,

wxi) Based upon the audit procedures performed and infermation and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by
the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit for the year ended December 31, 2008.

For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates
Chartered Accountants

5P Palaniappan
Place: Mumbai Partrer
Dated: Apnl 30, 2009 Membership Nao. 38378
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMEER 31, 2008

(Rs. in 000's)

Schedule This Year Previous Year
SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDERS FUMDS
Share Capital I 223,636 223 589
Share ‘Warrants (Fefer MNate 3 of Schedule 22) 193,622 -
Employees Stock Option Cutstanding 2 16,187 15,001
Reserves and Surplus 3 4,435,327 1616454
4,968,772 3,855,044
LOAM FUNDS 4
Secured Loans 1,052,845 243792
Unsecured Laan 1.009.730 -
2,062 575 243,752
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (MET) 200,096 101,552
7,231 443 4,200,428
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Black 5 3776623 2.48A,234
Less : Deprecation 524,993 3B5.366
Met Block 3,151,630 2.100.8&8
Capital Work In Progress 594,484 405,169
3,746,114 2,506,037
INVESTMENTS ] 1,152,174 |, 140,591
CURREMNT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVAMCES
A Current Assets
Irterest Accrued on Investment 402 312
Spares and Consumables 19,572 14,652
Sundry Debtors 7 713,341 456,257
Cash and Bank Balances 8 326,000 146,94 |
B. Loans and Advances 9 | 983,048 405,504
3,042,361 |, 023,666
CURRENT LIABILITIES AMD PROVISIONS
A, Current Liabilitles 10 630,669 384,541
B. Provisions I 79.029 B6.231
709,698 470,772
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,332,663 552 894
MISCELLANECUS EXPENDITURE 12 492 Hé
{to the extent not written off or adjusted)
7.231 443 4,200,428
Significant Accounting Policles and Motes on Accounts 22
As per our report of even date
For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates For and on behall of the Board
Chartered Aczountants
5P Palaniappan Shashi Kiran Shetty Keki Elavia
Partrer Chairman & Managing Director Director
Membershib No. 38378
Place : Mumbai 5. Suryanarayanan Shailesh Dholakia
Dated : Apnil 30, 2009 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008

{Rs. in D00's)

Schedule This Year Previous Year
INCOME
Operating Income 13 5167914 3,600,478
Cther Income 14 137,609 44,837
5,305,523 3645315
EXPENDITURE
Multimodal Transport Operations 15 2639478 2043213
Container Freight Stations 16 365,867 I BB.555
Equipment Hire I7 147,782 69,087
Employee Cost 18 341,794 228,490
Adrministratne and Selling 19 402,729 290,335
Interest 20 124,474 20,952
Depredation 5 254 686 142.019
Preliminary Expenses Written Off 414 435
4,277,224 1,983,086
PROFIT BEFORE TAX ANMD EXCEPTIOMAL ITEM 1,028,299 662,229
Provision For Taxation
Current Tax 116,755 76,529
Deferred Tax 98,504 55,053
MAT Credit (60,497) (22,067)
Wealth Tax & 106
Fringe Benefit Tax 9,371 6,936
164,249 | 16,557
PROAT AFTER TAX AMD BEFORE EXCEPTIOMAL ITEMS B&4,050 545,672
Exceptional items {Met of tax) ri] 62,686 52 1e4
PROFIT AFTER TAX AND AFTER EXCEPTIOMAL ITEMS 926,736 597.836
Tax Adjustrrent for earlier years {71} {24
Balance brought forward from Previous Year 942,366 545,44
PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS |.869.031 |.143.253
APPROPRIATIONS :
Interim Dividend Paid - 40,512
Tax on Interirm Dividend - 6,885
Proposed Dividend 55,909 &7 QB8
Tax on Propased Dividend 9,502 11,402
General Reserve 95,000 75,000
Surplus Carried to Balance Sheet I,708,620 4] 366
1,869,031 |, 143,253
EARMIMG PER SHARE (Rs)
Eamnings Per Share - Basic
Before Exceptional ltems 38.65 24.9|
After Exceptional lterms 41.45 2674
Earmings Per Share - Diluted
Before Exceptional lkems 37.59 2487
After Exceptional ttems 40.16 26.69
Significant Accounting Policies and MNotes on Accounts 22
As per our report of even date
For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates Far and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
5P Palaniappan Shashi Kiran Shetty Keki Elavia
Fartmer Chatrman & Managing Director Director
Mermbership No, 38378
Place : Mumbai 5. Suryanarayanan Shailesh Dholakia
Dated ; Apnl 30, 2009 Group Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2008

Particulars

A, Cash Flow From Operating Activities
et Profit Before Tax and Exceptional tems
Deprecation
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Preliminary Expenses Written OFf
Interest Payments
Emplayees Compensation Expenses {Stock Option)
Foreign Exchange Loss{Gain)
Interest Received
Frowision for Doubtful Debts
Profit on Sale of Assets
Profit on Sale of Investrments
Bad Drebts Witten Of
Prowvisions For Liabilioes
Divicdend
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Adpstrrent Far:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables/Stock
Increasef{Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Liabilities
Direct Taxes Paid
Met Cash From Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets {Including Capital Advances)
Purchaze of Investrments
Sale of Investrments
Sale of Fixed Assets
Irvestrmants/Loans to Subsidiaries
Interest Received
Dividend
Met Cash From Investing Activities

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Receipt / Payment of Loans
Prefminary Expenses Incurred
Share lssue Expenses Incurred
Proposed Dividend
Tax on Proposed Dividend
Irterim Dividend
Tax on Intenm Dividend
lssue of Share Warrants
Issise of Share Capital induding Premium
Interast Paid on Loans
Met Cash From Financing Activities

Met Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C)

Cash and Cash Equivalent At The Beginning of ear

Cash and Cash Equivalent of Merged Undertaking At The Beginning of ear
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

This Year

(Rs. in 000's)

Previous Year

As per our report of even date

For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates
For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

5F Palaniappan
Fartrer
Membership No. 38378

Place - Mumbai
Dated : April 30, 2009

1,028,299 662,229
154 686 142,019
1,527 3,308
414 435
124,474 20,952
3.20 7476
(43,825) 2,983
(18,602) (3,545)
37,203 1,567
(13,899) (180)
(30,642) {18,007)
30,612 -
5.877 5,932
(30) (1,137)
1,379,295 824,852
(852,715) 468 284
246,127 42,739
(129,936) i 120,506)
642,771 |, 235371
(1,527,195) (1,236,698)
(3.134,352) (699,254)
3,221,151 827 907
40,263 10,977
(947,305 {(38,973)
18,602 3,545
30 [,137
(2,328,806) (1,131,35%)
1,818,783 43,153
- (630)
{45,310) 5
{67,088) 2
(11,402 -
- {81,024}
- {12,367)
293.622 .
963 2
(124,474 (20,952)
1,865,094 {(72,020)
179,059 31,992
146,941 110,301
- 4,648
326,000 146,94
Shashi Kiran Shetty Keki Elavia
Chairrnan & Managing Director Diirector
5. Suryanarayanan Shailesh Dholakia
Group Chief Financial Cfficer Company Secretary

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Schedule

SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
30,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs, |0/~ each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital

22,363,681 | Equity Shares of Rs, |0/~ each fully paid
{Previows Year 20,255,845 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ each)
Share Capital Suspense

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION OUTSTANDING
Ermployeess Stock Option Dutstanding
Less: Deferred Employee Cormpensation Expenses

RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Securities Premium Account
Balance as per last balance sheet,
Received during the year

Less: Capetalised during the year
Less: Share |ssue Expenses

General Reserve

Balance as per |ast balance sheet,

Add; Transferred from Dermerged Undertaking
Add: Transferred from profit and boss account

Profit and Loss Account

LOAN FUNDS

Secured Loans

From Banks:

a) Working Capital Faalities

[Secured by hypothecation of stores, stock, book debts, certain vehicles,
rnarigage of assets [ interest in assets situated at Mumbai and guaranteed
by a director)

k) Term Loans

(Secured by mortgage of assets of Container Freight Stations at Mumbai and
Chennal and Inland Container Depats at Pithampur and Hyderabad and
Hypathecation of Vehicles and Equipments. Secured Loan of MNil

(P Y. 9,579 thousand) is guaranteed by a director)

Unsecured Loan
6% (Met of Tax) Fully and Compulsonly Convertible Debentures

This Year

Previous Year

300.000 300,000
223,636 202,558
- 21,031
223,636 223,589
19.482 25,299
3,295 10,298
16,187 15,001
2,088,607 2,088,607
2,934 .
2,091,543 2,088,607
7 .
45310
2,046,226 2,088,607
585481 363.286
- | 27,195
95,000 75,000
680.481 585,481
1,708,620 42,366
4,435,327 3.616,454
- 43,105
1,052, 845 200,687
1,052,845 243,792
1,009,730
2,062 575 243,792
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) - SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 ; '
§ g P~ w0 M % » & o oo o~ v e o | e (Rs. in 000's)
= ~ o i~ - R r~ - g _‘\-‘_:‘r L 0 E
= = R B SR - (o S = = wmlS Schedule This Year Previous Year
s B R g =R 0 =]
= E i i & INVESTMENTS
In Subsidiaries
P~ (e el 4 o E =
" B2 § § 2 = E E i 3 E g [ 0,000 Equity Shares of Cortech Transport Services Pyt. Ltd, of Rs, 100/~ each 2,168 2.168
g E L I 8T8 3 Y35 : ¥
=k =% . will IE= [ 1,500 (B, 10,000} Egquity Shares of Allcargo Belgium M, W of Euro 1,000 each 684,793 581,668
D@ + sk om om oo w|m|a (1,500 Equity Shares purchased dunng the year)
F &8 8 5 8 5 8 G |&| 3 ) I
oo o @ oo mom E f?: 250,000 Equity Shares of Hindustan Cargo Ltd of Rs. 10/~ each 89.058 g2,058
= Mil (R, 49,772) Class B’ Ordinary Shares of Eou Hold M.V of Eura 19.55 each - 435,358
"':-I ' ' Ei E E. = ' E E (49,772 Class 'B' Ordinary Shares sold during the year)
g o w | o
§ = Mil (R . 50,000 ) Ordinary Shares of ACM Lines (Pty) Ltd. of SR | each - 263
= (50,000 Ordinary Shares sold during the year)
3 - ' - 1= 9,999 Equity Shares of ECU Line (India) Pyt. Ltd. of Rs. 10/- each 100 100
E_ = 9,999 ( B Y. Mil) Equity Shares of AGL Ports Pvt, Ltd, of Rs 10/~ each 100 -
o (9,999 Equity Shares were subscribed for during the year)
- i 0 — L =+ m 3— = o $ o Y " :
g m = & 5 & A = w 2| = 992 (B Nil) Equity Shares of AGL Projects Pyt Ltd. of Rs |0/~ each 100 +
§ 3 ez = % S - E E (9,999 Equity Shares were subscribed for during the year)
=1
™~ = e A T e Pl [ | 2 9,992 (P . Mil) Equity Shares of AGL Terminals Pvt. Ltd. of Rs |0/~ each 100
- = 2 =z 5 A E & 8 3T |-A|& (2,999 Equity Shares were subscribed for during the year)
& & wE RiR ey mmgle
@ o X || 9,599 (P Y. Mil) Equity Shares of AGL Warehousing Pvt. Ltd. of Rs 10/~ each 100 s
E S - S R g ® @ |ml= (9,999 Equity Shares were subscribed for during the year)
2 0 o o~ R A & 3 & n 2|9 |H
g 8 g § E E‘z g N @ @b = E § 841,500 (B . Nil) Equity Shares of Allcargo Logistes Park Pvt, Lid. of Rs 10/~ each 8415 E
E < = Ll (E41,500 Equity Shares were subscribed for dunng the year)
E g & o2 @ o om &~ - | Q000 (B Y. Mil) Ordinary Shares of Asw Lines Ltd of Buro 100 each 63,400 -
E & E = ik =T per S (10,000 Ordinary Shares were subscnibed for during the year)
> E‘: E o -+ -
r & i
E O = In Fully pald-up-Equity shares
§ _; ' ' ' ' ' ' ' E I} Long Term Investments
n E E 2 Quoted
¢ Fli i
=] e il (B Y. 486 ) Equity Shares of Suzlon Energy Lid. of Rs. |0/~ each - 248
g I = Nk = % @ m oM. | om
3 = g4 F 2 85 8 3|8 & {486 Equity Shares sold during the year)
g . g gz = o Elglg
w e, - = = mil= il (B Y. 283) Equity Shares of Centurion Bank of Punjab Ltd of Rs. 10/~ each - 1a
E (283 Equity Shares sold dunng the year)
E o [~ o ) oo =+ r~ W - =4 x o ’ 1 . :
E z 31 ﬁ 2 5 L 8 H % ] 3 Ml (P Y, £,703) Equity Shares of Mational Thermal Power Corporation Ltd - 416
< o IL'J*I ﬁ ﬁ E i:: E mowe o= T §i § of Rs. |0/~ each (6,703 Equity Shares sold during the year)
™~
g m Ml (R 5,000) Equity Shares of Milleniem Beer Ltd of Rs. |0/~ each - 50
£ 2 @ g (5,000 Equity Shares sold during the year)
g n = &
[ 2]
E g = 2 _'g & E % x | = Ml (R Y, 1,399) Equity Shares of Reliance Petroleurn Ltd of Rs. 10/ each - B4
T N (. T £ e i i
g ., o E § ;‘-:r > B £ E 3 : @ p (1,399 Equity Shares sold during the year)
- Z u & 5 W
a = g 2 § g 2 8 2 8 B ¢ 3|2 10,000 Equity Shares of Magic (Qpro) Trading Co. Lid. of Rs. |0/~ each 100 100
w 5 £ 2 & E 5 3|>|8 Quity agic (Qpro) Trading
. £ g =" 8 By e |z
g g d £ iﬁ{ 3z = E £ 5 & ﬁ £l § 2,500 Equity Shares of Allsoft Corporation Ltd. of Rs.10/- each 83 83
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Schedule

Unquoted - Trade
In Associate Companies

10 Equity Shares of Alitrans Port Management Pvt. Ltd, of Bs, 100~ each

21,800 Equity Shares of Transnepal Freight Services Pyt Ltd. of Rs. |00/
(Mepal Rupees) each

90 Ordinary Shares of Trarsworld Logstcs & Shippirg Senvices Inc, of USD 500 each
5,000 (B v, Mily Equity Shares of Sealand Warehousing Put. Lid. of Rs |0/~ each
(5,000 Equity Shares purchased during the year)

I} Current Investrnents - MNon Trade

(At cost or market value whichewver is kower)

A Investments in Mutual Funds Units

435.645.326 Units of Reliance Equity Cipportunities Fund

54921 1,796 (B Y. Mil) Units of Birda Sunife Income Plus
(549,21 1.796 Units purchased duning the year)

3,639,596, 184 (R v Nil) Uinits of Birta Sunlife Liguid Plus Retall Growth
(3,639,596, 1 B4 Units purchased during the year)

8,718,992.631 (B Y. MNil) Units of DWS5 Liquid Plus Fund - Ultra Short
Term Fund (8,7 18,992,631 Units purchased during the year)

5,288 464,668 (B Y. MNil) Units of Tata Floater Fund
(5.288,464.668 Units purchased duning the year)

3451, 129771 (B 7. Nil) Units of Templeton Floating Rate Income
Fund Long Term IP Greath (3,451, 129771 Units purchased during the year)

I 04,2321 54 (B NIl Units of ICIC) Prudential Floating Rate Fund Plan C
(1. 104,232,154 Units purchased during the year)

Mil (P, 241,460.352) Units of DWS Insta Cash Plus Fund
(241,460,352 Units sold during the year)

Ml (P Y, 399, 797.7 10} Units af ICIC] Prud. Intit Plan
(399,797,710 Units sold during the year)

BiL{P Y B50,081.878) Units of LIC Prinapal Cash Management Fund
(B50.081.876 Units sold during the year)

Aggregate Amount of Quoted Investmernts
Aggregate Amaount of Unguoted Investments
Aggregate Amount of Current Investments

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments
Aggregate Market Value of Current Investmerts

{Rs. in 000's)

This Year Previous Year

I |

1,363 | 363

1.093 | 093

50 .

4,500 4,500
22,000

59,226 -

88,208 -

67,856 -
44,360

15,000 -

- 3,000

- 7,720

- 13,208

1,152,174 | 140,591

183 09

850,842 [ 111,254

301,149 28.428

1,152,174 |, 140,591

47 31,308

302,796 24,079

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Schedule

CURREMNT ASSETS, LOAMNS & ADVANCES

SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured )
Debts outstanding over six manths
Considered Good

Cansidered Daubthul

Cither Debts
Consdered Good
Considered Croubiful

Less :Provision for Doubtful Debts

Ciut of the above Sundry Debtors Rs, | 85,485 thousand
(R Rs, B241 | thousand) is outstanding from Subsidiary Companies

CASH AMND BANE BALAMCES
Cash on Hand

Balances with Scheduled Banks:
In Current Accounts

In Fixed Deposit Accounts

LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

Dwe from Subsidiaries

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be recened

Advance Tax net of provissons Rs, 37|, 742 thousand (B Y, Rs. 252,575 thousand)
MAT credit entitlerment

Balance with Custarns and Ports

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Sundry Creditors

Tetal Cutstanding dises to:

Micra, Small or Medium Enterprises

Cithers

Unpaid Dividend®

Other Liabilities

*There is no amaunt due to be credited to Investors Education & Pratection Fund

PROVISION

For Proposed Dividend

For Tax on Proposed Diadend
For Retirement Banefits

MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
Preliminary Expenses
Less : Witten off durng the year

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008

(Rs. in 000's)

This Year Previous Year
105,809 56,839
38211 [.955

I 44,020 SH.794
607,532 399418
- | 870
607,532 401,288
751,552 450,082
3B.211 3,825
713341 456,257
5,666 5213
286,788 B6,767
33.546 54 96|
326,000 | 46,94 |
562,305 38973
1,135,335 2922718
42,243 42,064
93,836 26,652
149,327 5,457
1,983,046 405,504
199,408 137 884
101 70
431,180 246,585
630,669 3B4.541
55,909 &7.088
9,502 I 1,402
13,618 7,741
79.029 Ba.231
906 | 341

414 435
497 gt
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2008 SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

{Rs. in 000's) {Rs. in 000's)
Schedule This Year Previous Year Schedule This Year Previous Year
13 OPERATING INCOME 18 EMPLOYEE COST
Mutimodal Transport Operations 3,327,838 2,424,742 Salaries & Other Banefits 288716 175,573
Container Freght Stations 1.454.96| 934,132 Caortributson to Prowdent & Other Funds 11.726 10,194
Equipment Hire 385,115 24| 604 Gratuity 4,444 |.853
5,167,914 3,600,478 Staff Welfare Expenses 36,908 40,870
341,794 228.450
14 OTHER INCOME
Interest (Gross of tax deducted at source Rs, 2621 thousard (FY, Rs, 666 thousand)) 18,602 3,545 9 ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING
Profit on Sale of Assets 13,899 a0
) Cornmunication Charges 17.311 16,151
HECHLE 39 o Rvesiers s o Rent, Rates & Taxes 59,663 48,102
Management Fees 14,967 9,325
Dividend 30 1,137 Traveing 76,133 56,013
_— ) 618 Electnoty Charges 19.389 13,180
Repairs ta
Rxchangs: Gainftose Yids ; ;ullding 6,424 12,900
Busmess Support Charges I;:::; J:g:? Others 9.771 6073
Directors' Fees & Commission 3,865 3,335
Professional and Legal Fees 44.094 43,218
15 MULTIMODAL TRANSPORT OPERATIONS
) Insurance 4.015 5314
Operating Expenses | 664,707 |,.529.017 CiaRABEr 621 | 1.600
Clairms and C.‘omper'lsaﬂm 8.145 2689 B i e i 26,291 6700
Documentation Charges e 6.4 Provision for Doubtful Debts 37,203 2,567
Break Bulk Expenses 644,976 147,154 ;
Insurance 4622 6,958 ot b Ao
Import Delivery Order Charges 50,598 46,597 RS L W
Air Freight Expenses 43.088 48,695 Fear Tax Audit , 450 406
Criace Resarvation Chirges 11,360 9,436 for Otier services s =28
Fuel Expenses 52,484 95,779 Sl b iy
Vehicle Repairs 39,264 32618 402,729 290,335
Spares Consumed 38,568 270
Cither Expenses 67,413 75213 20 INTEREST
2,639,478 2043213 On Fxed Loans 63,946 15.2%8
Cn Bank Cverdrafts 782 4612
l6& CONTAINER FREIGHT STATIONS Cn Debentures 58,756 -
Power & Fuel 89,061 30,762 Other Interest 990 [.042
Container Transportation Charges 18,266 10,707 124 474 30,952
Equipment Hire Charges 32,308 19,1664
Repairs & Maintanance - Others 49,599 13,538 2 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (NET OF TAX)
RaaE S ik en Earfier Years Depreciation written back : 33,366
s 188,555 Profit on sale of shares of subsidiary 67,741 7.457
17 EQUIPMENT HIRE Capital work in progress written off 4,540 .
Spares Consurmed 32,542 23,054 Exceptional Income {MNet) 63.201 40,823
Fuel Expenses 14,423 16613 Less: Prowvision for Tax
Hiring Expenses 56,212 4,457 Current Tax 7.161 4,625
Insurance 814 281 Deferred Tax - (11.341)
Repairs: & Maintenance - Cthers 31,967 I7.047 MAT Credit (6,646) {4,625)
Other Expenses 10,824 7,633 62.686 52 164
147,782 &9 087
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Schedule 22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
Accounting Conventions:

The finandal statements are prepared under the histoncal cost convention, on the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with the
generalty accepted accounting prnciples in India, the accounting standards notifed by Companies Accounbing Standard Rules, 2006 and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Adt, | 956.

Fixed Assets:

2.|  Fixed assets are reconded at cost less accummulated depreciation,

2.2 Costindudes purchase price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its applicable use.
Asset Impairment:

The Cormpany reviews the carmying values of tangible and intangible assets for any possible mpairment at each Balance sheet date. An
impairment boss is recognised when the carrying amount of an assel exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing the recoverable amount,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value at an appropriate discount rate,

Depreciation;
4.1 Leasehold land is amortsed equalty over the penod of the lease.

4.2 Depreciation on fixed assets including assets created on land and office premises under lease is provided on straight line method in
accordance with Schedule XIV of the Companies Act. 1956, Renewal of leases s assumed consistent with past practice.
Depraciation on fixed assets s provided on straight line method atthe rate spedfied in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, | 956.

4.3 Fimed assets costing Rs, 5,000/~ ar less are fully depreciated in the year ol acquisition,
Investments:

5.0  Long Term Investments are carried at cost, Provision for dimunition, if any, in the value of each long term investment is made to
recognize a decline other than of a temporary nature. The fair value of a long term investment is ascertained with reference to its
marketvalue, the investes's assets and results and the expected cash flows from the investment,

5.2 Current Investrnents are carried at lower of cost or fair value.
5.3  Profit/loss on sale ofinvestments i computed with reference to their average cost,
Inventories:

Imwertaries of Spares and Consumables are valued at cost or net realisable value whichever is |ower, Cost also includes all charges incurred far
bringing the inventories to their present condition and location.

Expenditure During Construction Period

Expenditure during construction pericd 15 incuded under Capital Work in Frogress and the same 15 allocated to the respective fiked assets on
cornpletion of canstruction.

Borrowing Cost

Baorrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition/ construction of the undertying fixed assets are capitalised as the part of the
respective asset upto the date of the acquisivon/ completion of construction .

Miscellaneous Expenditure:

Preliminary expenses are amortised over a period of § years,

10.

Revenue Recognition;

0.1 Multimadal Transpart Income and Multimodal Transport Expenses are recognized on the basis of salling of vessels and completion of
transpart as per contractual terms.

10.2 Income fram Container Freight Station Operations relating to expart containers is accaunted on an accrual basis, Cantainer Freight
Staticn ground rent charge on Import Stuffed Containers is accounted to the extent of recover abilty from camers of containers,
Import cargo handling charges are accounted on dearance.

10.3 Revenue and expenses for sale of abandoned cargo are recognized when auctioned. Surplus, if any, out of auctions is credited to a
separate account HAuction Surplus” and is shown under Current Liabilties. Unclaimed Auction Surplus cutstanding for more than one
year is written back as income in the subsequent financial year:

0.4 Income on equipment hire is recognized as per contractual terms,

. Employee's Retirement Benefit:

I'l.1 Retirement benefits inthe form of Provident Fund and Family Pension Fund which are defined contribution schemes are charged to the
Profit & Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respectve funds accrue.

I'1.2 Gratuity liability which is 2 defined benefit scheme is accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of
each financial year,

1.3 Leave encashrment berefit on retirement, wherever applicable, s determined on the basis of actuanal vabeation and sudh liability is
provided in the accounts,

Employees Stock Option Plan:

The Accourting value of stock options representing the excess of the market price over the exercise price of the options granted under
“Employees Stock Option Scheme” of the Company is amortised on straight-fine basis over the vesting period as "Deferred Employees
Compensation” in accordance with SEBI { Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme ) Guidelines, 999 as

amended fromtime totime,

. Taxes onlncome:

Current Tax is the amount of tax payable on the assessable income for the year determined in accordance with the prowvisions of the Income
TaxAat, 1961,

Dreferred Tax is recognised on tming differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting incorme that originate in one
pericd and are capable of reversal in one or mare subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets on unabsorbed tax bosses and tax depreciation are
recognised only when there is virtual certainity of their realisation and on other iterns when there is reasanable certainity that sufficient future
taxable mcome will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The tax effect is caloulated on the accumulated timing
differences at the year end based on the tax rate and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date,

Prowvision far Fringe Benefit Tax for the year has been determined in accordance with the provisions of section | 1 5W(C of the Income Tax
Act, 1961,

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guidance Mote issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The said asset is created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT
Crecit Entitlerment. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carmping amaunt of MAT Credit
Entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Cormpany will pay normal Income Tax during the specified
period.

Fereign Currency Transactions:

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilites
denorminated in foreign currency are translated at the yvear end exchange rates. Exchange gairs/losses are recognised in the prafit and koss
account. Mon Monetary forefgn currency itemns like imvestrient in foreign subsidiaries are carried at cost and expressed in Indian currency at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the ime of the onriginal transaction,

o
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Leases:

Lease rentals in respect of operating lease arrangements are charged to Profit and Loss Account. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are
expensed in the vear in which such costs are incurred, Expenditures incurred on improvements to leasehold premises are classified into
Cagatal and Revenue, Capital expenditures are classified under Fxed assets and Revenue expenditures are debited to Profit and Less Account,

Segment Reporting:

The fccounting Palicies adopted for segment reporting are in line with Accaunting Policies of the Company, Segments assets include al|
operating assets used by the business segments and consist prindpally of fixed assets and current assets. Segrment liabilibies incude the
operating liabilities that result from the cperating activities of the business. Sepment assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the
segrnents are shown as part of unallocated corporate assets and liabilities respectively, Income/Expenses refating to the enterprise as a whole

and notallocable on a reasonable bass to business segments are reflected as unallocated corporate income / expenses,

Motes Ferming Part of Accounts:

Figures in rupees have been rounded off to the nearest thousands,

Previous period figures are regrouped wherever necessary 1o confirm to this year's classification.
Issue of securities on preferential basis

Pursuant to an agreement dated February 20, 2008 entered into with Blackstone Group enfrties, the Company has issued and allotted
follewing securities on preferential basis on March 27, 2008 in accordance with the provisions of Section 8 |{ 1 A) of the Companies Act, | 956
read with SEBI {Dhsclosure and Investor Protection) Guidelings, 2000, for Preferential lssues, dunng the year,

] 1,000 Equity Shares of Bs. | 0 each at a prermium of Bs. 924 per equity share aggregating Rs. 934 thousand,

iy 6% (Met of mx) | 081,081 Fully and Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (FCCDs) of Rs. 934 each aggregating Rs, 1,009,730
theasand. These FOCDs shall be compulsarily corverted into equal number of equity shares of Rs. |0 each at a premium of Rs. 924
perequity share oncompletion of | B months from the date of their allotment; and

iy 1,513,514 Warrants of Rs, |0 each convertible into equal number of equity shares at the option of the Warrant Holders at any time
before completion of |8 manths fram the date of their allatrment at a price ranging from Rs. 934 per Equity Share to Rs, |,284 per
Equity Share. The conversion price will be determined based on the consolidated recurming operational performance ofthe Comparny
forthe finandal year ended December 31,2008, The Company has received Rs. 293,622 thousand @ Rs. 194 per Warrant upfront
from the Warrant Holders. In the event that the Warrant Holders do not exercise their option to corvert, part or all of the Warrants
into Equity Shares, the Warrants shall stand cancelled and the amount paid on the Warrants that have not been converted shall be
forfeited.

Contingent Liabilities not provided for :
i) Counter Guarantees to Banks against guarantees issued by them Rs, 349,275 thousand (Previous Year Rs. | 57,799 thousand)

il Continuity Bond executed in favour of The President of India throwgh the Cormmissioner of Custorns Rs. 3,245,000 thousand
(Presious Year Rs. 1,145,000 thousand)

i) Guarantees ssued to Bankers in respect of Mepal Intermodal Transport Development Board Rs, 6,978 thousand (Previous Year
Rs. 6,656 thousand)

w)  Custorn Duty payable on Import of equipment under EPCG Scherne if the Company is not able to fulfill s Export Obligation,
Rs. 52,957 thousand (Previous Year Bs 41,497 thousand).

v} Suits filed against the Company towards operational claims Rs, 30,338 thousand (Previous Year Rs. 28,620 thousand)

¥ij  Income tax demands against which the Company has preferred appealsfrectifications Rs. 4,932 thousand (Previous Year
Rs. 4.932 thousand),

EH

Amounts due to Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises:

i} The narme of the Micro, Small and Medium Erterprises suppliers defined under “The Micro, Small and Medium Emterprises
Development Act, 20067 could not be identified, asthe necessary evidence s not in the possession of the Company.

iy The narme of the Srmall Szale Undertakings to whorm the Company owes a sum exceeding Rs, | 00,000 which is cutstanding for mere
than 30 days could not be identified, as the necessary information is notin the possession of the Company,

In the apinion of the management and to the best ol its knowledge and belief, the Current Assets and Loans and advances have a value on
realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated inthe Balance Sheet.

The Company has raised Rs, | 403,325 thowsand through an Inmial Pubdic Offer (IPC) and as on December 31,2008, the actual utifisation of
the said proceeds of IPO as per the objects dause, as amended by the Company vide its approval at the Extra- Ordinary General Meeting held
an January 5, 2007, inter alia to inchude acquistion of land and setting up of Container Fresght Stations/ Inland Container Depots and other
sirnilar propects therean at various other locations in India is as follows:

(Rs. in 000's)
Particulars Project Cost as per Prospectus Actual Utilisation of Funds
settng up of CFSACD in Chennai, Mundra, Indore,
Bangakore, Goa, Hyderabad, Delhi and Ahmedabad 797.800 760,360
Repayment of Term Loan | 50,000 | 50,000
General Corporate Expenses incuding Acquesitions 435,900 435,500
Issue Expenses 105,200 105,200

Segrmert Reporting

@) Information about Business Segments (Information provided in respect of revenue items for the year ended December 31,2008 and
mnrespect of assets /abilities asat December 3|, 2008.)

Particulars

Multimodal

Transport

Operations

Container

Freight

Station

Previous

Equipment

Division

(Rs. in D00's)

This Previous i TH This Previous Previous
Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
Revenue
External 3327838 2424742 | 454961 934,132 385,115 241,604 5167914 3600478
Add ; Inter Segment Revenue 45,349 164,157 27,047 (2411 109,797 20,000 182,193 | 99,568
Total Revenue 3.373.187 2550899 1482008 47543 494912 261,604 5,350,107 3,800.046
Result
Segment Result Before
Interest And Tax 347093 228,585 831,230 444,190 184,369 05,216 1,362,692 77799
Interest Expense (124.474) (20552
Unallocated Income net of
Unallocated Expenses (209.919) (F4.B10)
Profit Before Tax and
Exceptional ltem 1028299 662229
Taxes 64,249 | 16,557
Profit After Taxes And Before
Exceptional ltems Be4.050 545872
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Particulars Multimodal

Transport

Operations

This

Year

Add: Exceptional ltems
(net of tax)

Profit After Tax

Segment fssets 1,195,987
Unallocated Assets

Tatal Assets

Segrnent Liabilities 350,169
Unallocated Liabilities

Tatal Liablities

Total Costs mcurred during
the year to acquire

Segment Assets 122,543
Segment Depreciation 38.877
Secondary Segment

— Geographical

The Compariy's operating

fadilities are located only in India

Domestc Revenues

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
List of Related Farties and Pelabonships

(A)  Relationships :
I}y Subsidiary Companies

3y Fellow Subsidary Comparnies :

Previous

Year

T49.617

302,903

70,196

38746

Container Equipment

Freight Division

Station

This Previous This

Year Year Year

1815611 1320441 | 417787

72027  |56,888 54,556

572663 544,59 778,658

36,18l 34,006 149316

Contech Transport Services Pyt Ltd
Allcargo Bedgium MM

Hindustan Cargo Ltd.

ECU Line (India} Pvt Ltd

AGL Ports Pyt Lid

AGL Projects Pyt Ltd

AGL Terminals Pyt Ltd

AGL Warehousing Pt Lid

Allcargo Logistics Park Pyt Lid

Asia Lines Lid.

ECL Internatonal {Asia) Pyvt, Lid.
ECU-Lire Hong Kong Ltd.

ECU Line Guangzhou Ltd

ECL! Line Philippines Inc,

ECU Line Singapare Pte. Ltd,

Previous

Year

&l ,802

39,530

350,979

67.00%

This

Year

62,686
926,736
4,429,385
3,511,756
7,941,141
476,752
2,495,617

2,972,369

1,473,864

244,354

5.167.914

(Rs. in 000's)

Previous

Year

52,164
597,836
2,681,860
1,589,340
4,671,200
499,321
316,835

Bie, |56

985,766

13976l

3.600.478

ECL) Line {Thailand) Co. Ltd.
ECU Line Middleeast LLC
ECU Lne Abu Dhabi LLC
ECL) Liree Drosha WL L.

ECU Line Malaysia ECU-Line {|B) Sdn Bhd

ECL! Line |apan Ltd,

ECU Irtermational Far East Ltd.
ECLI-Line Panama 5.4,
ECLU-Linee Paraguay 5.4,

ECU Logistics do Brasil Ltda
ECU-Line Canada Inc.

ECL Line De Calurmbia 5.4,
ECU Line Del Ecuador 5.4
ECL) Line Guatermala

CELM Logistics 5.A. De CM
ECU-Line Liruguay (Deolix 54)
ECL Line Australia Py, Ltd.
ECU Line Mew Zealand Lid,
ECU-Line {Garmany) GmbH
ECU-Line LUK Ltd

ECLU-Line Polska 5p. zo.o, UL
ECU-Line Rarmania SR

ECU International M.\
ECL-LINE MM

ECU LIME Rotterdam

ECU Line Turkey

ECL) Line Meditterranean Lid
ECL Line |talia SRL

ECL! Line |ordan

ECU Line Kenya Ltd
ECLU-Line Malta Ltd

ECU Line Maroe 5.4,

ECU Line Spain 5.L. Barcelona
ECL) Lime Tuniesia sarl

ECU Line Egypt Ltd

ECU LIMNE SA (Phy.) Ltd.
ELWA, (GH) Led.

ECU Line Algerie

ECL) Line Chile 54

ECU Air Belgium

ECU Logistics 54

Flaminge Line do Brazil Ltda
ECUHOLD MM
ECL-TRAMS MM

FMKE B

Corecl Intermational 5.4,
Flarminge: Line El Salvador 54 de OV
ECU Line Ivory Coast

ECL-Line {Indan Ccean lslands) Ltd,

Flarmingo Line Pery 5.4
Ecu Line China Ltd
ECLU-Line Vietnam

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008
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=
Lol

3)

4

3)

&)

|sint Menture Company :

Agsociate Comparny !

Key Management Personnel ;

Enterprises owned or significanthy
influenced by its key management

personnel or their relatives

(B) Transactions with Related Parties:

Sr. No.

Transactions

Subsidiary

Companies

Interest Received 4752
MTO Income 92,558
Business Service Charges
Rent Paid

Remuneration to Dhirectors
{ Coammissian pad

Car Hire charges
MTO Operation Expenses 88,900

Outstanding Payables

Transworld Logistics & Shipping Services Inc
Sealand Warehaousing Pyt Ltd

Transnepal Freight Services Put Lid

|3 Mr. Shashi Kiran Shetty
2) Mrs. Arathi Shetty
1) Mr, Adarsh Hegde
4) Mr, Uimesh Shetty

Allcargo Shipping Services (F) Ltd,
Avadh Marketing (F) Lid.

M. R. Holdings (F) Ltd.

Transindia Freight (7) Lid.

Allearge Movers (Bombay) (F) Ltd.
Allnet Infotech (F) Ltd.

Prosminent Estate Holdings (F) Ltd
Transindia Freight Services (P) Ltd |,
|upiter Machines (F) Ltd,

Sealand Cranes (F) Lid,

Contech Estate {P) Ltd.

(Rs. in 000's)
Fellow Joint Associate Key Enterprises
Subsidiary Venture | Companies [Management| owned or
Companies Company Personnel | Significantly
influenced
by its key
Management
Personnel
or their
relatives
481,264 24 066 B B
- 200
= z . 21944 le.0el
- = : | 6,480
600
231445 29,55 - -
43,536

Transactions

Loans Given

Refund of Loans Given
Qutstanding Recenables
Management Fees Received
Rent Deposit Faid

Business Suppart Charges
Received

Reimbursarmert of
Expenses Received

Professional Fees Paid

Capital Expenditure

Share Application Money

Subsidiary

Companies

636,265
215,256
500,837

5,455

657

8,804

68,688

Fellow

Subsidiary

Companies

8.542
10,966
178,265

9,512

Joint

Venture

Company

385,000

Associate

Companies

246

Key

Management

Personnel

145718

60,000

77,729

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008

Enterprises

owned or
significanthy
influenced

by its ley

Management

Personnel
or their

relatives
35,180
255

37,993

I, 080

|0, Esttmated amourt of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 15 approsamate Rs. 71,094 thousand
{Previaus Year Rs. | 10, | 5% thousand)
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'l Computation of Profits under Sectian 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 13, Asthe Company is not engaged in manufacturing, trading or processing activities, Quantitative information required by paras - 3 and 4c of
(Rs. in 000's) part L of Schedule Vl of the Companies Act, 1956 isnot given.
[4. Value ofimports caloulated on CIF basis in respect of Capital Goods is Bs. 538,269 thousand (Previcus Year Rs, 327 627 thousand)
Profit for the year before tax and exceptional iterns as per Profit & Loss Account 1,028,299 662,227
Add: Directars Remuneration 93,089 25,569 |5, Dischosure for lease
Directors Sitting Fees 865 735

Com s hzase agreements are mainly in respect of operating leases taken for offices, residertial premises, warehouse, commercial
Loss on Sale of Investments z pany i ¥ p p i e

vehicles and equipment, The lease agreements are for a peried ranging from eleven menths to nine years. The lease agreements are

L.oss on Sale of Assets 1527 - .
cancellable at the option of ether party by gving one month to six month's notice. The Company has gven refundable interest free security
epreCELORf a5 e ocousts S54686 HA013 deposits for certan agreements, Certain agreements provide for increase in Lease rent. Some of the agreements provide for repewal of
Pravisian for Doubtful Debts 37.203 2,567 lease by mutual consent. Lease payments recognized in the Profit and Loss Account are RBs. 121,146 thousand (Previcus Year Rs. 65,294
Profit on Sale of Assets as per Secton 349 of the Companees Act 956 13,899 160 theasand) The Carmpany has leased out commercial vehicles and office premises, The lease rental incorme recognized n the Profit and Loss
1,429,568 833,277 Acoount |s Rs, 382,573 thousand (Pressous ‘fear Rs. 242,222 thousand) The Gross value of the Leased Asset s Rs. 1,319,607 thousand
{Previous vear Rs. 80,886 thousand). Accumulated depreciation of the Leased Asset & Rs. 253,842 thousand (Previous Year
Lesz: Profit on Sale of Asssts 13,899 160 Rs. 101,578 thousand). The depreciation recognized in the staternent of Profit and Loss account for the year is Rs, 127,399 thousand
Profit on Sale of Investments 30,642 25,464 (Previgusiitar s, |25 thoussnc)
Loss on Sale of Assets /s 350 of the Companies Act. 1354 |.527 - ) ) ) _ )
| & Following Securities {current imvestments) were purchased and sold during the year,
Depreciation u/s 350 of the Companies Act, |956 154 686 142,019
B e (Rs. in 000's)
300,754 167,643 Mame of the Security This Year | Previous Year
Met Profit for the purpose of Director's Remuneration | 128814 665,634 Units | Units
Birla Sun Life Cash Manager Institutional Premium Growth Plan 3236 | 4431
Maximum Managenal Rernuneration to Managing and Executive Directors
@ |0% of the Net Profits 112,881 66,563 WS Money Pius Regular Growth Plan = 5,180
Managerial Rermunerabon Paid,/Payable 90,089 22969 katak Bond Short Term Growth Plan - 25,081
Maximum Commission to MNon Executive Directors (@ | %6 of the Met Profits 11,288 6,656 LIC MF Liquid Fund Growth Plan " 79 988
Commissan 1o Non Executive Directors Paid/Payatbe 3,000 2,600
rnr-r NN EXeauilve EATRCIMS FARVT AR Principal Cash Managemernt Fund Liguid Option Institutional Prermium Growth Plan 1.929 4408
12. Managerial Remuneration Frudertal ICIC] Institutional Short Term Plan Curedative Optian Plan - 2415
(Rs. In 000's)
This Year Previous Year
Remuneration paid to Managing Director/Whole-time Directors CWS Credit Opportunites Cash Fund 9.32% 5,256
sl A 16,490 19,051 Birla Cash Plus Liquid Plan 7,750 745
Contribution to Funds |.265 218
Value of Perquisites 2,344 = HDFC Cash Management - |86
Commission 70,000 2,000
[CIC Prudential Liguid Fund 4,380 3441
90,089 22,969
Remuneration to MNon Executive Directors JM Maney Manager Fund 4,612 828
PYo S tnasiden 3000 460 Kotak Flexi Debt Scheme Growth Plan : 7,743
Sitting Fees 865 733
93,954 26304 Kotak Mahindra Mutual Fund - 1,277
Lotus India Leguid Plus Fund - | 7,654

Provisions for retirement benafits which are based on actuanial valuation done for the Cormpany as a whole are exduded from the above,
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MName of the Security

Principal Floating Rate Fund FrMS
Principal FRF fund

"Principal PMNB FMP

"Reliance FMP I

Refiance Ligudity Fund

SBI Mutual Fund

'UTI Maney Market Fund

HDFC Mutual Fund

M Financial Mutual Fund

Termpleton India TMA Super IP Growth Plan
Tata Treasury Manager SHIP

LI Mutual Fund Liguic Plus Fund
Principal Liqusd Plus Fund

Mirae Asset Liguid Plus Fund
Templeton Floating Rate Incorme Fund Long Term Fund
Templeton India Litra Short Bond Fund
LIC Mutual Fund Interval Fund-Series]
HDFC Liguid Fund-Premmum Plan

M High Liguidity Fund-Super [P

H2AC] Priedential FMP Series 44

LIC MF Liquid Fund

Templeton India THA

ICIC| Prudential Flexible Incorme Plan
Tata Liquid Fund-Pramium Plan

Tata Licued Super High [mvestment Fund

WS Insta Cash Plus Fund

|7, Emplovees Stock Option Plan

I 2006, the Company had instituted an Employee Stock Option Plan (ESCF 2006) ta attract, retain, motivate and reward its employees
and to enable them to partiopate in the growth, development and success of the Company. The Company granted stock options to be
adjusted for the subsequent bonus issue prior to its Initial Public Offering of equity shares, to its permanent employess and to few of the

permanent employees of its foreign subsidianes atvarying nurmbers depending upan their grades,

This Year

Units

3,143
31,598
25

94
18,605
9,668
S0
9,258
9,708
9914
6,100
4,128
10,212
5797
51

| 3,407
1,172

16,536

Previous Year

Units

7478
6,585
| 1,474
8,000
5,439
10,000

429

The fallowing table sets farth the particulars of stock options granted under Allcargo ESOP-2006 as on Decermnber 31, 2008:

Options outstanding at the begnning

This Year

Mo. of Options

Series |
{Pre - Listing)

Series Il
(Post -
Listing)

Wt.

Average

Exercise| (Pre - Listing)

Price

Previous Year

Mo. of Options

Series |

So rie§ .I-I
(Post -
Listing)

| Wt

| Average

| Exercise

Price

af the year 22,600 13.000 10 38,300 13,000 e}
Add : Options granted dunng the year - - - -
Less : Exercised 2977 - 1 - -
Less : Forfeited / expired 2,777 2,500 10 15,700 1
Options outstanding at the year end | 6,846 10,500 10 22,600 13,000 )
Ciption exercisable at year end &, T4 1,675 - - -
Dhluted Eamings Per Share pursuant to
msue af shares on exerdse of opton
calculated in accordance with 4016 4016 - 26.69 16.63 -
Accourting Standard (AS) 20 Eaming
Per share
Difference, i any, between the The Company The Campany The Company | The Company
employee compensation cost cakoulated | has charged has charged has charged has charged
using the intrinsic value of stock options | a sum of Rs. a surm of Rs. a surm of Rs. a surn of Rs.
and the emplayes compensation cost | 556 thousand | 1,645 thousand 3,597 thousand | 3,679 thousand
recognized if the fair value of the options | being the fair being the fair being the fair being the fair
had been used and the impact of this value of options | value of options value of options | value of options
difference on profits and EPS of the granted under granted under granted under | granted under
Company. ESOF 2004 ESOP 2006 ESOP 2006 ESOP 2006

(Senes |} for the | (Series ) for the (Series I} for the | (Series 1) for the

yaar ended wear ended year ended year ended

Dec. 31,2008, | Dec. 31, 2008. Dec. 31, 2007. | Dec. 31, 2007.
Weighted-average exercise prices and
weighted-average fair values of options Mot Mot Mot Mt
whase exercise price either equals or Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable

exceeds or is [ than the market

price of the stock,

=l
oo
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|8, Retirerment Benefits

The Company recognizes the provision for the employee retirerent benefits as per the Accounting Standard |5 (Revised 2005)

"Employee Benefits”,

Acturial valuation of Gratuity [ Funded) have been done with the following assumptions:

L Assumptions :

Discount Rate
Rate of Return on Plan Assets
Salary Escalation

1. Change in the Present Value Obligation ;

Liability at the beginning of the year
Interest Cost

Currert Service Cost

Past Service Cost (Man Vested Berefit)
Fast Service Cost (Vested Benefit)
Lability Transfer in

Liahility transfer out

Benefit Faid

Actuanal (gain)loss on obligatons
Liability at the end of the year

lll. Change in the Fair Yalue of Plan Assets :

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning of the year
Expected Return on Plan Assets

Contributions

Transfer from ather cormpany

Transfer to other company

Benefit Faid

Actuanal pam/(loss) on Plan Assets

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year

Total Actuarial GaindLoss) To Be Recognised

IV.  Actual Return on Plan Assets :

Expected Return on Plan Assets
Actuarial gain/loss) on Plan Assets
Actual Return on Plan Assets

V. Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet :

Lability at the end of the year

Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the year
Difference

Unrecognised Past Service Cost

Un recagnised Transition Liabslity

Amournt Recognised in the Balance Sheet

This Year

8.00%
8.00%
6.00%

7.785
BIO
2638

6,330
619
|70z

(588)
(256)
7,808
(1,611)

619

(256)
363

12,000
7,808
(4,193)

(4,193)

(Rs. in 000’s)

Previous Year

B.00%
8.00%
&6.00%

6,033
588
2,087

(688}
(235}
7785

5013
468
| 416

(688)
12|
6,330
356

468
121
589

7,785
6,330
(1,455)

(1,455}

Y. Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement : This Year
Current Servce Cost 1638
Interest Cost gl0
Expected Return an Plan Assets (619)
Past Service Cost {Mon Vested Benefit) Recognised -
Past Sarvice Cost (Vested Benefit) Recognised -
Recognition of Transtion Liability -
Actunal Gan or Loss 1all
Expense Recognised in P& L 4,440

¥il. Balance Sheet Reconciliation :

Opening Met Lishility 1,455
Expense as above 4,440
Transfer from other company 1

Transfer to other company -
Ermployers Contribution 1,702
Amount Recognsed in Balance Shest 4,193

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008

{Rs. in 000’s)

Previous Year

2.087
588
(468)

(356}
|85

Rery
[.85]

[ 416
[ 455

Vill. Category of Assets :

Government of India Assets =

Corporate Bands - -
Special Deposits Scheme -

State Got = .
Property - -
Crther -

Insurer Managed Funds 7,808 6,330
Total 7,808 6,330

b} The Amounts recognized in respect of unfunded obligations:
Amount recognized in the balance sheet in respect of leave liabifity

Amount recognized in Salanes and Other Benefits in the Profit and Loss Account
i respect of keave lzbility

19, MAT Entidement

Rz, 9417 thousand

Rs. 3,131 thousand

During the year, the Company has made provision for Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) of Rs, 123,916 thausand (P Y. Rs. 81, | 54 thousand).
Considering the future expected benefits, the Company has recognized Rs. 47, | 43 thousand (P Rs. 26,692 thousand) as MAT entitlement

credit representing excess of MAT provision cvercurrent tax.

20, Earnings in Foreign Exchange

(Rs. in 000s)

This Year Previous Year

Dividend -
Multimeodal Transport Operations 149,078
Equiprment hire 5773
Profit on sale of shares 67,741
Business Support Services 15,644
Managerment Fees 9512

| .0%0
217,523
855
7457
12,045
9,325
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Balance Sheet Date

21,  Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Rs. in 000's) INFORMATION REQUIRED AS PER PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

| ReGITRATION DETALS
Professional Fees 20,586 1,33 Registration No LT T T 1 I7Iz]s]ol8] stateCode LT T LI D L [l
Cther Expenditures 484,958 124,34 ]

[3[1]1f2]2]ofofs]
Il CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR (AMOUNT IN RUPEES)

22, Dividend Remitted in Foreign Currency

This Year Previous Year
Mo, of MNan Resident Shareholders 74 66
Ma. of Shares held 2,876,964 | 662,168
The Proposed Dwidend of non resident shareholders are distributed locally to their custodians for the current year,
23, Computation of Deferred Tax is as follows: (Rs. in 000's)
This Year Previous Year
Deferred Tax Liability:
Difference in Block of Assets 204,714 104,816
Deferred Tax Assets;
Fiscal and other disallowances 4618 3224
Deferred Tax Liability [Met) 200,096 101,592

24,  Eamings Per Share:

This Year Previous Year

aj Met Profit Available for Equity Shareholders Before Exceptional Iterms 863,979
by Met Prafit Available for Equity Shareholders After Exceptional ferms 926,665
c) Potenbal Increase in Earning upaon Dilubon 52.250

d) ‘Weighted Average Mo, of Equity Shares

Basic 22,362,178

Potential equity shares due to conversion of debentures 827.056

Potential equity shares due to issue of share warrants 1,157,880

Petertial equity shares under ESOP 31,221

Driluted 24,378,335
e} Paid up Value Per Share (Rs.) 10y-
fi  Earnings Per Share Before Exceptional tems (Rs.)

Basic 38.65

Criluteed 37.59
g) Eamings Per Share After Exceptional Items (Rs.)

Basic 4].45

Diilted 40.16

556,989
297812
il

22,358,915
Ml

il

40,856
22,399,781

10~

24.9|
24.87

26,74
26.69

Public lssue

LI 0T T 0 INfi]c]

Bonus |ssue

LI T T T T I7fofs]0]

Rights lssue
LI T T 1T INfi]L]

Private Placerment
L1 [z fo]7lols]7]0]

I POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS (AMOUNT IM '000)

Total Liabilities

LT T I712[3T1T414]3]

Source of Funds
Paid-up Capital
L1 11 T2[2]3]ef5]6]
Secured Loans
L[ [ [ifofsfafef4]s]
Application of Funds
et Fixed Assets

L1 1 I3[7fafeli]i]+4]
Met Current Assets
L1 1 [2][3[3]2]6]el3]

Accurmulated Profit
HERNERNERRRED
IV PERFORMAMCE OF THE COMPAMNY

Turnower
L1 1 Isi3fefs]s]z]3]

Profit Before Tax
£ 11 fiiojafajajaf9]
Earming Per Share (Rs.)

LI LT T4li] . [4]5]

Total Assets

LI 1 I7faf3]if4[4]3]

Reserves and Surplus
LI [ [al4]3]s[3]2]7]

[Unsecured Loan
LI [ [rlofafe]7][3]0]

|vestments
L1 [ [ijrfsjajifa]+4]
Miscellaneous Expenditure

LI T T T 11 [4[9]2]

Total Expenditure
LT Ta4f2]7]712[2]4]

Prafit After Tax
LT T T Is]2Telefe]s]
Dividend Rate %

I IR I I Y P

¥ GEMNERIC NAMES OF PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS / SERVICES OF THE COMPANY (AS PER MOMNETARY TERMS)

em CodeNe. (TCCode) [ T T T T 1T 1T 1 1 1]

Praduct Description HEEHENEERNRE

H
[



Auditors’ Report

AUDITORS' REPORT OMN CONSOLIDATED FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

To

The Board of Directors of Allcargo Global Logistics Limited

W have audited the attached Cansolidated Balance Sheet of Alleargo Global Logistics Limited (“the
Company")and its subsidiaries {together referred to as “The Group”, as described in Schedule 22,
Mote 6) as at December 31, 2008, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account and also the
Consolidated Cash Flow Staternent for the year ended on that date, both annexed thereto, These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management, Cur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based an our audit,

We have conducted cur audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted In India.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternents. An audit mcludes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supparting the amaunts and disclosures in the financial statements. An awdit also
fincludes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as
well as evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the
reports of ather auditors provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

We did not audit the financal statements of same subsidiaries whaose finandal staterments reflect the
Group's share of total assets of Rs. 5,701,235 thousand as at December 3|, 2008 and the Group's
share of total revenues of Rs, 19,212,983 thousand for the year ended on that date as considered in
the Consofidated Fnancdal Staterments, These financial statements have been audited by other auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us and our opinian, in so far as it relates to the amounts included
inrespect of the subsidiaries, s based solely on the report of other auditors.

‘Wi did not audit the finandal statements ofthe subsidiary Allcargo Logistics Park Private Limited and the
Joint venture Sealand Warehousing Private Limited whose uraudited financial staterments reflect the
Group's share of total assets of Rs. 524,41 2 thousand as at December 31, 2008 and Group's share of
total revenues of Bs, Nil for the year ended on that date. Ths subsidiary and the jont venture have
been conselidated on the basis af such unaudited financial statements certified by the managerment.

W report that the consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Group's management
in accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) 2| - Consolidated Fnancial
Staterrents and Accaunting Standard (A5) 27 — Fnanaal Reporting of Interests in Joint Venture sswed
by the Instiute of Chartered Accountants of India and on the basis of separate audited financial
staternents of Allcargo Global Logistics Limited and its subsidianes induded in the Consolidated
Financial Statemerts. other than the subsidiary and the joint venture referred to in paragraph 4 which
have been consalidated on the bass of unaudited financial statements,

O the basis of infarmation and explanations given to us and on consideration of the separate audit

reports on indidual audited financial staterments of the Cormpany and its subsidiaries other than the

subsidiary and joint venture referred to in paragraph 4 above which have been consalidated on the

basis of unaudited finanoial staternents, in our opinkon, the consolidated financal staterments give atrue

and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India:

a)  nthecaseofConsclidated Balance Sheet, ofthe state of affars of the Group as at December 3 |, 2008;

by inthe case of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account, of the profit of the Group for the year
ended on that date; and

c) inthe case of the Consclidated Cash Flow Statement, of cash flows of the Group for the year

ended on that date.

For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates
Chartered Accourtants

5P Palaniappan

Place: Mumbai Partner
Dated: Apnl 30, 2009 Membership MNo.38378

84
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2008 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

{Rs. in 000's) (Rs. in 000's)
Schedule This Year Previous Year Schedule This Year Previous Year
SOURCES OF FUNDS INCOME
Operating Income 13 23,140,819 16,134,631
SHAREHOLDERS FUMDS ‘
Cither Income 14 106,366 51,485
Share Capital 223936 223 889 23,247,185 16,186,117
Share Warrants (Refer MNaote 4 of Schedule 22) 293,622 - EXPENDITURE
Ernployees Stadk Options Outstanding z |6,187 | 5,001 Multimodal Transpoit Opérations 5 15,380,320 10,139,177
Reserves and Surplus 3 5,579,686 4.482 764 Container Freight Station & 365,866 | 88,555
6,113,431 4,721,654 Equipment Hire |7 147,783 &%,087
LOAM FUMNDS 4 EI'I"'IFIlD}'EE Tt 18 3155179 2,692,243
Sapired: L kg 2,404,892 | 950 43| Adrmanistratove and Selling |9 1,890,527 | .621,937
Unsecured Loans 1,034,753 12,088 i A il R
3.439 645 322519 Dreprecaton 5 447218 252,282
e e Preliminary Expenses Written Off 3,083 2,114
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY (MET) 127,158 44 434 2],638,513 15,088,862
MINORITY INTEREST | 14,859 Bs7 17 PROFIT BEFORE TAX AMD EXCEFTIOMAL ITEM |.608,672 1,097 255
Provision For Taation
| -
2,795,053 %1143 Current Tax 305,544 219,747
APPLICATION OF FUNDS Craferred Tax 93,89 44,769
Gross Block 5 7,084,425 5,580,633 ‘;"_"-‘*'”‘BT‘“‘ . o ;: . "32
B It [
Less : Depreciation 1,460,344 1,143,785 el Gttt : 15793 TR
Net Black 5,624,081 4,436,848 . '
53 ;,;Wk o 5l .ﬂ:ﬂ Jrrerd PROFIT AFTER TAX AND BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL [TEMS 1,251,349 847,254
It N Frogress '
3 v 6.365.161 4842017 Exceptional ltems (Met of tax) 21 (31.403) 16,680
| oy § R T PROFIT AFTER TAX AMD AFTER EXCEPTIOMAL ITEMS 1,219,946 863,924
' ' Tax Adustrrent for Earlier ears {4.199) 76
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES PROFIT BEFORE MIMORITY INTEREST 1,215,747 B&4,010
A. Current Assets Profit Attributabie to Minarty Interest 138,725 98,419
Interest Accrued on Investrent 402 312 PROFIT AFTER MINORITY INTEREST 1,077,022 765,591
Spares and Consumables 19572 14.652 Balance Brought Forward Fram Previous Year 1,283 416 719212
z““":r:'“ i’?ﬁ::ﬂal ; T'::T':: 2.2; : ;?i PROFIT AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONS 2,360,438 | 484,803
it s iz ] APPROPRIATIONS :
B. Loans and Advances 9 | 666,505 719,278 Interim Dvidend Paid - 40,512
5673318 3,636,895 Taee on Interin Dividend - &,885
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS :’UF’“M D*“id';”;_ s 5:;:: m.igg
ax on Propose nechery I,
A Current Liabilities 10 ‘2937056 2.290.108 General Reserve 95 000 75 500
B. Provisions 1 137,559 |44 B49 Surplus Camed to Balance Shest 1,200,027 1,283 416
3074615 2,434 957 2,360,438 |, 484,803
NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,598,703 1,201,938 N A
Earming Per Share - Basic
MISCELLAMECUS EXPENDITURE 12 3,177 5,704 Before Exceptional ftems 49.38 34.47
(to the extent not written off or adjusted) After Exceptional lterms 4738 34,23
9,795,093 6.114.314 Eaming Per Share - Diluted
Significant Accounting Policies and MNotes on Accounts 2 Befare Exceptional ltems 47.43 34 4|
As per our rebort of even date After Exceptional ltems 46,14 4,17
For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates For and on behalf of the Board SgiificancAccrunting Policis and Notms an Accounts &
Chartered Accountants As per our report of even date
For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates For and on behalf of the Board
5P Palaniappan Shashi Kiran Shetty Kekl Elavia Chartered Accauntonts
Partrer Chairman & Managing Director Director 5P Palaniappan Shashi Kiran Shetty Keki Elavia
Membership Mo, 38378 Fartrer Chasrman & Managing Director Crrector
f ; 7
Place : Murmbai 5. Suryanarayanan Shailesh Dholakia Mernpership N? T _
Dated : Apnl 30, 2009 Group Chief Financial Officer Cornpany Secretary peAGEiS AT S Surysearayaan Shaliach Dhokakia

Drated : April 30, 2009

Group Chief Financial Officer

Coampany Secretary



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

{Rs. in 000's)

Particulars This Year Previous Year

A, Cash Flow From Operating Activities
et Profit Before Tax and Exceptional kems | 608,672 | 097,255
Depreciation 447,218 252,282
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 1,527 3,359
Preliminary Expenses Wiitten OFf 3,083 2,114
Interest Fayments 248 537 123,467
Employees Compensation Expenses (Stock Option) 3.201 7276
Exceptional tem (26,349) {28,027)
Foreign Exchange Loss{Gain) (28.478) (&4, 608)
Irterest Receved {29.541) {31.343)
Prowvismon for Doubtful Debts 47,156 -
Profit on Sale of Assets (13,967) (332)
Profit on Sale of Shares (30.642) {18,007}
Bad Debts Written OFf 35,551 -
Prowvisions For Liabilines 6,198 5932
Dividend (30) {(1.14%)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 2272138 | 348,221
Adjustment for:
Increase/Decrease in Trade and Other Recaivables/Stock (1.709,990) {91,853)
Increase/Decrease in Trace Payables and Other Liabilities 640,752 178,159
Direct Taxes Paid (312,223) (| 88,055)
Met Cash From Operating Activities 890,675 | 246 458

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Purchase of Ficed Assets (Including Capital Advances) (1.,841,228) (1,632, 788)
Acquisition of Subsidiaries - MNet - (30%9,02%)
Furchase of Investments (1.098,108) (38.441)
Sale of vestments 352,793 571,029
Sale of Fixed Assets 99,175 217,870
Interest Received 29,541 31,343
Dividerd 30 [, 149
Exchange Fluctuation Reserve (167.402) {24,148)
Met Cash From Investing Activities (2.625,197) {1.183,015)

C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Receipt / Payment of Loans 2,177,127 331,803
Preliminary Expenses Incurred {556) (1.824)
Share lssue Expenses Incurred {45,309) -
Proposed Dividend (67,088)
Tax on Propased Dividend {11,402) 5
Interim DhividendMincrity Interest 29,140 (81.024)
Tax on Intenm Drvidend - {12,567}
Issie of Share Warrants 293,622 £
lssue of Share Capital induding Premium 2976
Interest Paid aon Loans (248,537) (123.467)
Met Cash From Financing Activities 2,129973 112,921

Met Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) 395451 176,364
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the baginning of year 631,315 450,303
Less: Lpon Desubsidiarisation 14,789 :
Cash and Cash Equivalent of Merged Uindertaking at the beginning of year - 4,648
Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 1,011,975 631,315

As per our report of even date

For Appan & Lokhandwala Associates

For and on behall of the Board

Chartered Accountants

5P Palaniappan Shashi Kiran Shetty Keki Elavia

Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director

Membership Mo 38378

Place : Mumbai 5. Suryanarayanan Shailesh Dhaolakia

Dated : Apnil 30, 2009 Group Chief Fnancial Officer Caormpany Secretary
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Schedule

(Rs.in000's)

This Year Previous Year
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorized
30,000,000 Equity Shares of Bs, 10/~ each 300,000 300,000
3,000 13% Mon Curnulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs, |00/~ each 300 300
300,300 300,300
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital
22,363,681 | Equity Shares of Rs, |0/~ each fully paid 223,636 202,558
(Previous year 20,255,845 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ each)
3,000 3% Mon Curmulative Reedernable Preference Shares of Rs, |00/ each
fually paid 300 300
Share Capital Suspense - 21,031
273,934 223,889
EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTIONS OUTSTANMDING
Employees Stock Options Outstanding 19.482 25,299
Less : Deferred Employee Compensation Expenses 3,295 10,298
16,187 15,001
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Securties Premium Account 2,046,226 2,088,607
General Reserve 890,015 585,982
Revaluation Reserve 3.452 2,578
Exchange Translation Reserve (302,282) (53,735)
Capital Redemption Resarve 300 300
Capital Reserve 741,948 575616
Profit and Loss Account 2,200,027 |.2B3.416
5.579.686 4,482,764
LOAMN FUMDS
Secured Loans
From Banks:
a) Working Capital Facilities 637,187 43,105
(>ecured by hypothecation of stores, stock, book debts, certam vehicles
mortgage of assets [ interest in assets stuated at Murnbai and guaranteed
by a director)
B} Term Loan 1.767.705 [.206. 131
i Secured by mortgage of assets of Container Freight Stations at Mumbai
and Chennal and Intand Container Depots at Pithampur and Hyderabad
and Hypathecation of Viehicles and Equipments. Secured Loan of MNil
(P, 9,579 thousand) is guaranteed by a director)
From Crithers; - [.195
2,404,892 1,250,431
Unsecured Loans
6% (Met of Tax) Fully and Compulsonly Convertable Debentures 1,009,730 -
From Others 25,023 12,088
1,034,753 12,088
3439645

[.262,519 E
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Schedule - 5 FIXED ASSETS

(Rs. in 000's)

DEPRECIATION / AMORTISATION

MNET BLOCK

GROSS BLOCK

Previous

For the |Depreciation| Closing

Closing
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

Schedule

&

INVESTMENTS

I} Long Term Investments
At Cost, fully paid up
a) Quoted
b Unguated

I} Current Investments - Quoted

Aggregate Amournt of Quoted Irvestments
Aggregate Amount of Linguoted Imvestments
Aggregate Amount of Current Investments

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments
Aggregate Market Value of Current Investments

SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured)
Sundry Debtors
Less ; Provision For Doubtful Debts

CASH AND BAMEK BALANCES
Cash on Hand

Balances with Scheduled Banks:
In Current Accounts

In Feed Deposit Accounts

LOANS AND ADVANCES

Advances Recoverable in cash or kind or for value (o be received

MAT credit entitlement
Balance with Custorns and Ports

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Sundry Creditors

npaid Dividend

Other Liabilties

PROVISIONS

For Taxaton Met of Advance Tax
For Proposed Dividend

For Tax on Proposed Dividend
For Retirement Benefits

MISCELLAMNEOLUS EXPENDITURE
Preliminary Expenses

(Rs. in 000's)

This Year Previous Year
183 A9
525.217 243,805
302.652 39.94|
828,052 &4,655
183 F09
525,217 23,805
302,652 39,94/
B28.052 &4.655
47 3,308
302,796 42,403
3,030,292 2,280,427
55418 9.089
2,974,864 2.7 1,338
18,063 14,148
960,221 487 769
33,691 | 29,398
1,011,975 631,315
1,419,873 GB6.461
93.836 26,692
152,796 T D

| 666,505 719278
1,763,503 | 482 468
1] 70
I.173,452 807,570
2,937,056 2,290,108
57,744 58,153
55,909 £7,088
9.502 | .40
14,404 8,206
137,559 144,849
3,177 5,704
3177 5,704
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008
{Rs. in 000's) (Rs. in 000's)
Schedule This Year Previous Year Schedule This Year Previous Year
13 OPERATING INCOME 18 EMPLOYEE COST
Mutimedal Transpart Operations 21,300,743 14.958.895 Salaries & Other Benefits 2.473.535 2.508.157
Container Freight Staticns 1,454,960 934,132 Contributson to Provident & Other Funds 310.686 12,805
Equipment Hire 385.116 241,604 Gratuity 4 444 2437
23,140,819 16,134,631 Staff Welfare Expenses 366514 65.044
4 OTHER INCOME 3,155,179 26592243
(taredt 29,541 31343 19 ADMIMISTRATIVE AMD SELLING
Proofit on Sale of Assets 13,967 332 Oither Expenses | 864,562 | 592 876
Profit on Sale of Investrments 30.642 18,007 Fayrrent to Auditors 25.965 25,061
Dividend 30 [,149 1,890,527 I.621,937
Exchange Gain/Loss 18,478 &8 " INTEREST
Cither Income 3,708 37
106,366 31,484 On Fed Loans 63.946 74,346
On Barnk Owverdrafts 782 47 099
15 MULTIMODAL TRAMSPORT OPERATIONMS G Irer Corporate Deposits 437 5027
Cperating Expenses 14,183,424 9,436,434 Cither Interest 183.372 .
Clairms and Compensation B, 145 13,024 248,537 123 467
Docurentation Charges 14,253 l6,347 50 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (NET OF TAX)
Break Bulk Expenses 644 976 147,154 : ;
S ST £ 1988 Capital Work In Progress Whitten OFf (4.540) .
Inviport Dieliviry Qrder Chargas 50,598 46,597 g (#5344) S5
Exceptional Income {Met) {30.889) 5,339
Aur Freight Expenses 43,088 216907
Srace Resservation Charges 11,360 9,436 ess: Provision For Tax
Rl s 52 484 55779 Current Tax {515) 4,625
Vehicle Repairs 39,264 12,618 ekl 2 G 22,
Spares Consurned 38,568 32710 AT Credit s (4.62)
: {31.403) 16,680
Cither Expenses 243,5%0 75,213
15,380,320 10,139,177
le COMNTAIMER FREIGHT STATIONS
Power & Fuel 89.06| 0,762
Container Transportation Charges 18,266 28707
Equipment Hire Charges 32308 |, 1eh
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 49,599 [3.533
Oither Expenses 176,632 | 14,382
365.866 I1BB,555
17 EQUIPMENT HIRE
Spares Consumed 32,542 23,054
Fuel Expenses 14,423 6,613
Hiring Expenses 56,212 4457
Insurance Bl4 281
Repairs & Maintenance - Others 32,967 17,047
Other Expenses 10,825 7633
147,783 69,087
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31,2008

Schedule 22

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies
Accounting Conventions:

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the histonical cost conventions, on the accrual basis of accounting, i accordance
with the generally accepted accounting principles in India, and the accounting standards notified by Companies Accounting Standard Rules,
2006 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956,

Fixed Assets:

2.1 Fixed assets are reconded at cost less accurmulated depreciation/amortisation,

1.2 Costindudes purchase pnice and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to s applicable use.
Asset Impalrment:

The carrying value of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for any possible impairment at each Balance sheet date. Animpairment loss s
recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amaunt, In assessing the recoverable amount the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value at appropriate discourt rate.

Depreciation:
Foreign Subsidiaries :

I, Inthe case of foreign subsidianies, the tangible assets are deprecated on a straight line basis, based on rules fied in relation to the
expected economic life of these assets in the group without taking into account any residual value,

Buildings 2%- | 0%
Infrastructure 10920
Machinery & Equipment 10%:-33%
Furniture 10%-33%
Cars and Trucks 23%-33%

Data Processing material 20%-33%
2. Incaseofforeign subsidiaries, Intangible Assets are amortised at minimum rate of 2096 a year.
Indian Companies
|. Leasehold land is amortised equally over the penad of the lease,

2. The Company and Indian subsidiaries except Hindustan Cargo Litd. have provided depredation on fixed assets including assets oreated
an land and office premises under lease on straight line method in accordance with Schedule XV of the Companies Act, 256
Renewal of leases s assumed, consistent with past practice.

3. Hindustan Cargo Ltd., has provided Deprediation on fixed assets on straight-line method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in
Schedule XV to the Companies Act, | 956, except in respect of Computers and other vehicles, an which depreciation is provided at
25% and | 5% respectively. Leasehold Improvements are written off over the primary pericd of lease by the abowve subsidiary,

4, Fixed assetscosting Rs, 5000/ or less, are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition,
Investrments:

5.0 long Term Investments are carried at cost, Provision for dimunition, if any, in the value of each long term investrment is made to
recagnize a decling other than of a temporary nature. The fair value of a long term investrment is ascertained with relerence 1o its
marketvalue, the investes's assets and results and the expected cash flows from the investrnenit.

5.2 Current Investrments are carried at lower of cost and fairvalue,
53 Profit/loss on sale of investrents is computed with reference to their average cost,
Inventories:

Inventories of Spares and Consumables are valued at cost or net realizable value whichever i lower, Cost also includes all charges incurred for
bringsng invertones to their present conditson and kocation,

Expenditure During Construction Period:

Expenditure during construction pericd is included under Capital Work in Progress and the same is allocated to the respective fised assets on
completion of construction,

Borrowing Cost:

Borrowing costs that are directly attribatable to the acquesiion/construction of the underlying fived assets are capitalised as part of the
respective asset upto the date of the acquistion/completion of constructian,

Miscellaneous Expenses:

In case of foreign subsidiaries prefiminary expenses are amortised over a period of 5 years unless they are accourted for in the Profit and Loss
account in the year inwhich they are incurred, In other cases prelimnary expenses are amertised over a period of 5 years,

Revenue Recognition:

0.1 Multimadal Transport Income and Mulimaodal Transport Expenses are recognized on the basis of sailing of vessels and completion of
transport as per contractual terms.

0.2 Income from Container Freight Stations Operations relating to export containers is accounted on accrual basis, A Container Freight
Station ground rent charge on Import Stuffed Containers s accounted to the extent of recoverability from carmiers of contamers. Import
cargo handling charges are accounted on dearance.

1.3 Revenue and expenses for sale of abandoned cargo are recognized when auctioned, Surplus, if any, out of auctions 15 credited to a
separate account Auction Surplus” and is shawn under Current Liabilites. Unclaimed Auction Surplus cutstanding for more than one
year jswritten back as income in the subsequent financial year.

104 Incomefrom Equiprment Hire is recognized as per contractual terms.

. Employees' Retirement Benefit:

Foreien Subsidiart
In case of foreign subsidiaries, staff retirerment benefits are provided as per local Laws.
NG o
|, Retrement benefits in the form of Provident Fund and Farmily Pension Fund which are defined contribution schermes are charged to the
Profit & Loss Account of the yearwhen the contributions to the respective funds accrue.

i Gratuity liability which is a defined benefit scheme 15 accrued and provided for on the basis of an actuanal valuaton made at the
end of each financial year.

3. Leave encashment benefit on retirerment, wherever applicable, s determined on the basis of actunial valuation and such liability 5
provided inthe accaunts,

Employees Stack Option Plan:

The Accourting value of stock optians representing the excess of the  market price over the exercise price of the options granted under
“Employees Stock Options Scheme” of the Company is amortised on straight-line basis  over the vesting penod as “Deferred Employees
Compensation” n accordance with SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guadelines, 1999 as
amended from time totime.
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Taxes on Income;

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the assessable income for the year determined in accordance with the provisions of the applicable
local tax laws, Deferred Tax is recognized on tming differences, being the difference between taxable income and accounting income that
arginate in one period and are capable of reversal in ane or more subsequent periods. Delerred tax assets on unabsorbed tax bosses and tax
deprediaticn are recognized only when there is virtual certainty of their realisation and on other items when there is reasonable certainty that
sufficeent future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised, The tax effect is calculated on the
accurmulated timing differences at the year end based on the tax rate and laws enacted or substantially enacted on the balance sheet date.
Prowision for Fringe Benefit Tax for the year has been determined in accordance with the provisions of section | | 5WC of the Income Tax Adt,
196 1. Mirumum Alternate Taee (MAT) credit is recopnized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in Guedance Mote
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The said assetis created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown
as MAT Credit Entitlernent. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carmying amount of MAT Credit
Ertitiermnent to the extent there s na longer convinging evidence 1o the effect that the Company will pay normal Income Tax duning the
specified persod,

Foreign Currency Transaction:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are translated at the year end exchange rates, Exchange gainsdosses are recognized in the profit and loss
account. In the case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue temns are consolidated at the average rate prevailing during the year, All the assets and
liabilities are converted at the rates prevailing at the end ofthe year,

. Leases:

Lease rentals in respect of operating lease arrangements are charged to Profit and Loss Account. Initial direct costs in respect of lease are
expensed in the year in which such costs are incurred, Expenditures mcurred on improvements to leasehold premises is classified into Capital
and Revenue. Capital expenditures are dassified under Fixed assets and Revenue expenditures are debited to Profit and Loss Account.

Segment Reporting:

The Accounting Polickes adopted for segment reparting are in [ine with Accounting Policies of the Company. Segments Assets include all
operating assets used by the business segments and consist prinapally of fixed assets and current assets. Segment Liabilities include the
aperating liabilities that result from the operating activities of the business. The assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the
segrnents are shown as part of unallocated corporate assets and liabilites respectively, Income/Expenses relating to the enterprise as a whole
and notallocable on a reasonable bass to business segments are reflected as unallocated corporate Income/expenses,

Il. Notes Forming Part of Accounts

1
ra

Figures in rupees have been rounded off to the nearest thousands.
Previous year figures are regrouped wherever necessary to confarm to this year's classification.
Principles of Consalidation

The Cansolidated Fnancial Statements relate to Allcarge Global Logistics Limited, its subsidiary companies and Joirt venture company,
The consolidated financial staternents have been prepared on the following basis:

] The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companses are combined on a e by line basis, and intra group balances,
intragroup transactions and unrealised profits or losses are fully eliminated, The Company’s Interest in jointly controlled entity s
reported using proportionate consolidation, whereby the Company's share of jointly controlled assets and liablities and the share of
incorme and expenses of the jointly controlled entities are reported as separate line items.

il Incase of foreign subsidianes, being non-mtegral foreign operations, revenue items are consclidated at the average rate prevailing
during the period. All assets and liabilibies are converted at rates prevailing at the end of the year, Any exchange rate diference ansing on
consalidation is recognzed in the exchange fluctuation reserve,

i) The difference between the cost of investments in the subsidianes, over the net assets at the time of acquisttion of shares in the
subsidiaries is recognized in the financial statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserves as the case may be.

vy Minarity interest's of net profit of consalidated subsidiaries for the period is identified and adpsted against the income of the groupin
arder to arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholder of the Company.  Investments in Joint Venture are deaft with in
accordance with Accounting Standard (A5) 27 ' Finanoal Reporting of Interests in Joint Vertures', The Company's interest in jointhy
contralled entity i reparted using propartionate consolidation, whereby the Company's share of jointly controlled assets and liablities
and the share of income and expenses of the jointly controlled entity is reported as separate line items,

v} Asfaras possible the Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar crcumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company's separate financial staternents except in the
case of foreign subsidiary companies where the accounting policy regarding the rate of depredation is not in consonance with the
group accounting palicy, MNa effect has been given in the consalidated financial statements on acoount of such differing accounting palicy
where the impact is not expected to be material,

wiy Goodwill on consolidation is not amortized in Consolidated Financal Statements,  Goodwill amortized by the Foreign Subsidzry i
restated in the Consalidated Financial Satements in accordance with Group practice,

Issue of Securities on Preferential Basis

Pursuant to an agreement dated February 20, 2008 entered into with Blackstone Group entities, the Company has lssued and allotied
following securities on preferential basis on March 27, 2008 in accordance with the provisions of Section 81 1A} of the Companies Act, 1256
read with SEBI{DIP) Guidelines far Preferential lssues, during the year,

i} 1,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each ata premium of Rs. 924 per equity share aggregating Rs. 934 thousand,

i) 6% (MNetof tax) | 0BI.OB| Fully and Compulsorily Carvertible Debertures (FCCDs) of Rs, 934 each aggregating Rs, 1,009,730
thowsand. These FCCDs shall be compulsonly converted into equal number of equity shares of Rs. |0 each at a premium of Rs. 924
perequity share on completion of | B manths from the date of their allotment; and

iy 1,513,514 Warrants of Rs. |0 each corvertible into equal number of equity shares at the option of the Warrant Holders at any time
before completion of | 8 months from the date of their allotrment at a price ranging from Rs. 934 per Equity Share to Rs. | 284 per
Equity Share. The conversion price will be determined based on the consalidated recurring aperational performance of the Company
for the finandial year ended Decernber 31, 2008.The Company has received Rs. 293,622 thousand @ Rs. 194 per Warrant upfront
from the Warrant Holders. In the event that the Warrant Haolders do not exercise their option to corvert, part or all of the VWarrants
intey Equity Shares, the Warrants shall stand canceBed and the armatint paid an the Warrants that have nat been converted shall be fofeited.

The finandal staternents of the subsidiaries and the joint venture, used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same date as of the Company
i.e. year ended December 3 |, 2008,

W have consolidated the financial staternents of Indian Companies, Contech Transport Services Pyt Ltd |, Hindustan Cargo Ltd, ECU Line
{India) Pvt Ltd, AGL Ports Pyt Ltd, AGL Projects Pvt Ltd, AGL Warehousing Pvt Ltd, AGL Terminals Pvt Ltd, Allcarga Logistics Fark Pvt Ltd and
foreign subsidiares, Allcargo Belgium M.V and Asia Line Ltd Dubai, Inturn Asia Lines Ltd has consolidated its financials with its subsidiary ECU
Heawy Lift LLC and Allcargo Belgium M.V has consolidated its finandals with its subsidiary RME MY of Belgium and fellow subsidiaries of ECU
Hald M.V of Belgivm, The fellow subsidiary ECL Haold M.V has consolidated the followang subsidianes globalty

Sr. No. Mame of the Company Country of Incorporation % of Holding
| ECL Internatanal {(Asia) Put, Lid, Incha (00
2 ECU-Line Hong Kong Ltd. Hang Kong &0
3 ECL) Lire Guangzhou Ltd China 60
4 ECU Line Philippines Inc. Philippines | 00
3 ECL) Line Singapore Pte, Lid, Singapore |00
& ECU Line {Thailand) Co, Thailand 57
7 ECU Line Middle East LLC United Arab Emirates 86
B ECU Line Abu Drhabi LLC Afghanistan 51
9 ECU Line Doha WLL. Catar 100
1] Euro Centre — Dubai Inited Arab Emirates 72

96
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Mame of the Company Country of Incorporation %% of Holding Mame of the Company Country of Incorporation %o of Holding

[ ECU Line (Johar Baheu} Sdn Bhd Malaysia 85 46 ECU Line Kenya Kenya 82
|2 ECL Lire Japan Ltd Japan 63 47 ECLI Line (1C) LTD. Mauritius 90
13 ECU-Lire Vietnam Vietnam 51 48 ECU-Line Malta Ltd, Malta 100
4 ECU-Line Panama S.A p— 100 49 ECL) Line Maroc 5.4, Marocco |00
5 ECU-Line Paraguay S.A Paraguay 100 50 ECU Line Spain S.L. Spain 100
I& ECLI-Line Peru 5.A. Paru 70 51 ECU Line Tunesa Mergrne Riadh 100
17 ECU Logistics do brasil Ltda Brazil |00 32 ECU Line Egypt Ltd Egypt 55
k) ECLI-Line Canada Inc. Canada 50 33 ECLI LINE 5A (Pty,) Ltd. South Africa 90
E ECU Line Chile SA Chile 100 54 ELWA (GH) Ltd Ghana 100
20 ECU Line De Columbia S.A. Colombia 667 35 ECU Line Cate dlvoire Sar hory Coast 100
2] Conecli International 5.4 Costa Rica 100 26 REL Linc: Mgenis s o L
2 ECU Line Del Ecuador S.A. Ecuador 100 W B Line Haly TR = oly L
23 Plamingo Line E1 Sabvadar SA de €V El Salvador 67 3 Canec Intemaional 34 Costa: Fica L
14 ECU Line Guatemala Guaternala 7 59 Mediterranean Cargo Centre Spain a0
35 CELM Logistics S.A. De C.V. st 100 =0 Administradora House Line CA, Venezuela | Q0
2 ELV Multimodal C.A, Venezuela 100 % STing A LRSS0 . 2

f 1 Line del S, Pe 70
a7 Flarningo Line Do Brazil Ltda Brazil ] 2 gD Liné Sek Pey s

&3 ECL Logistics 5.A (Argentinie Argentina 51
28 ECU Line Australia Pty. Ltd. Australia 80 " yupene;

&4 AMI Ventures Mauritius | 00
29 ECU Line Mew Zealand Lid, Mew Zeatand &0

65 DLC Uruguay | 20
30 ECU-Line (Germany) GrmbH Germmany |00

: ; L) ECL Intermational Far East Lid, Hang Kong |00

3l ECL-Lire LK Ltd, nited Kingdom 00

a7 IPTS Belgium | 0
32 ECL-Line Polska 5p. Z.o.o. UL Pokska 100

6d ECL-fur LY Belgium 100
33 ECLI-Line Romania SEL Rormania | 00

69 ECU Shipping Logistics (k) L. Kenva 9%
14 ECL-BRO MM Belgium |00

70 Coritainer Freight Station 5.4, Chile 50
15 ECU Internatonal MW Belgium |00

71 Famingo Line Ecuadar Ecuador |00
34 ECLULTECH BVBA Belgiurn (o]

72 ECU Logistics de Mexico 54 de CV Mewico |00
37 ECU-LINE NV Belgiurm (00 _ _

73 Rotterdam Freight Station BY Aotterdam |00
33 ECU-LOGISTICS MM Belgium 100

T4 Consolidadora Ecu Line CA, Venaruels | 00
39 ECU-Trans MM Belgium |00
40 ECL LINE Rotterdam Methertands |00

; 7. Interestsin joint Ventures
41 D & E Transpart NY Belgium |00
47 ECU Line Turkey Trkiz |00 The Group'sinterests, injointly contralled entities (incorparated jont vertures) ane ;
43 ECU Line Mediterranean Led C;.fprus 55 MName of the ':::_'ll'l".Fl.:LI'l'r unry o . . 86 of Onwmet E..|'|-|:| IntErest
kA - : As at 3 st December, 2008 As at 3| st Deceamber, 2007

44 ECL) Lire Itala SEL Italy 100 | |
45 ECL e Jordai T (00 Sealand Warehousing Pyt Ltd India 0% .
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As the operation of Ecu Line Bulgaria EQOD, ECL Line China Ltd, Ecu Line Zimbabwe (Phy.) Ltd. and Ecu Line Uruguay (Deals: 34} was not
material in refation ta the size of the consolidated operations, the inancial statements of the subsidiaries did rot farrm part of the consalidated

fimancial staternents

The financial statements of some jomt Ventures and Associates are not considered in the consolidated finanaal statements as their state of

affairs as at the year end and results of operation for the penod are not matenal in relation to the consolidated finandal statements,

The accounting podicies of certain subsidianes especally regarding the rate of deprediation, amartisation of intangible assets and accounting for
retirement benefits are not in consonance with the group accounting palicies. Mo effect has been gven i the  consolidated financial

statemerts cn account of such differing accounting policies, wherethe Impactis not expected to be matenal.

. One of the foreign subsidianes has restated Goodwill of Rs, 234 857 thousand and Capital Reserve of Rs. 80,506 thousand from

Generalfccumulated Reserves, The subsidiary has also written off the Goodwill relating to the year 2008 Rs, 87,043 thousand to the Profit
and Loss Account and written off Goodwill pertaining to the yvears 2005, 2006 and 2007 Rs. 253,416 to General Reserves, In the Group
Consolidated Staternent, Goodwill wrtten off of Rs. 340,459 thousand is reversed according to the Group practice, Goodwill of Rs.3,650
thousand has arisen an increase of holding in ECU Line Thailand and in ECL Line South Africa by the fellow subsidiary ECU Hold MW
Contingent Liabilities not provided for

Bank guarantees issued to Customs, Ministry of transport and other parties Rs, | 94,013 thousand (Previous Year — 139,488 thousand)

Indian subsidiaries

iy Counter Guarantees to Banks for suarantees ssued by therm Rs. 349,275 thousand (Previous Year - Rs | 57,799 thousand)

it Continuity Bond executed in favour of The President of India through the Cammissioner of Customs — Rs. 3,245,000 thousand
{Previous Year - Rs. |, 145,000 thousand)

i) Guarantees ssued to Bankers in respect of others Bs, 6,998 thousand, (Previous Year - Bs.6,6%6 thousand)

W) Custorn Duty payable on impert of equipment under EPCG Scherme if the Company s not able to fulfil its expart obligation,
Ra. 52,957 thousand (Previous Year - Rs, 4 | 457 thousand).

vl Suitsfiled against the Company towards operational clamms Bs, 30,338 thousand (Previous Year - 28,620 thousand)

Wiy Income tax demands against which the company has preferred appeaks / rectifications Rs, 4,932 thousand (Previous Year -
Rs. 4,932 thousand)

. In the opinion of the management and to the best of its knowdedge and belief, the current assets and Loans and advances have a value on

realisation in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated inthe Balance Sheet.

|4, SegmentReporting

ANMNUAL REPORT 2008

(3] Information about Business Segments {Information provided in respect of revenue tems for the year ended December 31,2008 and in

respect of assets / liabilities as at Decernber 31, 2008.

Particulars Multimodal

Transport
Operations
| This | Previous
Year Year

Revenue
External 21,300,743 14,958,895
Add ¢ Inter Segment Revenue 45349 656,157
Total Revenue 21346092 |5, 125052
Result
Segment Result Before
Interest and Tax 082,773 738,109

Interest Expense

Unallpcated Income net of
Unallocated Expenses

Profit Before Tax and
Exceptional ltem

Taxes

Profit After Tax And Before
Exceptional ltem

Add: Exceptional ltermns
(et of tax)

Profit After Tax
Segmernt Assets 7.281.167 4022726
Unallocated Assets
Total Assets
Segrrent Liabilities 406! 463 3357 158
Unallocated  Liabilities

Total Liabilites

Secondary Segment Geographical

Container
Freight
Station

This Previous

Year Year

1454960 934,132
27,047 i3.411
| 482,008 547.543

B3l 230 444,190

1.BIS.611  [.320.44]

72,027 | 56.888

{Rs. in D00’s)

Equipment

Division

Previous This | Previous

Year Year Year

385,116 241604 23,140,817 15,134,631
109,797 20,000 182,193  199.568
494913 261,604 123.323.012 |6,334,|99

184369 05216 2098372 1287515
(248,537) (123 .467)

(241,163)  (66.793)

1,608,672 1,097 255
357,323 250,000

1,251,349  B47 254

(31,403) | &, 680

1219946 B63 934

| 417,787  &11.802 10,514,565 5,954,949
2,355,143 2 594,302

12,869,708 8,549,271

54,556 39.530 4,188,046 3553676
1,453,372 (88,224

6641 418 3,741,200

This Year Previous Year
Country/Region Segment Revenue Segment Assets Segment Revenue Segment Assets
Irctia 6,406,940 4,880,569 3,203 3% 2,720,876
Afnca 352301 33,808 284015 49,241
America 3731211 6,32.478 2419659 497,274
Far East 3731139 762,398 4,536,785 572,528
Australia & Mew Zealand 7,137 59,683 425,338 54,289
Europe 6,260,970 3,553,969 5,864,259 |,606,97 |
Mediterranean [ALL 2] 59| 660 | 401,179 453,790
Total 23,140,819 10,514,565 I6,134,631 5.954.969
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

List of Related Parties and Relationships
{A)  Relationships:
Iy Joint Venture Company :

4y Associate Companies

3}  Key Management Personnel

4)  Enterprses owned or significantly influenced |
by its key management personnal or their
relatives.

(B} Transactions with Related Farties:

. Mo | Transactions

Interest Recened

MTO Income

Business Service Charpes

Rent Faid

Remuneration to Directors / Commission paid
Car Hire charges

MTC Cperation Expenses
Chutstanding payables

Laan given

Refund of Loans given

Custstanding recenables
Managernent Fees recenved

Rent Deposit paid

Business support charges
Reimbursernent of expenses recened
Professional fees paid

Capatal Expenditure

Share Application Money

Transworld Logistics & Shipping Services Inc LLS.A
Transnepal Freight Services Pyt Lid

1} Mr, Shashi Kiran Shetty
2} Mrs. Arathi Shetty
3} Mr. Adarsh Hedge
4} Mr, Umnesh Shetty

Allcargo Shipping Services (P) Ltd.
Ayadh Marketing (F) Ltd,

M. R, Holdings (F) Ltd.

Trans India Freight (F) Ltd.

Allcargo Movers (Bombay) (P) L.
Allnet Infotech (F) Ltd.

Prominert Estate Holdings (F) Ltd.
Trans India Freight Services () Lid.
Jupiter Machmes (F) Ltd.

Sealard Cranes (F) Ltd,

Contech Estate (P) Ltd,

(Rs. in 000s)

Joint Associate Key Enterprises Owned

Venture Companies | Management or Significantly

Company Personnel Influenced by its

key Management

Personnel or
their relatives

24,066 - -
- - 00
= = 21,945 16,061

- | 6,480
&00

29,551

- - - 35,180
- - - 255
- | 45,718 37,993

- 60,000

- 246 -
- E 1,080

3 T7.729

6. Estimated amount of Contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for Rs, 71,094 thowsand (Previous Year -

Rs. 110,159 thousand),

7. Disclosure For Lease

A. [oreign subsidianes

Company's |ease agreements are mainly m respect of operating leases taken for office premises, warehouses, office equipment and
vehicles. Lease payments recognized inthe Profit and Loss Accountsare Bs, |13, 347 thousand.

B. Indian companies

Company's lease agreements are mainky in respect of operating leases taken for offices, residential premises and warehouses, The lease

agreements are for a pericd ranging from eleven months to nine years, The lease agreements are cancellable at the option of either party by
giving ane month o six month's netice. The Company has glven refundable interest free security deposits for certain agreements. Certain
agreements provide {or increase in lease rent. Some of the agreements provide Tor renewal of lease by mutual consert. Lease payments
recognized inthe Profit and Loss Accourtare Rs. | 29,486 thousand (Previous Year Rs. 27,794 thousand )

18. Employees Stock Option Plan

In 2004, the Company had instituted an Employee Stock Ogption Plan (ESOF 2006) ta attract, retain, metivate and reweard s employees and
to enable therm to participate in the growth, development and success of the Company. The Company granted stock options to be adjusted
far the subsequent bonus issue prior to its Initial Public Offering of equity shares, ta its permanent employees and to few of the permanent

employess of its foreign subsidiaries atvarying nurnbers depending upon their grades,

The following table sets forth the particulars of stock options granted under Allcargo ESCP-2006 as on December 3 |, 2008:

Mo. of Options

Series |

{Pre - Listing)

This Year

Series 1
(Post -
Listing)

Wt.

Ay i‘:ragni

Price

Previous Year

Mo, of Options

Series |

Exercise| (Pre - Listing)

Series |1
(Post -
Listing)

Wt.

|Average

|
| Exercise

Price

Crptions outstanding at the beginning
of the year 22,600 13,000 i 38,300 13,000 10
Add : Options granted during the year 2 . L 5 =
Less : Exercised 2977 ]
Less : Forfeted / Expired 2777 2.500 0 15,700 o
Crptions outstanding at the year end 16,844 10,500 1] 22,600 13,000 [0
Oiption exercisable at vear end &, T4 3.675 - - -
Driluted Earnings Per Share pursuart to
issue of shares on exerose of option 40,14 40,16 - 26.69 26.69
caloulated in accordance with Accounting
Standard (AS) 20 Earning Per Share
Drifference, if any, between the employee | The Campany | The Company The Compary | The Cormpany
compensation cost calculated using the | has charged a has charged a has charged a has chareed a
intrinsic value of stock options and the sum of Bs, 1,556 |sumof Bs. | 645 sum of Rs, 3,597 | sum of Rs. 3,679
employes compensation cost recognized | thousand being | thousand being thousand being | thousand being
if the fair value of the optiors had been | the far value of | the fair value of the fair value of | the fair value of
used and the impact of this difference on | options granted | options granted options granted | options granted
profits and EPS of the Company. under ESOP 2006| under ESOP 2006 under ESOP 2006) under ESOP 2006
{Series [} for the | (Series Il) for the (Senes |) for the | (Series 1) for the
wear ended year ended year ended yaar ended
Dec. 31, 2008. | Dec 31, 2008, Dec. 31, 2007, | Dec. 31, 2007,
Wesghted-average exercise prices and
weighted-average fair values of options Mot Mot Mot Mot
whose exercse price ether equals or Applicable Applicable Applicable Applicable
exceeds or 5 less than the market
price of the stodk
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19. Computation of Deferred Tax Is as follows: (Rs. in 000'5) FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Rs.in'000)
No. | Hame of the Company Capital | Reserves | Total Total Details | Turnover Prafit | Provision | Profit | Proposed
Assets | Liabilities al Before For Afver Dividend
Deferred Tax Liability; .hwestment! Taxation | Taation Tax
Difierence in Block of Assets 205214 105,375 || industan Carge Lid 150000 | ST92019 | 28676604 286766.04 - (142048392 3930503 | 19,6067 | 1969826
Deferred Tax Assets; 1 | Contech Transport Services Pot. Lud. 130000 | 1145050 | 12196234 | 12196234 150030 BIS| Q| Gl 19.25
Fiscal and other disallowance 78,056 61,15 3| cu Line (India) Private Limited 10000 | (36.66) l0o.00|  100.00 . | (k66 G -
Deferred Tax Liabiity / (Asset) - Net 127 158 P 4 | NGLPorts P, Led. 00| (4559) man| e : A s - ss
5 | AGL Projects Pyt Lid, 0000 | (4724) | 6INM| 63N ‘ J @ A W
20,  Earnihgs Per Share: b | NGL Terminals Prt. Led. 10000 | (31873) 442 A : - @ ST
T | AGL Warehousing Pyt Ltd, 0000 | (4559) W0 19w : A s - s i
8 | o omaionl () e L soss| gen| woe| vue| ues|  ww owm| .|
a)  Met Profit Available for Equity Shareholders Before Exceptional tems 1,104,228 748,987 % | Ecu Line Abe Dhabi LLC 19739 | 641L29 | e s | ugem| o 53983 o s3me
by Net Profit Available for Ecuity Shareholders after Exceptional ftems e ikl 1] EmLinf.lJ.gerie TR | LGTLTT | 30T0146] 307014 | oensu| IS0%289 | 3H0L5S | 112904
| o Logisties 5A D433 | 6547 BLB| 1T | s20128| 73685 | 159B33 | 52851 -
t)  Potential Increase in Earning upon Dilutian 52,250 il 2| Ecu Ausiralia Pty. Ltd, 133660 | (1J9RIT) | SH.045.88| 59.645.88 S| M083176| 925338 | 170679 | 454658 | 706540
d)  Weighted Average no. of Equity Shares 13| Ecu Hold WY 1376900 | 1ILIS206 |1308,034.89 |1308,034.89 | 1656023 | 67085.64 | (2T3I6M | 47653 | (23.2002))
Basic 22,362,178 22358925 14| Mleargo Belgium .Y 78309250 | (17,441.47) | 1,597,179.38 | 1 597,179.38 | 958951 (16.041.35) 1094 | {16,062.18)
Potertial equity shares due to convarsion of debentures 827,056 il I5 | Eeubro NY. 30831 | (1256860) | ATII1|  499TIRR S| BIRE33) (L8R0s) | (73S | (1824
Potential equity shares due to issue of share warrants 1,157,880 il 16 | Ecu International N.Y. 422189 | (55,456.18) | 1,160.421.42 | 1,160,421.42 S| 519208330 735 | 2.5M03 | 920331 .
Potential equity shares under ESOP 31,221 40,856 IT | EceTech BVEA | 26602 | (115639) | 3482008 34.820.18 S| TOBIESI| (LEIAT) | 16BE.3 | (3.30730)
Diluted 24,378,335 12,399,781 8 | Eou-Line NV B4.37.80 | 11030130 [1,045367.00|1,045,367.00|  1,055.00 [4,809,16140] 3362944 | 1358529 | 2004415
e) Paid up Value Per Share o i 19 | Eco-Logistics K.Y, 1684936 | (10.069.65) | 31783891 3783891 430 | GIONI0SE|  TIARe | (534 | 8LTal
0 | EcuTram Y. 844378 | (876279 WLOR| 3909 : s 138 13818 [ 117899 -
fl Eamings Per Share Before Exceptional ltems (Rs.) 3| D&E Transpart KY 410089 | (LB3070) | 242506 242506 S| | (se033) S| (a3
Basic 49.38 3447 2| Rk 1121333.98 | (46,430,06) |1.300,949.81 | 1,300, 940,81 A | (035,00 345 | (10,38.49) 2
Diluted R 44l B | fakick 2800 | (859407 | B0.06483| 8006483 | soaminds | (a0amen | (85 | (14 0am
g)  Earmings Per Share After Exceptional ltems (Rs.) H | QL4 [I354TY | 241984 2419M = -| (14B5Y) -| (ansy
Basic 47.38 34.23 5 | oo Logistics do brasil hda L2449 | (79.84238) | 995688  9.956.88 - | 10525848 (s464T53) | 39000 | (65.03753)
Diluted 46.14 34,17 26 | Hlaminge Line do Brazil Lida LO3LGd | (19.36579) | 108437 105437 S| ssmn| (easm -| (epsm
17 | Eco Line Bulgana EOOD : = - : : E - 2 E
18 | Eow-Line Canada Inc. 195 1569143 | Wl waen .| G4BS9BL| musse| 363 | 133N
19 | o Line Chile S.A, 130630 | BI9L99 | BILTO3IR| 170379 | WT63625| L6871 8O3 | 14GAS
30 | Container Freight Station SA 136939 | (16509) | 2680643 | 2680643 | es0a0) 170434 | 38807 | 136D
31| Flamings Line Chile 76879 TIEST| 613048 629948 | mpi| 6 4740 1929 .
32| Eou Line Guangzhou Lid Q8710 LB | #2988 6422988 | Isaned| 126656 M| 9eas
33 | Ecu Line De Columbia S.A, 3330 | 636081 | 2099806 | 21.998.06 | mAILSS| SAB | 1942|3490
3| Conecli International S.0. 130 (474693) | 1332005 1332905 | 3memisl (on2m) | panam
35 | Eou Line Middlesast LLC 194679 | 13996008 | 24330704 | 243.307.04 S| Tssstad | s e .| msaeLs &
36 | Euro Centre - Dubai 0274 | 3824224 | 5545146| 5545046 S| odAse| 2329 | 73
37| hsia Limes Ltd. ATI684 | (L03948) | 2650779 2698179  me4s | 4309 (0TAY) S
30| Eou Heavy Lift, WLLL IB602| (65110 | I2ETI8| 12679 . G0 (57947) | smdn
39 | o Line Def Ecuador S.A. B3| (ST | IseE0T| 159800 .| liBseBO| 248933 | 95835 | 153098
40 | Flaminge Line Ecuador 1935 (31040) 40| 10040 . S Th L) 0.00 | (28175
41 | Eou Line Egypt Ltd BBSM4| 437030 | 2026484 2026484 | meTne0| 1973292 | 3658 | 1578634 1415407
41 | Flamings Line El Salvador 5A de OV 6258 B35 | L] 14 | sdaes| a0 - 030
43 | Eow-Line (Germany) GmbH E3T1649 | 102686 | 18257807 | 182578.00 .| 93T | (376195) -| (7695
4| ELWA (GH) Led. 10443 | L0061 | 5341 533441 | 3nsessi|  eoTeo |  156eR| 35 -
45 | o Line Guatemala T (s02%) | e03se|  s0m | ehS0ET|  3ER | 3magh
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FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF SUBSIDIARIES (Rs.in'000)
No. | Name of the Company Capital | Reserves I Total Total Details J Turnover Profit | Provision | Profit | Proposed
Assets | Liabilities of Before For After Dividend
Investmen ! Taxation | Taxation Tax
46 | Ecw-Line Hong Keng Ld. 9335.82) 301026 | 15629550 | 15629550 - | 3434084 | 286180 9850 | 236530 307513
47 | Eow Imternatiesal Far East Ltd A1) B059.00 | 9016659 | 9016659 | PIETOM [ 4T65.87 BALEE | 392480
48 | Ecm Line [takia SAL A08570| 435030 | 245.687.20 | 456870 - | BOREABED | 1050975 BIREW 178
49 | Ecw Line ltaky TRC SAL 304523 (11306.84) | 500088 | 509088 - [28.98 | (3,579.13) - [5973)
50 | Ecm Line Cate dTvpir Sarl SB8.84| (BN2L0G) [ 1406906 | 14,169.16 «| WS 1,312.05 194.95 L
§1 | Ecm Line fapan Ltd. 16,0406 | (15.60641) | TEALET | TEAYLEI - 79900091 139544 - 139h44
§1 | Ecu Line Jordan Lh66FE )  3ANRE | 3139550 3139555 - RITIS 01258 45174 §59.82
§3 | Eem Line Renya Ld LevANl| 166542 | 3400679 | 3400679 <| 1458605 281835 11042 |, 898.12
§4 | Ecw Shipping Logistics (K} Led 41153 (31.94) a0 190.70 . A5L57 I6.43 an {3.14)
85 | Ecw Line Malaysia ECU-Line (JB) SOM BHD LIT964 ) 1607630 | 4152871 d1518T2 -| 1506098 | 474335 | 45220 519115 631375
56 | Eco-Line Malea L. 193.08 30441 103444 | 10344 - 35B5ES - . -
§ | abew-Line {Indian Ocean Ilands) Led. I, 093,03 LRILIT | 700854 100994 -| WS 34N 166 L1906
58| AMI Ventures 48310 123.556.99 | 149.937.04 | 14%.937.04 - MBS0 111364 - 1L
§9 | Ecw Line Medstterranean Led. 58114 4788 | BAMMTI | BAMTI -| 6688258 53.3% 18.08 B
&0 | CELM Lagistics 5.4 De OV, ITLOS| (4.62137) | 4324468 | 43244.68 -| 19082621 | (V.492.18) B59.67 | (10.151.95)
41 | Ecm Legistics de Mexico S de OV (T.05) 390405 | 2077026 | 2177026 -1 18307 600443 1630.16 | 436647
&1 | Ecw Line Maroc 54 LI2SE9) 1400388 | 9LAILTR | SUGILTE - | IE0IP043 | IBAIR90) 550242 129074% | B164.88
&3 | Ecm Line Roeerdam SEISLI3| (24%6.08) | 7189745 | TIE9IAS - | 48559794 [ 2063985 | M0,639.65
44 | Erm Line New Tealand Lid. LB0| 201816 | 1906534 | 1906534 - I0075.28 [B3LI0 Thg.36 104574
45 | Ecw-Line Panama 5.0 | 20784 (1L9IT.96) | 28744.46 | 28.744.66 -| 13683021 I 96541 33578 1.625.63
66 | Ecu-Line Paraguay 5.4, 43505 19839 [ 1236 | 120434 - BEE5 136078 1&3.17 | 206 4%
41 | Ers-Line Pero S0 ToE4R|  TS5TO.00 | &B.E90.04 | &8296.14 < 3734020 (046563 LI3E9S( TIM0A9
48 | Famings Line Pere 5.4 SATY) L1955 336RB4 ) 336084 - 480737 1,638.20 575.64 1.062.57
£9 | Eco Line Phalipgines bnc. IDITTAT|  LIS638 [ 2610906 [ 26,119.08 - | 13465244 1534.92 53178 |,003.14
10| Eew-Line Palska Sp. 2o, UL mus 97022 | 1453302 | 2453300 -| 15836013 1,198.54 1R | 141436
T | Erm Line Doha W.LL TASSTI) 10030006 | 1905458 | 1905458 | SO45058 | 746485 1585 [ 633000
1 | Ece-Line Romania SRL 90048 25RO | IRTRRI0 | 1979900 - 8785240 451.88 B6.93 36495
73 | Roterdam Freight Station BY 122570 (L643.21) | D20 132100 | 10424945 | (561.74) - {58L14) .
14| Ecu Line Singapore Pta. Lid. BATSAR|  IIT6DN | 15327640 | 1531TeA - M3TERIS [ 3006051 509485 | 2495667 | 1856134
15 | Ecw Line 54 {Pry.) Lut 08} M| G5 191N -| 42633040 [  BBFLNEF  LASATE( 64040
76 | Eco Line Spain 5.1 Barcelona B307.5% 1182306 | TLEQTRY [ 77.807.89 - | 46665670 |  §Me0.01 | 59030
T | Hediterranean Cargo Centers S.L B.I71.40 | (28,18833) | 13.604.03 | 13.604.03 | SRR | (R03357) | (903357
18 | Ecm Line (Thasland) Co.Ltd 104102 2669750 [ PIETE.05 | 91678.05 -| RBATRTT( 10496821 195TO(  BTIEM
79 | Ecw Line Tumesia sarl JTBBN| (BAGADR) | SEETTON [ SEAETIOI -1 114 1%6.83 F1 AT {139.14)
80 | Ecw Line Turkey TI3044 ) (1559.68) | 394756 | 3906054 - | 4432406 1.783.69 457 85 137584
81 | Ece-Line UK Led. 497001 3497 | 12584602 | 12584612 - SITAILES | (1BYLET)| (49340) [ (L399.I7)
81 | Ere-Line Urugay (Deslix 34) L0153 15038 | TATB05 | 747805 -1 IB0074|  304554 50880 1.536.74
8 | D 111,640.86 (1, 867.64) | 11387171 | 113.871.72 - - 4TA09 - AT6N% | BaSH3I
84 | ELY Multimedal CA, SALA0| 33669.40 | A8.854.96 | 4085490 | TLII093 | ISS46.61) SS6IEA(  9.90L7R
85 | Venezmla - AHL 5T 405038 900006 | 971006 . 3.000.31 L7024 L4 204012
86 | Consolidadora Eeu-Line CA 9.03 - 018 .03 - B - - - -
81| Ecae-Line Vietsam 451508 330837 | 2059767 | 2059747 | 13354389 BS164 BOLTS 171349 | 1346758
B8 | Ecw Line Timbabwe (Pry.) Lud. . . . . . . -
89 | Ecw Line Chima Ltd. - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL LBAESSD.05| 8930830 (10465 79445/0. 46579045  DLA0DT3 (20810297990 34671139 | 10602037 | 1M0.80006 [ 15813357
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